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Letter from the 
Executive Director 
Dear Shareholders, 
The Indian economy seems to be recovering slowly from the two 

jolts it received in recent times with respect to demonetization 

and the implementation of a much needed GST (Goods and 

Services Tax). The increased pace of growth achieved in Q3 2018 

re-establishes India as one of the fastest growing economies in 

the world. Fortunately inflation by and large has remained in 

check. In January 2018, The World Bank released its 'Global 

Economic Prospects' report and stated that it expects India's 

growth rate to hit 7.3% the coming financial year. Despite these 

expectations and positive outlook, the fact remains that the 

corporate capital investment cycle, which has remained 

depressed for at least the last 5 years, has yet to pick up. 

The Transformer division has managed to retain market share in 

a flat market with increased competition. Focus on increasing 

business in the non-tendered segment and improved reach in 

utilities has enabled us to have one of our best years in terms of 

production and dispatches. This has resulted in sales turnover 

increasing by 18%. The export market, one of our focus areas, 

has proved difficult to penetrate with sporadic success. Our 

efforts to break in to this market are ongoing. The Motor division 

has achieved significant revenue growth, and has successfully 

managed the operational and supply-chain transition to comply 

with the Government's Quality Control Order that permits only 

the manufacture and sale of energy efficient motors after January 

2018. The division received its largest ever order from a PSU 

(Public Sector Undertaking). Our increased geographical reach 

has bolstered performance. 

The Projects business has for the first time successfully bid 

for, executed, and commissioned a transmission line. We will 

continue to stay away from risky projects and grow in a cautious 

manner in this business. Our focus will remain on projects from 

the private sector. To increase our order input we will also 

consider select projects in EBOP (Electrical Balance of Plant), 
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lighting, and GIS (Gas Insulated Substations) segments of the 

market. The Drives and Automation division has achieved 

a major milestone in delivering their 10,000th drive last year. 

Our focus area will be on the development of the solution 

partner network, and to leverage synergies by offering solutions 

with products developed by our Magnet Technology Machines 

division. One area of concern remains the recent depreciation 

of the rupee against the Euro and the USD. The Magnet 

Techno logy Mach ines ( M T M ) d iv is ion inaugurated 

a state-of-the-art manufacturing plant to cater to increased 

demand. While endeavoring to maintain our leadership position 

for elevator applications in the domestic market we are also 

working hard to grow exports. Our efforts in exports have 

yielded results through our overseas partner. 

Overall the world economy seems to be improving having had 

one of its better years in recent times with Europe and the US 

showing positive signs. Let us hope this upward trend continues. 

Chinese growth however is expected to slow down due to its 

problems of excess industrial capacity and debt overhang. 

What India needs now is good fiscal stimulus to kick start the 

Capex cycle. The bad loan problem also needs to be resolved. The 

government will have to inject a large amount of money into the 

banking system to resolve the growing number of NPAs. The new 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code is definitely a step in the right 

direction. However, the process of recovery and restructuring is a 

long and tedious one. It seems unlikely that anything is going to 

change dramatically before the next election. 
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE SEVENTY 
FIRST (71 s t) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 
MEMBERS OF BHARAT BIJLEE LIMITED WILL BE 
HELD AT 3.00 P.M. ON THURSDAY, JUNE 28, 2018 
AT THE "WALCHAND HIRACHAND HALL, INDIAN 
MERCHANTS' CHAMBER BUILDING, VEER NARIMAN 
ROAD, CHURCHGATE, MUMBAI 400020, TO TRANSACT 
THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the financial 
statements, namely (i) Audited Balance Sheet as at 
March 31 , 2018, (ii) Audited statement of Profit and 
Loss for the financial year ended on that date (iii) 
Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on 
that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors 
and Auditors thereon. 

2. To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the Financial 
Year 2017-2018. 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ravishanker 
Prasad (DIN 06641845), who retires by rotation and, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, wi th or 
wi thout modif icat ion(s), the fo l lowing resolut ion 
as an Ordinary Resolut ion for the ratif ication of 
Remuneration payable to the Cost Audi tors of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2018-2019: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 148 and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) / 
re-enactment(s) / amendment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force), the remuneration payable to Messrs. 
P M Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 000012), appointed by the Board 
of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, as Cost Auditors, to conduct the audit 
of the cost records of the Company for the financial 
year ending March 31 , 2019, amounting to ? 98,000/-
(Rupees Ninety Eight Thousand Only) plus applicable 
taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 
incurred by them during the course of audit, be and is 
hereby ratified. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
of the Company (including its Committee thereof) 

or the Company Secretary be and are hereby 
authorised to do all such acts and take all such steps 
as may be necessary, proper, or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution." 

By Order of the Board 
Durgesh N. Nagarkar 
Company Secretary & 

Senior General Manager : Legal 
ACS 5777 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 10, 2018 

Registered Office: 
Electric Mansion, 6 t h Floor 
Appasaheb Marathe Marg, 
Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025 
CIN: L31300MH1946PLC005017 

NOTES: 

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ('AGM') 
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY / PROXIES 
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / 
HERSELF AND THE PROXY / PROXIES NEED NOT 
BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

THE PROXY FORM, TO BE VALID AND EFFECTIVE, 
SHOULD BE LODGED WITH THE COMPANY AT 
ITS REGISTERED OFFICE, DULY COMPLETED 
AND SIGNED, NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT 
(48) HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF 
THE AGM. 

A PERSON APPOINTED AS PROXY SHALL ACT 
ON BEHALF OF NOT MORE THAN FIFTY (50) 
MEMBERS AND HOLDING NOT MORE THAN 
10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE 
COMPANY. HOWEVER, A MEMBER HOLDING 
MORE THAN 10%, OF THE TOTAL SHARE 
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING 
RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS 
PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS 
PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR MEMBER. 

Corporate Members intending to send their 
authorised representatives to attend the AGM 
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
are requested to send to the Company, a certified 
copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with 
their respective specimen signatures authorizing their 
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at 
the AGM. 

i. 

ii. 
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iii. Member / Proxies / Authorised Representatives 
are requested to bring to the AGM, the enclosed 
Attendance Slip sent along with the Annual Report 
duly completed and signed mentioning therein details 
of their DP ID and Client ID / Folio Number. 

iv. A Proxy shall not have a right to speak at the AGM 
and shall not be entitled to vote except on a poll. 

v. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto and forms 
part of this Notice. The relevant information of the 
Directors seeking re-appointment, as required under 
Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Revised 
Secretarial Standard-2 (SS-2) on General Meetings, 
is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice. 
Requisite declaration has been received from the 
Director for seeking re-appointment. 

vi. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such 
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will 
be entitled to vote. 

vii. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 19(1) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members 
are advised to make nomination in respect of their 
shareholding in the Company. The Nomination Form 
(SH-13) can be downloaded from the Company's 
website, www.bharatbijlee.com. Members holding 
shares in physical form should file their nomination 
with M/s Link Intime India Private Limited, Company's 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, whilst those 
Members holding shares in dematerialized mode 
should file their nomination with their Depository 
Participant(s). 

viii. The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 
mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities 
market. Members holding shares in electronic 
form are, therefore requested to submit the PAN 
to their Depository Participant(s) with whom they 
are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 
holding shares in physical form can submit their 
PAN details to the Company's Registrar and 
Transfer Agents. 

ix. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and 
Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 
closed from Thursday, June 21, 2018 to Thursday, 
June 28, 2018 (both days inclusive). 

x. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to promptly notify in writing any changes 
in their address / bank account details / e-mail 
address / mandates / nominations / power of attorney 
/ contact numbers etc., to Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 
Unit: Bharat Bijlee Limited, C-101, 247 Park, LBS 
Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400 083, Tel : +91 22 
49186000, Fax : +91 22 49186060. 

xi. Members holding shares in electronic form are 
requested to intimate immediately any changes 
pertaining to their address / bank account details / 
e-mail address / mandates, nominations / power of 
attorney / contact numbers etc., if any, directly to their 
Depository Participant(s) with whom they maintain 
their demat accounts. 

xii. Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby 
informed that bank particulars registered against their 
respective depository accounts will be used by the 
Company for payment of dividend(s). The Company 
or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime 
India Private Limited, cannot act on any request 
received directly from the Members holding shares 
in electronic form for any change of bank particulars 
or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised 
only to the respective depository participant of the 
Members. Members holding shares in physical form 
and desirous of either registering bank particulars or 
changing bank particulars already registered against 
their respective folios for payment of dividend(s) are 
requested to write to the Company. 

xiii. The payment of Dividend, as recommended by the 
Board of Directors, if declared at the 7 1 s t AGM, would 
commence from July 5, 2018, to those Members 
who hold shares in physical form and whose names 
appear on the Company's Register of Members as 
holders of Equity Shares on Wednesday, June 20, 
2018, and in respect of shares held in electronic form, 
to the Beneficial Owners of the shares as at the close 
of business hours on Wednesday, June 20, 2018, as 
per the details to be furnished by National Securities 
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited. 

xiv. In accordance with the provisions of Section 101 and 
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
relevant rules thereto, companies can serve Annual 
Reports and other communications through electronic 
mode to those Members who have registered their 
e-mail address either with the Company or with 
the Depository. Accordingly, the Notice of the AGM 
along with the Annual Report of the Company for 
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the financial year 2017-2018, Attendance Slip, Proxy 
Form and Route Map, is being sent by electronic 
mode to those Members who have registered 
their e-mail address with the Company (in respect 
of shares held in physical form) or with their DP 
(in respect of shares held in electronic form) unless 
any Members have requested for a physical copy 
of the same. For Members who have not registered 
their e-mail address, a physical copy of the said 
Annual Report and Notice is being sent through 
permitted mode. 

xv. To support 'Green Initiative', the Company requests 
those Members who have not yet registered their 
e-mail address, to register the same directly with 
their DP, in case shares are held in electronic form 
or with the Company, in case shares are held in 
physical form. 

xvi. The Notice of the 7 1 s t AGM, Attendance Slip, Proxy 
Form, Route Map and the Annual Report 2017-18 
circulated to the Members of the Company, 
will also be hosted on the Company's website at 
www.bharatbijlee.com and also on the website of the 
respective Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com 
and www.nseindia.com. 

xvii. In terms of the provisions of Section 107 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, since the resolutions as set out 
in this Notice are being conducted through remote 
e-Voting, the said resolutions will not be decided on 
a show of hands at the AGM. 

xviii. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer 
and Refund) Rules, 2016 ('IEPF Rules'), (including 
any statutory modification(s) / re-enactment(s) / 
amendment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), 
the dividend which remains unclaimed / unpaid for 
a period of seven (7) years from the date of transfer 
to the unpaid dividend account of the Company, is 
required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority ('IEPF') of the Central 
Government. Also, according to the IEPF Rules, the 
Shares in respect of which dividend has not been 
paid / claimed by the Shareholders for seven (7) 
consecutive years or more, is required to be 
transferred to demat IEPF account created by the 
IEPF Authority. 

Further, in compliance with the provisions laid down in 
IEPF Rules, the Company had sent notices and also 
advertised in the newspapers seeking action from 

Shareholders who have not claimed their dividends 
for seven (7) consecutive years or more. Accordingly, 
Company has transferred all corresponding equity 
shares for the financial year ended March 31 , 2010, 
on which dividend was not encashed / remained 
unclaimed, to the Demat Account of the IEPF, the due 
date of which was November 30, 2017 (as per the 
Notification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
dated October 16, 2017). It may please be noted that 
no claim shall lie against the Company in respect 
of share(s) transferred to IEPF pursuant to the 
said Rules. 

However, the Shareholders are entitled to claim 
their equity shares including all the corporate 
benefits accruing on such shares, if any, from the 
IEPF Authority by submitting an online application 
in Form IEPF-5 and sending a physical copy of the 
Form IEPF-5 duly signed by all the joint shareholders, 
if any, as per the specimen signature recorded 
with the Company along with requisite documents 
enumerated in the Form IEPF-5, to the Company's 
RTA. The Rules and Form IEPF-5, as prescribed, for 
claiming back the shares, are available on the website 
of the IEPF, i.e., on www.iepf.gov.in. It may please be 
noted that no claim shall lie against the Company in 
respect of share(s) transferred to IEPF pursuant to the 
said Rules. 

Members are informed that the unclaimed dividend for 
the financial year March 31 , 2011 shall be transferred 
to the IEPF established by the Central Government by 
the last week of July, 2018. Members who have not 
claimed the dividends declared for the financial year 
March 31 , 2011 were notified to lodge their claim on 
or before May 30, 2018 with the Company's Registrar 
and Transfer Agents at the address mentioned in 
the Annual Report. The Company has already sent 
reminders to all such Members at their registered 
address in this regards. 

Further, all the shareholders who had not encashed/ 
claimed their dividends in the last seven (7) 
consecutive years from 2010-2011 were notified 
to claim the same by May 30, 2018. In case valid 
claim is not received by that date, the Company 
will proceed to transfer the respective shares to the 
IEPF Account in terms of the IEPF Rules. In this 
regard, the Company has individually informed the 
shareholders concerned and also published notice in 
the newspapers as per the IEPF Rules. The details 
of such shareholders and shares due for transfer are 
uploaded on the "Investors Relations Section" of the 
website of the Company viz. www.bharatbijlee.com. 
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The details of the Shareholders whose equity shares 
had been transferred to the Demat Account of the 
IEPF is available on the website of the Company, i.e., 
on www.bharatbijlee.com. 

xix. Voting through electronic means 

I n compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, as amended from time-to-time and Regulation 
44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Regulations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on 
General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India (Revised w.e.f. 
October 1, 2017), the Company is pleased to provide 
to its Members, facility to exercise their right to 
vote on the resolutions proposed to be considered 
at the ensuing 7 1 s t AGM, by electronic means. 
The Members may cast their votes using "remote 
e-voting" (e-voting from place other than venue of 
the Annual General Meeting) facility to exercise their 
right to vote on all matters listed in this Notice, by 
electronic means. 

For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) for facilitating remote e-voting to 
enable all its Members to cast their vote electronically. 

The instruct ions for e-voting are as under: 

a. Members holding shares in physical form or 
in demat form as on Wednesday, June 20, 
2018, the cut-off date shall only be eligible 
for e-voting. A person, whose name is 
recorded in the register of Members or in the 
register of beneficial owners maintained by 
the depositories as on the cut-off date only 
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote 
e-voting. 

b. The remote e-voting period wi l l commence 
at 9.00 a.m. on Monday, June 25, 2018 and 
wil l end at 5.00 p.m. on Wednesday, June 27, 
2018. During this period the eligible Members 
of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, may 
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting 
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter. 

c. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting 
website www.evotingindia.com. 

d. Click on Shareholders / Members. 

e. Now Enter your User ID 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 

8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form 

should enter Folio Number registered 
with the Company. 

f. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed 
and Click on Login. 

g. I f you are holding shares in demat form and 
had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 
and voted on an earlier voting of any company, 
then your existing password is to be used. 

h. If you are a first time user follow the steps given 
below: 

F o r M e m b e r s h o l d i n g s h a r e s i n D e m a t F o r m 
a n d P h y s i c a l F o r m 

PAN Enter y o u r 10 d ig i t a l p h a - n u m e r i c PAN i s s u e d 
by I n c o m e Tax D e p a r t m e n t ( A p p l i c a b l e for 
b o t h d e m a t s h a r e h o l d e r s as w e l l as p h y s i c a l 
s h a r e h o l d e r s ) 

• M e m b e r s w h o h a v e n o t u p d a t e d the i r PAN 
w i t h t h e C o m p a n y / D e p o s i t o r y Pa r t i c i pan t a re 
r e q u e s t e d t o u s e t h e s e q u e n c e n u m b e r w h i c h 
is p r i n t e d o n A t t e n d a n c e S l i p i n d i c a t e d i n t h e 
PAN field. 

D i v i d e n d 
B a n k Deta i l s 
O R 
Date of B i r th 
( D O B ) 

Enter t h e D i v i d e n d B a n k Deta i ls or Da te of B i r th 
(in d d / m m / y y y y f o r m a t ) as r e c o r d e d in y o u r d e m a t 
a c c o u n t or in t h e c o m p a n y r e c o r d s t o l o g i n . 

• If t h e de ta i l s a re n o t r e c o r d e d w i t h t h e 
d e p o s i t o r y o r c o m p a n y p l e a s e en te r 
t h e M e m b e r I D / F o l i o N u m b e r in t h e 
D i v i d e n d B a n k de ta i l s field as m e n t i o n e d in 
i n s t r u c t i o n (e) 

i. After entering these details appropriately, click 
on "SUBMIT" tab. 

j . Members holding shares in physical form will 
then directly reach the Company selection 
screen. However, members holding shares in 
demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' 
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily 
enter their login password in the new password 
field. Kindly note that this password is to be 
also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they 
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts 
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with 
any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. 
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k. For Members holding shares in physical form, 
the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 

l. Click on the EVSN of 'Bharat Bijlee Limited' on 
which you choose to vote. 

m. On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION" and against the same the 
option "YES/NO" for voting. Select the option 
YES or NO as desired. The option YES 
implies that you assent to the Resolution and 
option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 

n. Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you 
wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

o. After selecting the resolution you have decided 
to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation 
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm 
your vote, click on "OK", else to change your 
vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly 
modify your vote. 

p. Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the 
resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 

q. You can also take out print of the voting done 
by you by clicking on "Click here to print" 
option on the Voting page. 

r. If Demat account holder has forgotten the 
changed login password then Enter the User 
ID and the image verification code and click 
on Forgot Password & enter the details as 
prompted by the system. 

s. Shareholders can also cast their vote using 
CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for 
android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can 
be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple 
and Windows phone users can download the 
app from the App Store and the Windows 
Phone Store. Please follow the instructions as 
prompted by the mobile app while voting on 
your mobile. 

t. Note for Non-Individual Shareholders and 
Custodians 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other 
than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 
Custodian are required to log on to 
www.evotingindia.com and register 
themselves as Corporates. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form 
bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@ 
cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a 
compliance user should be created 
using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance user would be able to 
link the account(s) for which they wish to 
vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login 
should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@ 
cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts they would be able to cast 
their vote. 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution 
and Power of Attorney (POA) which they 
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if 
any, should be uploaded in PDF format 
in the system for the scrutinizer to verify 
the same. 

General Instruct ions: 

(i) The voting rights of Members shall be in 
proportion of their shares in the total paid-up 
equity share capital of the Company as on 
Wednesday, June 20, 2018, being the cut-off 
date. 

(ii) The facility for voting through ballot shall also 
be made available at the AGM and Members 
attending the meeting who have not cast 
their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to 
exercise their voting right at the AGM. 

(iii) The Members who have casted their votes by 
remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also 
attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to 
cast their vote again. 

(iv) Any Person who acquires shares of the Company 
and becomes a Member of the Company after 
dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as 
of the cutoff date i.e., Wednesday, June 20, 
2018, may obtain the login id and password by 
sending a request to Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 
Unit: Bharat Bijlee Limited, C-101, 247 Park, 
LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400 083, 
Tel: +91 22 49186000, Fax:+91 22 49186060. 

(v) In case you have any queries or issues 
regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual 
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available at www.evotingindia.com under help 
section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@ 
cdslindia.com. 

(vi) The letter of appointment of representative(s) 
of the President of India or the Governor of 
a State; or the authorization in respect of 
the Corporations shall be received by the 
Scrutinizer / Company on or before close of 
remote e-voting. 

(vii) Mr. Navnitlal L. Bhatia (Membership Number: 
FCS 1176, CoP Number: 422) or failing him 
Mr. Bharat Upadhyay (Membership Number: 
FCS 5436, CoP Number: 4457) or failing 
him Mr. Bhaskar Upadhyay (Membership 
Number: FCS 8663, CoP Number: 9625 ), of 
Messrs N. L. Bhatia & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries has been appointed 
by the Company to act as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

(viii) The Chairman shall, at the end of discussion 
on the resolutions on which voting is to be 
held, allow voting with the assistance of the 
Scrutinizer, by use of ballot paper for all those 
Shareholders who are present at the AGM but 
have not cast their votes by availing the remote 
e-voting facility. 

(ix) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the 
conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the 
votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock 
the votes cast through remote e-voting in 
presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in 
the employment of the Company and shall 
within a period not exceeding forty eight (48) 
hours from the conclusion of the meeting 
make a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of 
the total votes cast in favour or against each 
of the resolutions as set out in this Notice, if 
any, and submit the same to the Chairman 
or a person authorized by him in writing, for 
counter signature. 

(x) The Results shall be declared by the Chairman, 
or a person authorized by the Chairman. The 
Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's 
Report shall be immediately placed on the 
Company's website viz., www.bharatbijlee. 

com and on the website of CDSL, viz., 
www.evotingindia.com, and will be 
communicated to BSE Limited and National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited, where the 
shares of the Company are listed. The result 
will also be posted on the notice board of the 
Company at the registered office. 

(xi) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their Shareholding maintained 
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in 
which Directors are interested under Section 189 
of the Companies Act, 2013 will be kept open 
for inspection at the AGM. All documents 
referred to in this Notice and Statement setting 
out material facts will be available for inspection 
by the Members at the Registered Office of the 
Company between 10.00 a.m. and 12 noon on 
all working days except Saturdays, Sundays 
and national holidays, from the date hereof up 
to the date of the 7 1 s t AGM. 

(xii) For security reasons and for proper conduct of 
the Meeting, entry to the place of the Meeting 
will be regulated by the Attendance Slip, which 
is annexed to the Proxy Form. Members / 
Proxies are requested to bring their Attendance 
Slip complete in all respects and signed at the 
place provided there at and hand it over at 
the entrance of the venue. 

(xiii) Members desiring any information relating 
to the annual accounts of the Company are 
requested to write to the Company Secretary 
at the Registered Office address or by sending 
an email to investorcare@bharatbijlee.com, at 
least 10 days before the AGM, to enable the 
Company to keep the information ready at 
the Meeting. 

(xiv) As per the Secretarial Standard-2 (SS-2) on 
'General Meetings', a Route Map showing 
direction to reach the venue of the 7 1 s t Annual 
General Meeting is given at the end of 
this Notice. 

MEMBERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN ELECTRONIC 
FORM AND PROXIES THEREOF, ARE REQUESTED 
TO BRING THEIR DP ID AND CLIENT ID FOR 
IDENTIFICATION. 
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Explanatory Statement sett ing out material facts under 
Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Item No. 4 

In pursuance of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014, (including any amendment(s), modification(s), 
variation or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), the Board of Directors of the Company shall 
appoint an individual who is a cost accountant in practice 
or a firm of cost accountants in practice, as Cost Auditor, 
on the recommendations of the Audit Committee. The 
remuneration recommended by Audit Committee shall be 
considered and approved by the Board of Directors and 
ratified by the Members. 

On the recommendation of Audit Committee at its meeting 
held on Thursday, May 10, 2018, the Board has considered 
and approved appointment of Messrs P.M. Nanabhoy & 
Co., Cost Accountants, for the conduct of the Cost Audit 
of the Company's various products for the financial year 
2018-2019, at remuneration as mentioned in the resolution 
forming part of this Notice. 

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought to the 
Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice as an 
Ordinary Resolution for approval and ratification. 

None of the Directors and / or Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company and / or their relatives are concerned or 
interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out 
at Item No. 4. 

By Order of the Board 

Durgesh N. Nagarkar 
Company Secretary & 

Senior General Manager: Legal 

ACS 5777 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 10, 2018 

Registered Office: 
Electric Mansion, 6 t h Floor 
Appasaheb Marathe Marg, 
Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025 
CIN: L31300MH1946PLC005017 
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BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTOR BEING APPOINTED/RE-APPOINTED AT THE FORTHCOMING 7 1 s t ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015) 

1. Mr. Ravishanker Prasad: 

Name of the Director Mr. Ravishanker Prasad 

Date of Birth February 4, 1956 

Date of Appointment on the Board January 22, 2014 

Qualification Mr. Prasad has a Bachelor's Degree in Arts and Law. 

Brief profile & nature of his expertise in 
specific functional areas 

Mr. Prasad has vast experience in marketing, finance, administration 
and insurance business. 

Directorship held in other companies Mr. Prasad is not a Director on the board of any other Company 

Membership / Chairmanships of committees 
across all other companies 

Mr. Prasad is not a Member / Chairman of any Committee across all 
other companies. 

Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors in 
the Company 

Mr. Prasad does not hold any shares in the Company. 

Relationships between Directors inter-se Mr. Prasad is not related to any of the Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel or their relatives in the Company. 

By Order of the Board 
Durgesh N. Nagarkar 
Company Secretary & 

Senior General Manager: Legal 
ACS 5777 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 10, 2018 

Registered Office: 
Electric Mansion, 6 t h Floor 
Appasaheb Marathe Marg, 
Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025 
CIN: L31300MH1946PLC005017 

1 o 
12 



BlBharat Bijlee Annual Report 2017-2018 

Route Map to the venue of 71 s t Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, June 28, 2018. 

M a r i n e D r i v e M u m b a i 
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS 

The Directors are pleased to present their 7 1 s t Annual 
Report on the business and operations of the Company 
together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year 
ended March 31 , 2018. 

GENERAL OUTLOOK OF INDUSTRY AND ECONOMY: 

The previous year has seen a lot of disturbances in the 
business environment especially after demonetization and 
GST rollout. As GST related operational issues get sorted 
over time, we expect a gradual recovery in economic 
activity. While the demand-supply position still remains 
unfavorable, we continue to focus on volume growth 
without substantially compromising the margins. This is 
important to maintain our market position while we wait for 
a meaningful revival of capital expenditure cycle. 

We continue to focus on building our order book and 
customer connect while simultaneously working on 
enhancing on our internal capabilities to capitalize on the 
next business cycle. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 
in Lakhs) 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 

2 0 1 8 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t Ma rch , 

2017 

Revenue f r om opera t ions 78 ,980 .95 74,970.35 

Other I ncome 2,116.88 2,673.19 

81 ,097 .83 77,643.54 

Profit before Interest & Financial Charges , 
Deprec ia t ion , Except iona l i tems a n d Tax 

5,449.61 4,387.92 

Less : Interest a n d F inanc ia l Charges 1,928.27 1,594.82 

Less : Deprec ia t ion 931.44 987.42 

Profit before Except ional i tems and Tax 2,589.90 1,805.68 

A d d : Except ional i tems 4677 .92 0.00 

Profit before Tax 7,267.82 1,805.68 

Less: Provis ion for Taxation 1,171.06 363.86 

Profit after Taxation 6,096.76 1,441.82 

A d d : Profit B rough t Forward 5,341.71 3,800.60 

A d d : Other Comprehens i ve Income 
ar is ing f r om remeasurement of 
Def ined Benefi t Plan (net of tax) 68.80 99.29 

Pro f i t C a r r i e d F o r w a r d 11,507.27 5,341.71 

Previous year's figures have been regrouped for comparison 
purposes with current year's presentation wherever 
necessary. 

DIVIDEND: 
In line with the improved financial performance as 
compared to previous three (3) financial years, your 
Directors are pleased to recommended a dividend of ? 2.50 
(Rupees Two and Paise Fifty ) (25%) (Previous year NIL) 
per equity share of ? 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, for 
the financial year 2017-2018. The dividend, if approved 
by the Members at the 7 1 s t Annual General Meeting will 
result in the total dividend appropriation of ? 170.33 
lakhs including dividend distribution tax of ? 29.04 lakhs 
(Previous year NIL). 

OPERATIONS: 
The Company had to maintain its operations amidst 
disruptions caused by GST implementation and mandatory 
shift to IE2 (High Efficiency) electric motors from earlier 
IE1 (Standard Efficiency) electric motors. Private spending 
and investment relating to capital goods did not show any 
remarkable recovery during the year. 

Income from Sales and Services (Net of Excise duty) for the 
Company increased from ? 67,747.33 lakhs in the previous 
year to ? 77,399.06 lakhs, a rise of 14%. With continued 
focus on deeper market penetration and value engineering, 
the profit before exceptional items and tax improved 
from ? 1,805.68 lakhs in the previous year to ? 2,589.90 
lakhs. During the year, an exceptional income before tax 
of ? 4677.92 lakhs accrued to the Company on surrender 
of a part of its leasehold factory land at Navi Mumbai to 
Maharashtra Industrial Development Corporation for a 
public road project. 

FINANCE: 
Increase in sales, GST and elongated working capital 
cycle caused negative cash flows from operations and 
caused an increase of ? 333.45 lakhs in finance cost for 
the year. The Company managed enough lines of credit 
to ensure a smooth flow of operations. The free Reserves 
of the Company as on March 3 1 , 2018 increased by 
? 6,165.56 lakhs to ? 35,978.64 lakhs. 

During the year, ? 9.67 lakhs was transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund. 

HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEE RELATIONS: 
There is an ongoing emphasis on building a progressive 
Human Resources culture within the Organisation. 
Structured initiatives to nurture talent and create a working 
environment that fosters motivation, team-work and result 
orientation continue to be addressed. Productivity level 
continued to be subject to continuous monitoring. 

Employee strength as on March 31 , 2018 was 1,603 as 
compared to 1,540 in the previous year. 
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SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
The Company has no Subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associate 
Companies during the Financial year ending March 31 , 
2018. Accordingly, a statement under the provisions of 
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, containing 
salient features of the financial statements of the Company's 
subsidiary(ies) in Form AOC-1 is not enclosed. 

DEPOSITS: 
The Company has not accepted/renewed any fixed 
deposits from the public or the Members, within the 
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, 
during the financial year 2017-2018, and, as such, no 
amount of principal or interest on deposits from public 
or the Members, was outstanding as of the Balance 
Sheet date. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, 
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND TILL 
THE DATE OF THIS REPORT: 
Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Board's Report, no 
material changes and commitments which could affect 
the Company's financial position have occurred since the 
close of the financial year, i.e., March 3 1 , 2018 till the date 
of this Board's Report. Further, it is hereby confirmed that 
there has been no change in the nature of business of 
the Company. 

DISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements as designed and implemented by the Company 
are adequate and commensurate with the size, scale 
and complexity of its operation. The internal controls are 
tested for adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness through 
audits by the in-house internal audit department and 
the observations, corrective and preventive actions are 
reviewed by the management and Audit Committee of the 
Board of Directors. 

During the financial year under review, no material or 
serious observation has been received from the Internal 
Auditors of the Company for inadequacy or ineffectiveness 
of such controls. 

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS: 
Your Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards 
('Ind AS') with effect from April 1, 2017. Financial Statements 
for the year ended March 31 , 2018 have been prepared 
in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2016, the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2017 read with Section 133 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Previous periods 
figures have been re-stated to confirm to Ind AS, for 
comparative information. 

Note No. 2.24 to the financial statement provides further 
explanation on the transition to Ind AS. 

GOODS AND SERVICES TAX (GST) 
Goods and Service Tax (GST) came into effect from July 
1, 2017 through the implementation of One Hundred and 
First Amendment of the Constitution of India. The tax 
replaced existing multiple cascading taxes levied by the 
Central and State Governments. 

Your Company has successfully implemented and 
migrated to GST followed by the changes across various 
departments/operations of the Company. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL: 

There are no significant and/or material orders passed by 
the Regulator(s) or Court(s) or Tribunal(s) impacting the 
going concern status of the Company and its business 
operations in future. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT 
WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the 
Company during the financial year 2017-2018, with related 
parties, as defined under Section 188 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and as per the 
applicable provisions of Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as "the Listing 
Regulations"), were in the ordinary course of business 
and on arm's length basis. Further no material related 
party transactions were entered during the Financial Year 
under review, by your Company. Accordingly, disclosure 
of related party transactions as required under Section 
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form AOC-2, 
is not applicable to your Company. 

Further, all such contracts/arrangements/transactions were 
placed before the Audit Committee and Board, for their 
approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee/ 
Board is obtained on an annual basis, which is reviewed 
and updated on quarterly basis. 

Your Company has formulated a policy on Related Party 
Transactions, which is also available on the website of the 
Company, www.bharatbijlee.com. 
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Your Directors draw attention of the Members to 
Note No. 35.2 of Financial Statements which sets out 
disclosures on related parties and transactions entered into 
with them during the financial year under review. 

shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme 
pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) 
of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 
and hence no information has been furnished. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE, INVESTMENTS 
AND SECURITIES: 
Particulars of loans, guarantees, investments and securities 
provided during the financial year under review, covered 
under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, have been provided in the Financial Statements 
which forms part of this Annual Report. (Please refer Note 
Nos. 5, 8, 10 and 12 to the Financial Statements). 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS/ADVANCES/INVESTMENTS 
AS REQUIRED UNDER THE LISTING REGULATIONS: 

The details of related party disclosures with respect to 
loans/advances/investments at the year end and maximum 
outstanding amount thereof during the year, as required 
under [Part A of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations have 
been provided in the notes to the Financial Statements of 
the Company. (Please refer Note Nos. 5, 8, 10 and 12 to the 
Financial Statements)]. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 43(a)(ii) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

The Company has not issued any shares with differential 
rights and hence no information as per provisions of 
Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 has 
been furnished. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 54(1)(d) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares 
during the financial year under review and hence no 
information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act 
read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014 has been furnished. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 62(1)(b) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
The Company has not issued any equity shares under 
Employees Stock Option Scheme during the financial year 
under review and hence no information as per provisions 
of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 has 
been furnished. 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

During the financial year under review, there were no 
instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL: 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of 
the Company, Mr. Ravishanker Prasad (DIN 06641845), 
Non-Executive Director, being longest in the office, shall 
retire by rotation at the ensuing 7 1 s t Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

During the period under review, Mr. Shome N. Danani 
(DIN 00217787) was re-appointed as a Whole-time Director, 
designated as "Executive Director" of the Company, for 
a period of three (3) years w.e.f. January 28, 2017, at 
the 70th Annual General Meeting of Members held on 
June 30, 2017. His re-appointment and remuneration 
is in terms of Section 196, 197, 198, 200 and 203 read 
with Section II Part II, of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Except as explained hereinabove, there were no changes in 
Directorship of the Company as well as in Key Managerial 
Personnel category during the period under review. As 
on March 31 , 2018, your Company has Nine (9) Directors 
consisting of four (4) Independent Directors, Three (3) 
Executive Directors and Two (2) Non-Executive Directors, 
including one (1) Woman Director. 

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified 
under the provisions of Section 164(2)(a) and (b) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

During the period under review, no Non-Executive Director 
of the Company had any pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with the Company. 

Further, necessary resolutions relating to Directors who 
are seeking re-appointment, as required under Regulation 
36 of the Listing Regulations/SS-2, is disclosed as part of 
the Notice dated May 10, 2018 of the ensuing 7 1 s t Annual 
General Meeting. 

As for the requirement under the provisions of Section 203 
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors noted 
that Mr. Nikhil J. Danani (DIN: 00056514), Managing 
Director, Mr. Nakul P Mehta (DIN: 00056561), Managing 
Director, Mr. Shome N. Danani (DIN: 00217787), Executive 
Director, Mr. Durgesh N. Nagarkar, Company Secretary 
and Mr. Sandeep M. Tilak, Chief Financial Officer, are the 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on the date 
of this Board's Report. 
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DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the 
Listing Regulations, the Company has received individual 
declarations from all the Independent Directors, whose 
names are appended herein below, confirming that they 
fulfill the criteria of independence as prescribed under 
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules made there under to hold the office of Independent 
Director of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31 , 2018. 

1. Mr. Prakash V. Mehta; 

2. Mr. Sanjiv N. Shah; 

3. Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker; & 

4. Mr. Rajeshwar R. Bajaaj 

There has been no change in the circumstances which 
may affect their status as Independent director during the 
financial year under review. 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD: 
A notice of the Board Meeting is circulated well in advance 
with the Agenda, including detailed explanation to be 
discussed, to enable the Board to take an informed decision. 
The Board met five (5) times during the financial year ended 
March 31 , 2018 viz., on May 19, 2017, June 30, 2017, 
August 24, 2017, November 24, 2017 and January 24, 2018, 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations. 
Detailed information on the Board Meetings with regard to 
their dates and attendance of each of the Directors thereat 
have been included in the Corporate Governance Report, 
which forms part of this Board's Report. 

Additionally, during the financial year ended March 31 , 
2018 a separate meeting of the Independent Directors 
was convened on January 24, 2018, in compliance 
with the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) and 25(4) of the 
Listing Regulations. However, since half the number of 
Directors were not present, it was adjourned and held on 
March 31 , 2018. 

Post the Independent Directors Meeting, the collective 
feedback of each of the Independent Director was scaled 
and measured on defined ratings, thereby covering the 
performance of Board as a whole, performance of the non-
independent directors and performance of the Chairman. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

An Audit Committee as constituted by the Board of Directors 
of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, comprises 
Independent Directors, namely: 

1. Mr. Sanjiv N. Shah (Chairman) (Din: 00007211); 
2. Mr. Prakash V. Mehta (Member) (DIN: 00001366); and 
3. Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker (Member) (DIN: 00108552). 

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee 
during the financial year under review were accepted by 
the Board. The terms of reference of Audit Committee 
and other details are included in the Corporate 
Governance Report. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC') as 
constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 178(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, comprises: 

1. Mr. Sanjiv N. Shah (Chairman) (Din: 00007211); 
2. Mr. Prakash V. Mehta (Member) (DIN: 00001366); and 
3. Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker (Member) (DIN: 00108552) 

Further the NRC has formulated necessary policy 
on appointment and remuneration including criteria 
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of a Director. The details of "Nominations 
and Remuneration Policy" are explained in the Report on 
Corporate Governance along with the other details, which 
forms part of this Board's Report and are also available on 
the website of the Company, www.bharatbijlee.com. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
The Stakeholder Relationship Committee ('SRC') as 
constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company, 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, comprises: 

1. Mr. Prakash V. Mehta (Chairman) (Din: 00001366); 

2. Mr. Sanjiv N Shah (Member) (DIN: 00007211); 
3. Mr. Nikhil J. Danani (Member) (DIN: 00056514); and 
4. Mr. Nakul P. Mehta (Member) (DIN: 00056561) 

The detailed terms of reference and other information 
about the Committee has been provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE: 
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 
comprises of 

1. Mr. Nakul P Mehta (Chairman) (DIN: 00056514); 
2. Mr. Shome N. Danani (Member) (DIN: 00217787); 

and 
3. Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker (Member) (DIN: 00108552). 
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The CSR Policy of your Company as approved by the 
Board of Directors' is hosted on the Company's website, 
www.bharatbijlee.com. 

The frequency of CSR Committee meetings is decided 
by the Chairman and Members of the committee, with a 
minimum frequency of once a year. Over the last financial 
year under review, the CSR Committee has met once, i.e., 
on January 24, 2018, wherein all the three (3) Members 
were present. 

The Annual Report on CSR activities as required under 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, 
including a brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy, total 
amount to be spent under CSR Policy for the financial 
year 2017-2018, amount unspent and the reason for the 
unspent amount, is set out at Annexure I, forming part of 
this Board's Report. 

EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEE AND 
BOARD: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors has carried 
out evaluation of its own performance, its Committees 
and individual Directors. The evaluation process has 
been explained in the Report on Corporate Governance, 
which forms part of this Board's Report. 

Also, the Independent Directors, at their meeting held on 
March 31 , 2018 reviewed the performance of the Board, 
its Chairman and Non-Executive Directors of the Company. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

Risk Management is an enterprise wide function that 
aims at assessing threats to business sustainability and 
mitigating those threats. The Board of Directors along with 
the senior management of the Company, having deep 
industry experience has developed and approved Risk 
Management Policy framework and Guidelines, wherein 
all material risks faced by the Company are identified and 
assessed. Moreover in the said Risk Management Policy 
the Board has defined a structured approach to manage 
uncertainty, cultivating the same in their decision making 
pertaining to all business divisions and corporate functions. 
For each of the risks identified, corresponding controls are 
assessed and policies and procedures are put in place for 
monitoring, mitigating and reporting on periodic basis. 

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(9) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, a "Vigil 
Mechanism Policy" for Directors and employees of the 
Company is in place, to report their genuine concern of 

any violations of legal or regulatory requirements, incorrect 
or misrepresentation of any financial statements and 
reports, unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or 
violation of the Company's code of conduct etc. During the 
financial year under review, no employee has been denied 
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Also, 
Whistle blower complaints, if any and their redressal are 
discussed at the meeting of Audit Committee of the Board. 
During the financial year under review, no such complaints 
were received. 

The details of "Vigil Mechanism Policy" are available on the 
website of the Company (http://www.bharatbijlee.com. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT 
WORKPLACE 
Your Company has zero tolerance policy in case of sexual 
harassment at workplace and is committed to provide 
a healthy environment to each and every employee of 
the Company. The Company has in place 'Policy for 
Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment' in line 
with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 
(hereinafter referred as "the said Act") and Rules made there 
under. As per the provisions of Section 4 of the said Act, the 
Board of Directors has constituted the Internal Complaints 
Committee ('ICC') at the Registered Office, Works and at 
all the Regional Offices of the Company to deal with the 
complaints received by the Company pertaining to gender 
discrimination and sexual harassment at workplace. 

The ICC has been constituted covering the offices at 
Mumbai/Navi Mumbai, consisting of the following Members: 

Sr. 
No. 

N a m e o f Of f i ce r D e s i g n a t i o n P o s i t i o n in 
C o m m i t t e e 

1. Ms . Aart i Madhanka r Genera l Manager, 
H u m a n Resources 

Pres id ing 
Officer 

2. Mr. Durgesh N. Nagarkar C o m p a n y Secretary & 
Sen io r Genera l Manager 

M e m b e r 

3. Mr. Nit in R. Rathod Genera l Manager, 
E m p l o y e e Relat ions 

M e m b e r 

4. Ms . Anjal i Ranade Sen ior Manager, Des ign M e m b e r 

5. M s . Renu Rao Genera l Manager , 
Bus iness So lu t ions 
( Information Technology) 

M e m b e r 

Also, each branch of the Company, has its own ICC 
consisting of officers from Serial no. 1, 3 and 4, as 
mentioned herein above, along with two more members 
employed at the branches, one of them consisting of a 
woman employed in those respective branches. 

During the financial year under review, your Company 
appointed a reputed agency to design the awareness 
programme in line with the said Act. With the help of 
this agency, HR Division conduced various sessions in 
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batches for sensitizing our employees with the provision of 
the said Act. 

Further, as per the provisions of Section 21 & 22 of the 
said Act, the Report on the details of the number of cases 
filed under Sexual Harassment and their disposal for the 
financial year under review, is as under: 

Sr. No. o f c a s e s No. o f c o m p l a i n t s No. o f c a s e s 
No. p e n d i n g as o n t h e filed d u r i n g the p e n d i n g as o n 

b e g i n n i n g o f t h e financial yea r t he e n d o n the 
financial yea r u n d e r r e v i e w financial yea r 
u n d e r r e v i e w u n d e r r e v i e w 

1. Nil Nil Nil 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
In terms of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors hereby 
confirms that: 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures; 

b. such accounting policies have been selected and 
applied consistently and the Directors have made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31 , 2018 and 
of the Profit and Loss of the Company for the year 
ended on that date; 

c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d. the annual accounts of the Company have been 
prepared on a going concern basis; 

e. internal financial controls have been laid down to 
be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; 

f. proper systems have been devised to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively. 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED EQUITY SHARES TO 
INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
(IEPF) DEMAT ACCOUNT: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 

2016 ('IEPF Rules'), (including any statutory modification(s)/ 
re-enactment(s)/amendment(s) thereof, for the time being 
in force), the dividend which remains unclaimed/unpaid for 
a period of seven (7) years from the date of transfer to the 
unpaid dividend account of the Company, is required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority ('IEPF') established by the Central Government. 
Also, according to the IEPF Rules, the shares in respect 
of which dividend has not been paid/claimed by the 
Shareholders for seven (7) consecutive years or more, 
shall also be transferred to demat account created by the 
IEPF Authority. 

Further, in compliance with the provisions laid down in 
IEPF Rules, the Company had sent notices and also 
advertised in the newspapers seeking action from 
Shareholders who have not claimed their dividends for 
seven (7) consecutive years or more. Accordingly, for 
the financial year ended March 3 1 , 2010, the Company 
has transferred all corresponding equity shares on which 
dividend remained unclaimed for a period of seven (7) 
years, to the Demat Account of the IEPF, the due date 
of which was November 30, 2017 (as per the Notification 
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, dated October 16, 
2017). It may please be noted that no claim shall lie against 
the Company in respect of share(s) transferred to IEPF 
pursuant to the said Rules. 

However, the Shareholders are entitled to claim their shares 
including all the corporate benefits accruing on such shares, 
if any, from the IEPF Authority by submitting an online 
application in Form IEPF-5 and sending a physical copy of 
the Form IEPF-5 duly signed by all the joint shareholders, 
if any, as per the specimen signature recorded with the 
Company along with requisite documents enumerated 
in the Form IEPF-5, to the Company's RTA. The Rules 
and Form IEPF-5, as prescribed, for claiming back the 
shares, are available on the website of the IEPF, i.e., on 
www.iepf.gov.in. 

Members who have not claimed the dividends declared for 
the financial year March 3 1 , 2011 were notified to lodge 
their claim on or before May 30, 2018, with the Company's 
Registrar and Transfer Agents at the address mentioned 
in the Annual Report. The Company has already sent 
reminders to all such Members at their registered address 
in this regards. 

Further, all the shareholders who have not claimed their 
dividends in the last seven (7) consecutive years from 
2011 were notified to claim the same by May 30, 2018. In 
case valid claim is not received by that date, the Company 
will proceed to transfer the respective shares to the IEPF 
Account in terms of the IEPF Rules. In this regard, the 
Company has individually informed the shareholders 
concerned and also published notice in the newspapers 
as per the IEPF Rules. It may please be noted that no 
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claim shall lie against the Company once such share(s)/ 
dividend transferred to IEPF demat account, pursuant to the 
said Rules. 

The Statement containing details of Name, Address, 
Folio No., Demat Account No. and No. of shares due 
for transfer to IEPF demat Account is made available on 
www.bharatbijlee.com. 

The Shareholders are therefore encouraged to verify their 
records and claim their dividends, if not claimed. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION: 
Information as required under the provisions of Section 
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s)/amendment(s)/re-enactment thereof, for the 
time being in force), is set out in Annexure II hereto, which 
forms part of this Board's Report. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
As stipulated under the provisions of Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V (C) of the Listing Regulations, a 
separate Report on Corporate Governance enclosed as 
Annexure V, forms integral part of this Board's Report. 
Your Company is committed to transparency in all its 
dealings and places high emphasis on business ethics. 
The requisite Compliance Certificate as required under 
Part E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, issued by 
Messrs N. L. Bhatia and Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries, Mumbai, Secretarial Auditors of the Company, 
pertaining to the compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance, is annexed. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MDA) 
REPORT: 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (B) of 
the Listing Regulations, a separate report on Management 
Discussion and Analysis ('MDA') forms part of this 
Annual Report. 

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT: 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 139 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s)/re-enactment(s)/ 
amendment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Messrs 
Deloitte Haskins & Sells, LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm 
Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) were appointed as 
Statutory Auditors at the 70 t h Annual General Meeting of 
the Company held on June 30, 2017, to hold office for a 
term of five (5) consecutive years from the conclusion of 
the 70 t h Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 

75 t h Annual General Meeting, subject to the ratification at 
the Annual General Meeting in each of the subsequent 
years during the aforementioned term of their appointment. 

However, with the Notification dated May 7, 2018 issued by 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA'), the first proviso to 
section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to 
the requirement of annual ratification of appointment of 
Auditors by Members is omitted. 

Accordingly, as per the Companies (Amendment) Act, 
2017, ratification of the appointment of Statutory Auditors 
during their period of appointment will not be considered. 

OBSERVATIONS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31 , 2018: 
The Auditor's report given by Messrs Deloitte Haskins & Sells, 
LLP, Statutory Auditors, on the Financial Statements of the 
Company, for the year ended March 31, 2018, forms part of 
the Annual Report. There has been no qualification, reservation 
or adverse remark or any Disclaimer in their Report. 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS: 
There have been no frauds reported by the Auditors, under 
sub section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(including amendments), during the financial year under 
review, to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors 
and hence, as such there is nothing to report by the Board 
under Section 134 (3)(ca) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON 
BOARD AND GENERAL MEETING: 
Pursuant to Clause 9 of the Revised Secretarial Standard-1 
(SS-1), your Company has complied with applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, during the Financial Year under review. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your 
Company had appointed Messrs N. L. Bhatia & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai (Firm Registration 
No.: P1996MH055800), as its Secretarial Auditor to conduct 
the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 
2017-2018. 

The Report on Secretarial Audit for the financial year 
2017-2018, in Form MR-3, as Annexure VI, forms integral 
part of this Board's Report. There has been no qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark or any Disclaimer in 
their Report. 

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, on 
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board 
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of Directors appointed Messrs N. L. Bhatia & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai, (Firm Registration 
No.: P1996MH055800), as the Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company for the financial year 2018-2019. The Company 
has received their consent for the said appointment. 

COST AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Amendment Rules, 2014 (including any amendment(s), 
modification(s), variation or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force), and as per the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at their 
meeting dated May 10, 2018, have appointed Messrs P. 
M. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration 
No.: 000012), as the Cost Auditors of the Company, for 
the financial year 2018-2019, to audit the cost records of 
Electric Motors, Power Transformers, Drives and Magnet 
Technology Machines. A resolution for ratification of the 
payment to be made for such appointment is included in 
the Notice of the ensuing 7 1 s t Annual General Meeting. 

A Certificate from Messrs P M. Nanabhoy & Co., has been 
received to the effect that their appointment as Cost Auditors 
of the Company, if made, would be in accordance with the 
limits specified under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules framed there under. 

For the financial year ending March 31 , 2017, the due 
date of filing the Cost Audit Report submitted by Messrs. 
P. M. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants, Mumbai, was 
September 23, 2017 and the same was filed with the MCA 
on September 22, 2017. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Extract of the Annual Return 
for the financial year ended March 31 , 2018 made under 

the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, is attached as Annexure III, 
which forms part of this Board's Report. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO: 
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 
134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of 
conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo etc. are furnished in 
Annexure IV which forms part of this Board's Report. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

Employee relations throughout the Company were 
harmonious. The Board wishes to place on record its 
appreciation to all employees in the Company, for their 
sustained efforts and immense contributions to the good 
levels of performance and growth that your Company has 
achieved during the financial year under review. 

Your Directors also place on record their sincere 
thanks and appreciation for the continuing support and 
assistance received from the financial institutions, banks, 
Government as well as non-government authorities, 
customers, vendors, stock exchange and members during 
the financial year under review. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prakash V. Mehta 
DIN 00001366 

Chairman 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 10, 2018 
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ANNEXUREI 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 

1. A brief outline of the CSR policy adopted by the Company, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web- link to the CSR policy and projects and programs: 
The Company has formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy stated in the link mentioned below 
pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Notification dated February 27 t h , 2014, issued by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs under the said Section. 

The framework of our CSR policy rests on principles of: 
— Empowerment; 
— Environment; & 

— Employee Participation. 

The following are the areas of emphasis for CSR activities under the CSR policy: 

a. The activities carried out under this CSR policy will be in the areas of health, education, livelihood/income generation 
and environment. 

b. These activities will be carried out in partnership with registered NGOs and Trusts who are already working in the 
respective fields. 

c. Monthly reports will be provided to the CSR committee and also annual consolidated report. 

d. Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects/programmes/activities, if any, shall not form part of business profits. 

Web-link to the CSR Policy: http://www.bharatbijlee.com/media/1200/csr-policy.pdf 

2. the composition of the CSR Committee: 
The CSR Committee comprises of the following members: 

a. Mr. Nakul P. Mehta (Chairman); 
b. Mr. Shome N. Danani (Member); 
c. Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker (Member). 

3. Average Net profit/^oss) of the Company for last three financial years: 

The Company has incurred average net loss of ? 1,742.42 lakhs for the last three (3) financial years. 

4. prescribed CSR expenditure (two percent of the amount as per item 3 above): 

The Company is not required to spend any amount in view of average net loss during the last three financial years. 

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year: 
a. Total amount to be spent for the financial year: NIL 
b. Amount unspent if any: N.A. 

c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year under review, is detailed below: 

Sr. CSR Project Sector in Project or Amount outlay Amount Cumulative Amount 
No. or activity which the programs (budget) project spent expenditure spent Direct 

identified project is (1) Local area or or programs on the up to the or through 
covered other wise projects or reporting implementing 

(2) Specify the programs period agency 
state and sub 
district where heads: 
projects or 
programs was 
undertaken 

1. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 
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6. in case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part 
thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report: 
The Chairman of the CSR Committee, at its meeting held on January 24, 2018, brought to the notice of the Members 
that the Company has incurred an average net loss of ? 1,742.42 for the last three (3) financial years. 

Accordingly in absence of average Net Profits for the three (3) immediately preceding financial years, the provision 
pertaining to spending 2% of average net profits on CSR activities is not applicable to the Company for the financial year 
2017-2018 and hence it was recommended by the CSR Committee not to incur any expenditure on the CSR activity in 
the financial year 2017-2018. 

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy is in compliance with 
CSR objectives and policy of the Company: 
The CSR Committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy has been carried out with 
all reasonable care and diligence and the same is in compliance with the CSR objectives and the policy of the company. 
However as explained in Item no. 6 above, no amount was spent on CSR activities in view of average net loss of the last 
three financial years. 

N I K H I L J . D A N A N I N A K U L p. M E H T A 

DIN: 00056514 DIN: 00056561 
Vice Chairman and Managing Director Vice Chairman and Managing Director 

(Chairman of CSR Committee) 

Date : May 10, 2018 
Place : Mumbai 
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1. Disclosure in Board's Report as per the provis ions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read wi th Rule 5(1) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remunerat ion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended) 

Sr. Disclosure Requirement Disclosure Details 
No. 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to Name of the Directors Category Ratio 

the median remuneration of the employees of the Mr. Nikhil J. Danani Vice Chairman & Managing Director 24.89 
Company for the financial year Mr. Nakul P Mehta Vice Chairman & Managing Director 24.89 

Mr. Shome N. Danani Executive Director 18.18 

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each 
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 

Name of the Directors Category % increase in 
remuneration 

Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in 
the financial year 

Mr. Nikhil J. Danani Vice Chairman & Managing Director -Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in 
the financial year Mr. Nakul P Mehta Vice Chairman & Managing Director -

Mr. Shome N. Danani Executive Director -
Mr. Durgesh N. Nagarkar Company Secretary 6.47% 
Mr. Sandeep M. Tilak Chief Financial Officer 5.75% 

3. The percentage increase in the median The median remuneration of the employees of the Company in the financial year 
remuneration of employees in the financial year 2017-2018 is ? 4,81,066/-

The median remuneration of the employees for the year under review increased by 
1.28% compared to previous financial year. 

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls There were 905 permanent employees of Bharat Bijlee Limited as on March 31, 2018. 
of Company 

5. Average percentile increase already made For the employees other than managerial personnel who were in employment the 
in the salaries of employees other than the whole of FY 2016-2017 and FY 2017-2018, the average increase is 6.23%. 
managerial personnel in the last financial year 
and its comparison with the percentile increase 

Average increase for managerial personnel is 6.02%. 

in the managerial remuneration and justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration 

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company 

Yes 

2. Statement Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read wi th Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment 
And Remunerat ion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended) 

Name of employee Designation of 
employee/Nature 
of employment, 
whether contractual 
or otherwise 

Qualification and 
experience of the 
employee 

Date of 
commencement 
of employment 

Age of 
such 
employee 

Last employment 
held by such 
employee before 
joining the 
Company 

% of equity 
shares 
held by the 
employee in 
the Company 

Remuneration 
(Amount in ?) 

Nikhil J. Danani Vice Chairman & 
Managing Director 

B.E. (Mech.) M.B.A. 
(Rutgers University, 
USA) 

02.05.1975 69 I.B.M. New Jersey; 
Research Assistant 
6 months 

6.01 1,20,00,000/-

Nakul P Mehta Vice Chairman & 
Managing Director 

B.Sc. B.S. Mech. 
Engg.; M. S. Engg., 
Mechanical 

30.04.1984 60 NIL 3.31 1,20,00,000/-

Mr. Nikhil J. Danani and Mr. Shome N. Danani are related to each other. 
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As on financial year ended on March 3 1 , 2018 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

C I N L 3 1 3 0 0 M H 1 9 4 6 P L C 0 0 5 0 1 7 

R e g i s t r a t i o n D a t e J u n e 2 2 , 1946 

N a m e o f t h e C o m p a n y Bhara t B i j lee L i m i t e d 

C a t e g o r y / S u b - C a t e g o r y o f t h e C o m p a n y Pub l i c C o m p a n y L im i t ed by S h a r e s 

A d d r e s s o f t h e R e g i s t e r e d o f f i c e a n d c o n t a c t d e t a i l s Elect r ic M a n s i o n , 6 t h Floor, A p p a s a h e b M a r a t h e M a r g , 
P r a b h a d e v i , M u m b a i - 4 0 0 0 2 5 
T e l e p h o n e No . : + 9 1 2 2 2 4 3 0 6 2 3 7 
Fax No . : + 9 1 2 2 2 4 3 7 0 6 2 4 
W e b s i t e : w w w . b h a r a t b i j l e e . c o m 
Ema i l i d : b b l c o r p o r a t e @ b h a r a t b i j l e e . c o m 

W h e t h e r l i s t e d c o m p a n y Yes 

N a m e , A d d r e s s a n d C o n t a c t d e t a i l s o f R e g i s t r a r a n d 
T r a n s f e r A g e n t , i f a n y : 

L ink In t ime Ind ia Pr iva te L i m i t e d 
C - 1 0 1 , 2 4 7 Park, L B S M a r g , 
V i kh ro l i (Wes t ) , M u m b a i 4 0 0 0 8 3 , 
Tel . : + 9 1 2 2 4 9 1 8 6 0 0 0 , 
Fax.: + 9 1 2 2 4 9 1 8 6 0 6 0 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sr. 
N o . 

N a m e a n d D e s c r i p t i o n o f m a i n 
p r o d u c t s / s e r v i c e s 

N I C C o d e o f t h e 
p r o d u c t / s e r v i c e 

% t o t o t a l t u r n o v e r 
o f t h e C o m p a n y 

1. E lec t r ic M o t o r s 2 7 9 0 0 3 4 % 

2. T r a n s f o r m e r s 2 7 9 0 0 5 8 % 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sr. 
N o . 

N a m e a n d a d d r e s s o f 
t h e C o m p a n y 

C I N / G L N H o l d i n g / s u b s i d i a r y / 
a s s o c i a t e 

% o f s h a r e s h e l d A p p l i c a b l e s e c t i o n 

1. No t A p p l i c a b l e 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break-up as percentage of Total Equity): 
i. Category-wise Share Holding: 

C a t e g o r y o f 
S h a r e h o l d e r s 

N o . o f S h a r e s h e l d a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 

N o . o f S h a r e s h e l d a t t h e 
e n d o f t h e y e a r % 

C h a n g e 
d u r i n g 

t h e y e a r 

C a t e g o r y o f 
S h a r e h o l d e r s 

D e m a t P h y s i c a l T o t a l % o f 
T o t a l 

S h a r e s 

D e m a t P h y s i c a l T o t a l % o f 
T o t a l 

S h a r e s 

% 
C h a n g e 

d u r i n g 
t h e y e a r 

A . P r o m o t e r s 

(1 ) I n d i a n 

a) I n d i v i d u a l / H U F 7 2 1 3 2 5 - 7 2 1 3 2 5 12 .77 7 0 8 3 0 2 - 7 0 8 3 0 2 12 .53 (0 .24) 

b) Cen t ra l G o v t - - - - - - - - -

c ) S ta te Gov t ( s ) - - - - - - - - -

d ) B o d i e s C o r p . 1 1 9 1 4 9 2 - 1 1 9 1 4 9 2 2 1 . 0 8 1 1 9 2 4 9 2 - 1 1 9 2 4 9 2 2 1 . 1 0 0 .02 

e) B a n k s / F I - - - - - - - - -

f) A n y o t h e r - - - - - - - - -

S u b - t o t a l ( A ) ( 1 ) : 1 9 1 2 8 1 7 - 1 9 1 2 8 1 7 3 3 . 8 5 1 9 0 0 7 9 4 - 1 9 0 0 7 9 4 3 3 . 6 3 (0.22) 

25 

http://www.bharatbijlee.com
mailto:bblcorporate@bharatbijlee.com


Annual Report 2017-2018 

C a t e g o r y o f 
S h a r e h o l d e r s 

N o . o f S h a r e s h e l d a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 

N o . o f S h a r e s h e l d a t t h e 
e n d o f t h e y e a r 

% 
C h a n g e 

d u r i n g 
t h e y e a r 

C a t e g o r y o f 
S h a r e h o l d e r s 

D e m a t P h y s i c a l T o t a l % o f 
T o t a l 

S h a r e s 

D e m a t P h y s i c a l T o t a l % o f 
T o t a l 

S h a r e s 

% 
C h a n g e 

d u r i n g 
t h e y e a r 

(2 ) F o r e i g n 

a) NRIs - I nd i v i dua l s - - - - - - - - -

b) O t h e r - I nd i v i dua l s - - - - - - - - -

c ) B o d i e s C o r p . - - - - - - - - -

d ) B a n k s / F I - - - - - - - - -

e) A n y o t h e r - - - - - - - - -

S u b - t o t a l ( A ) ( 2 ) : - - - - - - - - -

T o t a l s h a r e h o l d i n g o f P r o m o t e r 

(A ) = ( A ) ( 1 ) + ( A ) ( 2 ) 1 9 1 2 8 1 7 - 1 9 1 2 8 1 7 3 3 . 8 5 1 9 0 0 7 9 4 - 1 9 0 0 7 9 4 3 3 . 6 3 ( 0 . 2 2 ) 

B. P u b l i c 

S h a r e h o l d i n g 

(1) I n s t i t u t i o n s 

a) M u t u a l F u n d s / U T I 4 7 3 2 8 - 4 7 3 2 8 0 .84 2 1 0 9 2 8 - 2 1 0 9 2 8 3 .73 2 .89 

b) V e n t u r e Cap i ta l F u n d s - - - - - - - - -

c) A l t e r n a t e I n v e s t m e n t F u n d s - - - - - - - - -

d) F o r e i g n V e n t u r e Cap i ta l 

I nves to rs 
- - - - - - - - -

e) F o r e i g n Por t fo l io Inves to r 6 4 0 0 0 8 0 0 6 4 8 0 0 1.15 2 6 4 1 4 - 2 6 4 1 4 0 .47 (0.68) 

f) F I / B a n k s 1 3 2 9 1 9 5 6 0 1 3 3 4 7 9 2 .36 109971 5 6 0 1 1 0 5 3 1 1.96 (0.40) 

g ) I n s u r a n c e C o m p a n i e s 6 9 8 7 0 9 - 6 9 8 7 0 9 12 .36 6 9 8 7 0 9 - 6 9 8 7 0 9 12 .36 -

h) P r o v i d e n t F u n d s / P e n s i o n 

F u n d s 
- - - - - - - - -

i) A n y O t h e r ( spec i f y ) - - - - - - - - -

S u b - t o t a l ( B ) ( 1 ) : 9 4 2 9 5 6 1360 9 4 4 3 1 6 16.71 1 0 4 6 0 2 2 5 6 0 1 0 4 6 5 8 2 18 .52 1.81 

(2) C e n t r a l G o v e r n m e n t / S t a t e 

G o v e r n m e n t ( s ) / P r e s i d e n t 

o f I n d i a 

1 7 4 8 7 1 7 4 8 7 0.31 0.31 

S u b - t o t a l ( B ) ( 2 ) : - - - - 1 7 4 8 7 - 1 7 4 8 7 0.31 0.31 

(3) N o n - I n s t i t u t i o n s 

a) I nd i v i dua l s 

i) I nd i v i dua l s h a r e h o l d e r s 

h o l d i n g n o m i n a l s h a r e 

cap i t a l u p t o ? 2 l akh 

1 8 5 3 1 4 2 8 7 5 9 4 1 9 4 0 7 3 6 3 4 . 3 4 1 7 4 3 0 6 7 7 7 9 0 9 1 8 2 0 9 7 6 3 2 . 2 2 (2.12) 

ii) I nd i v i dua l s h a r e h o l d e r s 

h o l d i n g n o m i n a l s h a r e 

cap i t a l in e x c e s s o f ? 2 l akh 

1 7 4 3 9 3 1 7 4 3 9 3 3 .09 6 9 6 4 0 6 9 6 4 0 1.23 (1.86) 

b) N B F C s r e g i s t e r e d w i t h RBI - - - - - - - - -

c ) E m p l o y e e T rus ts - - - - - - - - -

d ) O v e r s e a s D e p o s i t o r i e s 

( h o l d i n g DRs) ( b a l a n c i n g 

figure) 
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C a t e g o r y o f 
S h a r e h o l d e r s 

N o . o f S h a r e s h e l d a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 

N o . o f S h a r e s h e l d a t t h e 
e n d o f t h e y e a r 

% 
C h a n g e 

d u r i n g 
t h e y e a r 

C a t e g o r y o f 
S h a r e h o l d e r s D e m a t P h y s i c a l T o t a l % o f 

T o t a l 
S h a r e s 

D e m a t P h y s i c a l T o t a l % o f 
T o t a l 

S h a r e s 

% 
C h a n g e 

d u r i n g 
t h e y e a r 

e) A n y o t h e r (Spec i f y ) 

T rus ts 1100 - 1100 0 .02 100 - 100 0 .00 (0 .02) 

H i n d u U n d i v i d e d Fami l y 1 0 4 8 6 6 - 1 0 4 8 6 6 1.86 1 3 3 1 8 4 - 1 3 3 1 8 4 2 .36 0 .50 

N o n - R e s i d e n t I n d i a n s 

( N o n - R e p a t ) 5 7 0 5 0 5 7 0 5 0 1.01 5 7 1 2 7 5 7 1 2 7 1.01 

Non -Res iden t Ind ians (Repat) 7 5 9 4 8 - 7 5 9 4 8 1.34 3 9 4 1 1 - 3 9 4 1 1 0 .70 (0 .64) 

C l e a r i n g M e m b e r 6 4 8 2 2 - 6 4 8 2 2 1.15 2 5 0 7 0 - 2 5 0 7 0 0 .44 (0 .71) 

B o d i e s C o r p o r a t e 3 7 4 4 5 2 1060 3 7 5 5 1 2 6 .64 5 4 0 1 2 9 1060 5 4 1 1 8 9 9 .58 2 .94 

S u b - t o t a l ( B ) ( 3 ) : 2 7 0 5 7 7 3 8 8 6 5 4 2 7 9 4 4 2 7 4 9 . 4 5 2 6 0 7 7 2 8 7 8 9 6 9 2 6 8 6 6 9 7 4 7 . 5 4 (1.91) 

T o t a l P u b l i c S h a r e h o l d i n g 

(B ) = ( B ) ( 1 ) + ( B ) ( 2 ) + ( B ) ( 3 ) 3 6 4 8 7 2 9 9 0 0 1 4 3 7 3 8 7 4 3 6 6 . 1 5 3 6 7 1 2 3 7 7 9 5 2 9 3 7 5 0 7 6 6 6 6 . 3 7 0 .22 

T o t a l (A ) + ( B ) 5 5 6 1 5 4 6 9 0 0 1 4 5 6 5 1 5 6 0 1 0 0 . 0 0 5 5 7 2 0 3 1 7 9 5 2 9 5 6 5 1 5 6 0 1 0 0 . 0 0 -

(C) N o n - P r o m o t e r - N o n - P u b l i c 

1) C u s t o d i a n / D R H o l d e r - - - - - - - - -

2) E m p l o y e e Bene f i t T rus t 

( u n d e r S E B I ( S h a r e 

b a s e d E m p l o y e e Benef i t ) 

R e g u l a t i o n s , 2 0 1 4 ) 

G r a n d T o t a l ( A + B + C ) | 5 5 6 1 5 4 6 | 9 0 0 1 4 | 5 6 5 1 5 6 0 | 1 0 0 . 0 0 | 5 5 7 2 0 3 1 | 7 9 5 2 9 | 5 6 5 1 5 6 0 | 1 0 0 . 0 0 1 -

ii. Shareholding of Promoters: 

Sr. 

N o . 

S h a r e h o l d e r ' s N a m e S h a r e h o l d i n g a t t h e 

b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 

S h a r e h o l d i n g a t t h e 

e n d o f t h e y e a r 
% c h a n g e 

i n s h a r e ¬

h o l d i n g 

d u r i n g t h e 

y e a r 

Sr. 

N o . 

S h a r e h o l d e r ' s N a m e 

N o . o f 

S h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 

S h a r e s 

o f t h e 

C o m p a n y 

% o f S h a r e s 

P l e d g e d / 

e n c u m b e r e d 

t o t o t a l 

s h a r e s 

N o . o f 

S h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 

S h a r e s 

o f t h e 

C o m p a n y 

% o f S h a r e s 

P l e d g e d / 

e n c u m b e r e d 

t o t o t a l 

s h a r e s 

% c h a n g e 

i n s h a r e ¬

h o l d i n g 

d u r i n g t h e 

y e a r 

1. Mr. N ikh i l J . D a n a n i 3 2 3 4 0 4 5 .72 Nil 3 3 9 5 1 9 6.01 Nil 0 .29 

2. Mr. N a k u l P M e h t a 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 Nil 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 Nil -

T o t a l 5 1 0 2 3 4 9 . 0 3 N i l 5 2 6 3 4 9 9 . 3 2 N i l 0 . 2 9 

iii. Change in Promoters' Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change): 

S h a r e h o l d i n g a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

C u m u l a t i v e S h a r e h o l d i n g 
d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

Sr. 
N o . 

D a t e N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

1 . Mr . N i k h i l J . D a n a n i 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 3 2 3 4 0 4 5 .72 - 3 2 3 4 0 4 5 .72 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in 
S h a r e h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r 
s p e c i f y i n g t h e r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / 
d e c r e a s e (e .g . a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / 
b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

0 4 . 0 8 . 2 0 1 7 1 6 1 1 5 0 .29 In ter -se 
Trans fe r 

3 3 9 5 1 9 6.01 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 3 3 9 5 1 9 6.01 - 3 3 9 5 1 9 6.01 

0~7 
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S h a r e h o l d i n g a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

C u m u l a t i v e S h a r e h o l d i n g 
d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

Sr. 
N o . 

D a t e N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

2 . Mr . N a k u l P. M e h t a 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 - 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in 
S h a r e h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r 
s p e c i f y i n g t h e r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / 
d e c r e a s e (e .g . a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / 
b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o C h a n g e N o C h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 - 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 

iv. Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders as on March 31, 2018 (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 
GDRs and ADRs): 

Sr. 
N o . 

F o r e a c h o f t h e 
T o p 1 0 S h a r e h o l d e r s 

S h a r e h o l d i n g a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 2 0 1 8 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

C u m u l a t i v e S h a r e h o l d i n g 
d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

Sr. 
N o . 

F o r e a c h o f t h e 
T o p 1 0 S h a r e h o l d e r s 

D a t e N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

1 . L i f e I n s u r a n c e C o r p o r a t i o n o f I n d i a 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 4 4 9 9 1 1 7 .96 - 4 4 9 9 1 1 7 .96 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o C h a n g e N o C h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 4 4 9 9 1 1 7 .96 - 4 4 9 9 1 1 7 .96 

2 . D a n m e t C h e m i c a l s P v t . L i m i t e d 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 4 5 9 7 7 7 8 .14 - 4 5 9 7 7 7 8 .14 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o C h a n g e N o C h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 4 5 9 7 7 7 8 .14 - 4 5 9 7 7 7 8 .14 

3. G a y a t r i E d u c a t i o n M e d i c a l a n d R e s e a r c h 
F o u n d a t i o n P v t L t d 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 4 5 0 1 6 5 7 .97 - 4 5 0 1 6 5 7 .97 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o C h a n g e N o C h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 4 5 0 1 6 5 7 .97 - 4 5 0 1 6 5 7 .97 

4 . N a s i v a n I n v e s t m e n t s P r i v a t e L i m i t e d 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 2 8 1 5 5 0 4 .98 - 2 8 1 5 5 0 4 .98 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

0 8 . 1 1 . 2 0 1 7 1000 0 .02 T rans fe r 2 8 2 5 5 0 5 .00 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 2 8 2 5 5 0 5 .00 - 2 8 2 5 5 0 5 .00 

n o 
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Sr. 
N o . 

F o r e a c h o f t h e 
T o p 1 0 S h a r e h o l d e r s 

S h a r e h o l d i n g a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 2 0 1 8 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

C u m u l a t i v e S h a r e h o l d i n g 
d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

Sr. 
N o . 

F o r e a c h o f t h e 
T o p 1 0 S h a r e h o l d e r s 

D a t e N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

5. A d i t y a B i r l a S u n L i f e T r u s t e e P r i v a t e 
L i m i t e d A / C A d i t y a B i r l a S u n L i f e P u r e 
V a l u e F u n d 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 4 7 0 7 8 0 .83 - 4 7 0 7 8 0 .83 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

2 2 . 1 2 . 2 0 1 7 2 8 8 4 1 0.51 T rans fe r 7 5 9 1 9 1.34 Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

2 9 . 1 2 . 2 0 1 7 3 0 0 0 0 0 .54 T rans fe r 1 0 5 9 1 9 1.88 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 0 5 . 0 1 . 2 0 1 8 5 0 0 0 0 .08 T rans fe r 1 1 0 9 1 9 1.96 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

1 2 . 0 1 . 2 0 1 8 3 3 3 3 1 0 .59 T rans fe r 1 4 4 2 5 0 2 .55 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

1 9 . 0 1 . 2 0 1 8 3 8 0 0 0 0 .67 T rans fe r 1 8 2 2 5 0 3 .22 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

0 2 . 0 2 . 2 0 1 8 6 0 0 0 .02 T rans fe r 1 8 2 8 5 0 3 .24 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

0 9 . 0 2 . 2 0 1 8 1 8 5 0 0 0 .32 T rans fe r 2 0 1 3 5 0 3 .56 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

1 6 . 0 2 . 2 0 1 8 3 0 0 0 0 .06 T rans fe r 2 0 4 3 5 0 3 .62 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

0 2 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 4 2 0 0 0 .07 T rans fe r 2 0 8 5 5 0 3 .69 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

0 9 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 2 1 2 8 0 .04 T rans fe r 2 1 0 6 7 8 3 .73 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 2 1 0 6 7 8 3 .73 - 2 1 0 6 7 8 3 .73 

6. G e n e r a l I n s u r a n c e C o r p o r a t i o n o f I n d i a 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 1 7 2 7 7 0 3 .06 - 1 7 2 7 7 0 3 .06 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o C h a n g e N o C h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 7 1 7 2 7 7 0 3 .06 - 1 7 2 7 7 0 3 .06 

7. H o u s i n g D e v e l o p m e n t F i n a n c e 
C o r p o r a t i o n L i m i t e d 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 1 2 2 4 8 0 2 .17 - 1 2 2 4 8 0 2 .17 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

30.06.2017 (140) 0.01 Transfer 122340 2.16 Date w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

07.07.2017 (23683) 0.31 Transfer 98657 1.75 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 9 8 6 5 7 1.75 - 9 8 6 5 7 1.75 

8. N a t i o n a l I n s u r a n c e C o m p a n y L t d 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 7 6 0 2 8 1.35 - 7 6 0 2 8 1.35 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 7 6 0 2 8 1.35 - 7 6 0 2 8 1.35 

9. R u n n e r M a r k e t i n g P v t . L t d . 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 - - - - -

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

2 3 . 0 6 . 2 0 1 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 .18 T rans fe r 1 0 0 0 0 0 .18 Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

3 0 . 0 6 . 2 0 1 7 1 5 0 0 0 0 .26 T rans fe r 2 5 0 0 0 0 .44 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 0 9 . 0 2 . 2 0 1 8 3 0 0 0 0 0 .53 T rans fe r 5 5 0 0 0 0 .97 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 5 5 0 0 0 0 .97 - 5 5 0 0 0 0 .97 

HQ 
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Sr. 
N o . 

F o r e a c h o f t h e 
T o p 1 0 S h a r e h o l d e r s 

S h a r e h o l d i n g a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 2 0 1 8 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

C u m u l a t i v e S h a r e h o l d i n g 
d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

Sr. 
N o . 

F o r e a c h o f t h e 
T o p 1 0 S h a r e h o l d e r s 

D a t e N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

10 . V i b g y o r I n v e s t o r s a n d D e v e l o p e r s 
P v t . L t d . 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 5 5 0 0 0 0 .97 - 5 5 0 0 0 0 .97 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 5 5 0 0 0 0 .97 - 5 5 0 0 0 0 .97 

v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

S h a r e h o l d i n g a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

C u m u l a t i v e S h a r e h o l d i n g 
d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

Sr. 
N o . 

F o r e a c h o f t h e 
D i r e c t o r s a n d K M P 

D a t e N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

1 . Mr . N i k h i l J . D a n a n i 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 3 2 3 4 0 4 5 .72 - 3 2 3 4 0 4 5 .72 

Date w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t he y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t equ i t y etc.) 

0 4 . 0 8 . 2 0 1 7 1 6 1 1 5 0 .29 In ter -se 
T rans fe r 

3 3 9 5 1 9 6.01 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 3 3 9 5 1 9 6.01 - 3 3 9 5 1 9 6.01 

2 . Mr . N a k u l P. M e h t a 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 - 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d o f t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 - 1 8 6 8 3 0 3.31 

3. S h o m e N. D a n a n i 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 2 8 9 8 0 .05 - 2 8 9 8 0 .05 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d o f t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 2 8 9 8 0 .05 - 2 8 9 8 0 .05 

4 . P r a k a s h V. M e h t a 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 3 2 5 0.01 - 3 2 5 0.01 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d o f t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 3 2 5 0.01 - 3 2 5 0.01 

o n 
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S h a r e h o l d i n g a t t h e 
b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

C u m u l a t i v e S h a r e h o l d i n g 
d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

Sr. 
N o . 

F o r e a c h o f t h e 
D i r e c t o r s a n d K M P 

D a t e N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

R e a s o n s f o r 
I n c r e a s e / 
D e c r e a s e 

N o . o f 
s h a r e s 

% o f t o t a l 
s h a r e s 

o f t h e 
C o m p a n y 

5. S a n j i v N. S h a h 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 4 5 6 0 0 .08 - 4 5 6 0 0 .08 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 4 5 6 0 0 .08 - 4 5 6 0 0 .08 

6. J a i r a j C . T h a c k e r 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d o f t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

7. R a v i s h a n k e r P r a s a d 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d o f t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

8. M a h n a z A . C u r m a l l y 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d o f t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

9. R a j e s h w a r R. B a j a a j 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

10 . D u r g e s h N . N a g a r k a r 

At t h e b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s for i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

1 1 . S a n d e e p M . T i l a k 

A t t h e b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 0 1 . 0 4 . 2 0 1 7 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

Da te w i s e I n c r e a s e / D e c r e a s e in S h a r e 
h o l d i n g d u r i n g t h e y e a r s p e c i f y i n g t h e 
r e a s o n s fo r i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e (e .g . 
a l l o t m e n t / t r a n s f e r / b o n u s / s w e a t e q u i t y e tc ) 

N o c h a n g e 

A t t h e e n d of t h e y e a r 3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 8 Nil Nil - Nil Nil 

Q. 1 
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II. INDEBTEDNESS: 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment. 

in lakhs) 

P a r t i c u l a r s S e c u r e d L o a n s 
( e x c l u d i n g d e p o s i t s ) 

U n s e c u r e d 
L o a n s 

D e p o s i t s 

I n d e b t e d n e s s at t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e financial y e a r 

i) P r inc ipa l A m o u n t 2 , 8 7 8 . 0 4 14 ,879 .35 17 ,757 .39 

ii) In te res t d u e b u t n o t p a i d - - -

iii) In te res t a c c r u e d b u t n o t d u e - 5 0 . 3 9 5 0 . 3 9 

T o t a l ( i + i i + i i i ) 2 , 8 7 8 . 0 4 1 4 , 9 2 9 . 7 4 1 7 , 8 0 7 . 7 8 

C h a n g e in I n d e b t e d n e s s d u r i n g t h e financial y e a r 

• A d d i t i o n 8 , 5 9 9 . 6 8 8 2 , 0 7 2 . 3 9 9 0 , 6 7 2 . 0 7 

• R e d u c t i o n 8 , 0 0 3 . 0 6 7 8 , 9 2 9 . 7 4 8 6 , 9 3 2 . 8 0 

N e t C h a n g e 5 9 6 . 6 2 3 , 1 4 2 . 6 5 3 , 7 3 9 . 2 7 

I n d e b t e d n e s s at t h e e n d of t h e financial y e a r 

i) P r inc ipa l A m o u n t 3 , 4 6 7 . 5 6 17 ,997 .00 2 1 , 4 6 4 . 5 6 

ii) In te res t d u e b u t n o t p a i d - - -

iii) In te res t a c c r u e d b u t n o t d u e 7 .10 7 5 . 3 9 8 2 . 4 9 

T o t a l ( i + i i + i i i ) 3 , 4 7 4 . 6 6 1 8 , 0 7 2 . 3 9 2 1 , 5 4 7 . 0 5 

III. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

I I Name of MD/WTD/Manager 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Nikhil J. 
Danani 

(Managing 
Director) 

Mr. Nakul P. 
Mehta 

(Managing 
Director) 

Mr. Shome N. 
Danani 

(Executive 
Director) 

Total 
Amount 

1 Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained 

in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

60,00,000 60,00,000 39,00,000 1,59,00,000 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

60,00,000 60,00,000 48,75,000 1,68,75,000 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - -

2 Stock Option - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -

4 Commission - - - -

- as % of profit - - - -
- others, specify - - - -

5 Others, please specify - - - -

Total (A) 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000 87,75,000 3,27,75,000 

Ceiling as per the Act 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000 3,60,00,000 
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B. Remuneration to other Directors: 

Sr. 
N o . 

P a r t i c u l a r s o f R e m u n e r a t i o n 
N a m e o f D i r e c t o r s 

T o t a l 
A m o u n t 

Sr. 
N o . 

P a r t i c u l a r s o f R e m u n e r a t i o n 
Mr. P r a k a s h V. 

M e h t a 
Mr . S a n j i v N. 

S h a h 
Mr . J a i r a j C . 

T h a c k e r 
Mr . R a j e s h w a r 

R. B a j a a j 

T o t a l 
A m o u n t 

1 . I n d e p e n d e n t D i r e c t o r s 

Fee for a t t e n d i n g b o a r d / c o m m i t t e e m e e t i n g s 4 , 1 5 , 0 0 0 2 , 2 0 , 0 0 0 3 , 3 5 , 0 0 0 1,75,000 11 ,45 ,000 

C o m m i s s i o n - - - - -

O t h e r s , p l e a s e s p e c i f y - - - - -

T o t a l (1) 4 , 1 5 , 0 0 0 2 , 2 0 , 0 0 0 3 , 3 5 , 0 0 0 1 ,75 ,000 1 1 , 4 5 , 0 0 0 

2 . O t h e r N o n - E x e c u t i v e D i r e c t o r s Mr . R a v i s h a n k e r 
P r a s a d 

M s . M a h n a z A . 
C u r m a l l y 

Fee for a t t e n d i n g b o a r d / c o m m i t t e e m e e t i n g s 1,75,000 1,40,000 - - 3 , 1 5 , 0 0 0 

C o m m i s s i o n - - - - -

O t h e r s , p l e a s e s p e c i f y - - - - -

T o t a l (2) 1 , 7 5 , 0 0 0 1 ,40 ,000 - - 3 , 1 5 , 0 0 0 

T o t a l ( B ) = ( 1 + 2 ) 1 4 , 6 0 , 0 0 0 

T o t a l M a n a g e r i a l R e m u n e r a t i o n 3 , 4 2 , 3 5 , 0 0 0 

Overa l l C e i l i n g as pe r t h e A c t - - - - -

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD 

Sr. 
N o . 

P a r t i c u l a r s o f R e m u n e r a t i o n 
K e y M a n a g e r i a l P e r s o n n e l 

Sr. 
N o . 

P a r t i c u l a r s o f R e m u n e r a t i o n 
C o m p a n y 
S e c r e t a r y 

C F O T o t a l 

1. G r o s s sa la ry 

(a) Sa la r y as pe r p r o v i s i o n s c o n t a i n e d in s e c t i o n 17(1) of t h e 
I n c o m e - t a x Ac t , 1961 

3 5 , 5 4 , 7 6 4 5 9 , 6 8 , 5 3 5 9 5 , 2 3 , 2 9 9 

(b) V a l u e of p e r q u i s i t e s u/s 17(2) I n c o m e - t a x Ac t , 1961 1,43,974 14 ,723 1,58,697 

(c) Prof i ts in l ieu of sa la ry u n d e r s e c t i o n 17(3) I n c o m e t a x Ac t , 1961 - - -

2. S t o c k O p t i o n - - -

3. S w e a t Equ i t y - - -

4 . C o m m i s s i o n - - -

- a s % of p ro f i t - - -

- o t h e r s , s p e c i f y - - -

5. O t h e r s , p l e a s e s p e c i f y - - -

T o t a l 3 6 , 9 8 , 7 3 8 5 9 , 8 3 , 2 5 8 9 6 , 8 1 , 9 9 6 

IV. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
There were no penalties, punishments, compounding of offences for the financial year ended March 31 , 2018. 
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ANNEXURE IV 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 READ WITH RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES 
(ACCOUNTS), R U L E S , 2014 

(A) Conservat ion of energy: 

Steps taken or impact on 
conservat ion of energy 

1. 1 nstalled energy efficient scroll chiller 39TR for VPD in place of reciprocating chiller 
in T-1 VPD plant, resulted in Saving of Energy by 42,180 KWH / Annum. 

2. 1 nstalled 215 nos. of LED lamps of 18w, 60w and 100w in place of 28w T5 tube light, 
150w MHL and 250w MHL in shop floor and office area. Resulted in saving by 40,881 
KWH / Annum. 

3. Maintaining power factor of 0.99 to unity, resulted in saving ? 34.12 Lakhs/annum. 
4. Installed Induction bearing Heater in place of Bearing pressing hydraulic press 

resulted in saving of 17 KWh per day. 
5. 1 nstalled 3 No paint booth (Dry type) in place of paint booth (water type). 

6. 1 nstalled 4 No Demag make cranes in place of 6 No's jib crane in P2 assembly line. 
Resulted in saving of 6 KWh per day. 

7. 1 nstalled more energy efficient lights in place of less energy efficient /conventional 
lights resulted in saving of ? 0.7 Lakhs/Annum details are as below: 
(a) 1 nstalled 13 No LED lights 80W in place of 150W Metal halide (6No'S) and 96W 

Asian lights fitting (15No's) 
(b) 1 nstalled LED light in motor stores office in place of conventional light fittings 

(c) I nstalled LED 36W (07 No) in street lighting in place of Asian 96W light 
(d) Installed LED 80W (03 No) in canteen in place of 40W light fitting (14No). 

Steps taken by the 
Company for uti l izing 
alternate sources of energy 

Capital investment on 
energy conservat ion 
equipment 

• ? 7.5 Lakhs. For installing 39TR chilling plant for VPD. 
• Bearing Induction Machine: ? 4.00Lakhs. 
• Paint booth (Dry type) 3No: ? 7.40 Lakhs. 
• An investment of ? 1.18 Lakhs was made on energy conservation equipment by motor 

department. 

(B) Technology absorpt ion: 

Efforts made towards 
technology absorpt ion 

1. For fine vacuum application in transformer tank, mobile roots & rotary vacuum pump unit 
installed to improve quality & reduce cycle time. 

2. Exiting conventional paint gun replaced with Electrostatic paint gun. 
3. Existing wet type paint booth replaced with Dry type paint booth. 
4. 100kg Dynamic balancing computerized machine (ABRO make) installed. 

5. Replacement of LED light fitting in place of Conventional light fittings. 

Benefits derived like 
product improvement, 
cost reduct ion, product 
development or import 
subst i tut ion 

1. Quality improvement. 

2. Production lead time Reduced. 
3. EOHS requirement are met. 
4. Reduction in Hazardous waste. 

5. Reduction in maintenance cost from LED light fitting replacement. 
(80W LED Warranty of 5 years) and improvement illumination level on shop floor. 
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In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year): 

Details of technology 
imported 

-

Year of import -

Whether the technology 
has been ful ly absorbed 

-

If not ful ly absorbed, 
areas where absorpt ion 
has not taken place, and 
the reasons thereof 

Expenditure incurred 
on Research and 
Development 

? 7.0 Lakhs for purchase of EPDM Server & associated Software for data storage & analysis. 

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 

1 s t A p r i l , 2 0 1 7 t o 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

(Current F.Y.) 

1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 t o 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

A m o u n t 

i n l a k h s ) 

A m o u n t 
(? in l akhs ) 

A c t u a l F o r e i g n E x c h a n g e e a r n i n g s 9 4 7 . 1 5 7 1 5 . 5 3 

A c t u a l F o r e i g n E x c h a n g e o u t g o 2 , 9 6 5 . 7 2 2 , 2 4 4 . 8 4 
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ANNEXURE V 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

1. Company's Phi losophy on Corporate Governance: 

Your Company since its inception is committed to maintain its value systems developed over the years of Corporate 
fairness, transparency, accountability, disclosures, ethical practices and creating long term value for its stake holders 
based on the assumption that value based governance is a dynamic concept evolving over time and constantly adapting 
itself to the development of the Company and its stake holders. 

The Company is in compliance with all the requirements to the Corporate Governance of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations). 

2. Board of Directors & Board Meetings: 

a. Composi t ion: 

The Board consists of nine (9) Directors, out of which four (4) are Independent, two (2) are Non-Executive, 
including one woman Director and three (3) are Executive Directors, which is in conformity with the requirement 
of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations. The Chairman is an Independent Director. He is not a promoter 
nor related to promoters or to persons occupying management positions at Board level or at one level below the 
Board. The Non-Executive Directors account for 66.67% of the Board's strength against the minimum requirement 
of 50%. Independent Directors constitute 44.44% of the total strength of the Board as against one third (33.33%) 
required when the Chairman is a Non-Executive Director. The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors 
are all eminent professionals with experience in overall management, finance and law and have a wide range 
of skills and experience. The day to day operations of the Company are overseen by three Executive Directors, 
Mr. Nikhil J. Danani, Mr. Nakul P. Mehta (both Managing Directors), and Mr. Shome N. Danani (Whole-time Director, 
designated as Executive Director). 

Except two Managing Directors and one Whole-time Director, two Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors 
are liable to retire by rotation. In the ensuing 7 1 s t Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, June 28, 2018, 
Mr. Ravishanker Prasad (DIN 06641845), a Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director, liable to retire by rotation 
and being eligible, will be re-appointed. 

Mr. Shome N. Danani and Mr. Nikhil J. Danani are related to each other. None of the other Directors are related 
to any other Director. 

b. Board Meetings: 

In the Financial Year 2017-2018, five (5) Board of Directors' meetings were held on the following dates: 

1. May 19, 2017, 

2. June 30, 2017, 

3. August 24, 2017, 

4. November 24, 2017, and 

5. January 24, 2018 
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c. The composi t ion of the Board, Directorships/Membership of Committee of other Companies as on March 3 1 , 
2018, no. of meetings held and attended dur ing the financial year are as under: 

Sr. 
N o . 

N a m e of t h e 
D i rec to r 

C a t e g o r y of 
D i r e c t o r s h i p 

N o . o f 
B o a r d 
M t g s . 
a t t e n d e d 

A t t e n d a n c e 
at las t 
A G M h e l d 
o n 3 0 J u n e 
2 0 1 7 

N o . o f 
D i r e c t o r s h i p s 
o f o t h e r 
C o m p a n i e s 

M e m b e r s h i p o f 
C o m m i t t e e s of o t h e r 

C o m p a n i e s 

S i t t i ng F e e s 
for B o a r d / 

C o m m i t t e e 
m e e t i n g s 

? 

N o . of 
Equ i t y 

S h a r e s 
h e l d as o n 
M a r c h 3 1 , 

2 0 1 8 

Sr. 
N o . 

N a m e of t h e 
D i rec to r 

C a t e g o r y of 
D i r e c t o r s h i p 

N o . o f 
B o a r d 
M t g s . 
a t t e n d e d 

A t t e n d a n c e 
at las t 
A G M h e l d 
o n 3 0 J u n e 
2 0 1 7 

N o . o f 
D i r e c t o r s h i p s 
o f o t h e r 
C o m p a n i e s 

A s 
M e m b e r 

A s 
C h a i r m a n 

S i t t i ng F e e s 
for B o a r d / 

C o m m i t t e e 
m e e t i n g s 

? 

N o . of 
Equ i t y 

S h a r e s 
h e l d as o n 
M a r c h 3 1 , 

2 0 1 8 

1 . Mr. P r a k a s h V. 
M e h t a - C h a i r m a n 
(D IN 0 0 0 0 1 3 6 6 ) 

I n d e p e n d e n t 
N o n - E x e c u t i v e 

5 /5 Y E S 5 * 7 * @ 4 4 , 1 5 , 0 0 0 3 2 5 

2 . Mr. Nikh i l J . Danan i -
M a n a g i n g D i rec to r 
(D IN 0 0 0 5 6 5 1 4 ) 

E x e c u t i v e 
P r o m o t e r 

5 /5 Y E S — * 3 ,39 ,519 

3. Mr. N a k u l P M e h t a -
M a n a g i n g D i rec to r 
(D IN 0 0 0 5 6 5 6 1 ) 

E x e c u t i v e 
P r o m o t e r 

5 /5 Y E S — * 1 ,86,830 

4 . Mr. S h o m e N. 
D a n a n i 
(D IN 0 0 2 1 7 7 8 7 ) 

E x e c u t i v e 5 /5 Y E S — * 2 , 8 9 8 

5. Mr. San j i v N. S h a h 
(D IN 0 0 0 0 7 2 1 1 ) 

I n d e p e n d e n t 
N o n - E x e c u t i v e 

3 /5 Y E S 2 * — — 2 , 2 0 , 0 0 0 4 , 5 6 0 

6. Mr. Jai ra j C. T h a c k e r 
(D IN 0 0 1 0 8 5 5 2 ) 

I n d e p e n d e n t 
N o n - E x e c u t i v e 

4 /5 Y E S - * — — 3 , 3 5 , 0 0 0 

7. Mr. R a v i s h a n k e r 
P r a s a d # 
(D IN 0 6 6 4 1 8 4 5 ) 

N o n - E x e c u t i v e 5 /5 Y E S 1,75,000 

8. M s . M a h n a z A . 
C u r m a l l y 
(D IN 0 6 9 0 7 2 7 1 ) 

N o n - E x e c u t i v e 4 /5 Y E S 1,40,000 

9. Mr. R a j e s h w a r Ra j 
Ba jaa j 
(D IN 0 0 4 1 9 6 2 3 ) 

I n d e p e n d e n t 
N o n - E x e c u t i v e 

4 /5 Y E S 2 * 2 1 ,75,000 

T o t a l 1 4 , 6 0 , 0 0 0 

@ I n c l u d e s m e m b e r s h i p in N o m i n a t i o n & R e m u n e r a t i o n C o m m i t t e e in 4 C o m p a n i e s . 
* E x c l u d e s D i r e c t o r s h i p / C h a i r m a n s h i p in Pvt. L t d . C o m p a n i e s . 
# R e p r e s e n t a t i v e o f L IC of Ind ia , a n e q u i t y owne r . 

d. Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 read with Section 149(13) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 36(3) 
of the Listing Regulations, Mr. Ravishanker Prasad (DIN 06641845), Non-Executive Director, being longest in 
the office, is liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Prasad has offered himself for re-appointment and resolution for his 
re-appointment, is incorporated in the Notice of the ensuing 7 1 s t Annual General Meeting. 

During the financial year, Mr. Shome N. Danani (DIN 00217787) was re-appointed as Whole-time Director, designated 
as "Executive Director", for a period of three (3) years w.e.f. January 28, 2017, at the 70 t h Annual General Meeting, 
by the Members of the Company. Mr. Danani's re-appointment and remuneration is in terms of Section 196, 197, 
198, 200 and 203 read with Section II Part II, of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Q 7 
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e. Code of Conduct: 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Board Members and Senior Management and has posted the 
Code on the website of the Company in terms of Regulation 17 (5) of the Securities and Exchange of Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations). The Managing Director 
has affirmed the compliance of the Code of Conduct by the Board Members and Senior Management for the 
year under review. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director, Mr. Nikhil J. Danani forms part of 
this report. 

f. Board Independence: 

Based on the confirmation/disclosures received from the Directors, 4 Non-Executive Directors are independent 
in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. 

There are no material pecuniary relationships or transactions between the Independent Directors and the Company, 
except for sitting fees drawn by them for attending the Meetings of the Board and Committees thereof. 

g. Directors' Induct ion & Familarisation: 

The Independent Directors are familiarized, with the Company, their duties, roles and responsibilities, the nature 
of the industry, the business model of the Company, in line with the "Familarisation programme of Independent 
Directors", the details of which can be viewed at http://www.bharatbijlee.com. 
Also, familiarization programme details for the financial year 2017-2018 has been hosted on http://www.bharatbijlee.com. 

h. Board Evaluation: 

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors/Independent Directors/Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (as applicable) has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of all individual 
Directors including Independent Directors, the performance of its Committees and the evaluation of Chairman of the 
Board, in terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) and (4) of the Listing Regulations. 

The Board's functioning was evaluated on various aspects, including inter alia degree of fulfillment of key 
responsibilities, Board structure and composition, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to various 
Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning. 

Separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Board Chairman 
who were evaluated on parameters such as attendance, contribution at the meetings and otherwise, independent 
judgement, safeguarding of minority shareholders interest etc. The performance evaluation of the Independent 
Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of 
the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed 
the performance of the Board as a whole. 

3. Audit Committee: 

The Audit committee comprised of 
1. Mr. Sanjiv N. Shah — Chairman & Independent Director 

2. Mr. Prakash V. Mehta — Independent Director 
3. Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker — Independent Director 

All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and Mr. Sanjiv N. Shah, a Chartered Accountant has the 
relevant accounting and related financial management expertise. 

Mr. D. N. Nagarkar, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 

The Managing Directors, Vice President: Finance & Corporate Strategy, General Manager: Internal Audit, General Manager 
— Cost and Management Accounting and Senior General Manager: Finance attend the Audit Committee meetings by 
invitation. Statutory Auditors are also invited to attend the meetings. 

QQ 
38 

http://www.bharatbijlee.com
http://www.bharatbijlee.com


Annual Report 2017-2018 

a. Meetings & Attendance: 

The Audit Committee had four (4) meetings during the Financial year 2017-18 and were held on the following dates: 

1. May 19, 2017; 
2. August 24, 2017; 
3. November 24, 2017; and 

4. January 24, 2018. 

Mr. Prakash V. Mehta, attended all four (4) meetings, Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker attended three (3) and Mr. Sanjiv N. Shah 
attended two (2) meetings. 

b. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. 

The terms of reference of audit committee are briefly descr ibed as fo l lows: 
1. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 

that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 
2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company; 
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission 
to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's 
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 
5. Reviewing, with the Management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval; 

6. Reviewing, with the Management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those 
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring 
the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board 
to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 
control systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of 
internal audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to 
the board; 
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16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance 
function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. 
of the candidate; 

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 

4. Nominat ion and Remunerat ion Committee (NRC): 
Remuneration committee comprised of 

1. Mr. Sanjiv N. Shah — Chairman & Independent Director 
2. Mr. Prakash V. Mehta — Independent Director 

3. Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker — Independent Director 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting was held on January 24, 2018. 

Mr. Prakash V. Mehta and Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker attended the meeting. 
a. The terms of reference and role of the Nominat ion & Remunerat ion Committee are under as per the provis ions 

of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obl igat ions and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulat ions, 2015 (Listing Regulat ions): 

i. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director 
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel 
and other employees; 

ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

iv. I dentifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management 
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal; 

v. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director on the basis of the report 
of performance evaluation of Independent Directors. 

b. Remuneration of Executive Directors: 

The total remuneration payable to the Managing Directors/Executive Director for the financial year 2017-2018 
is as under: 

S a l a r y P e r q u i s i t e s C o m m i s s i o n T o t a l 

( i n ?) ( i n ?) P a y a b l e f o r t h e F Y ( in ?) 
2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8 

Mr. N ikh i l J . D a n a n i 6 0 , 0 0 , 0 0 0 6 0 , 0 0 , 0 0 0 — 1 ,20 ,00 ,000 

Mr. N a k u l P M e h t a 6 0 , 0 0 , 0 0 0 6 0 , 0 0 , 0 0 0 — 1 ,20 ,00 ,000 

Mr. S h o m e N. D a n a n i 3 9 , 0 0 , 0 0 0 4 8 , 7 5 , 0 0 0 — 8 7 , 7 5 , 0 0 0 

The Managing Directors were paid a fixed amount of remuneration, under Section II part II of Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in absence of inadequate profits and Executive Director is paid fixed amount of remuneration 
approved and recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors and subsequently 
by Shareholders of the Company at the 70 t h Annual General Meeting held on June 30, 2017. Also they were not paid 
any performance linked incentives for the financial year 2017-2018. 

There is no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company and as 
per the present criteria, only sitting fees is paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending the Meetings. 
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c. Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: 

Pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV, annual performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board of Directors excluding the Directors being evaluated. 
Evaluation form(s) was circulated to the respective Directors with a request to send the completed forms addressed 
to the Chairman of the Board of Directors. 

The Board thereafter reviewed the evaluation of each Independent Director and expressed that the performance of 
each Independent Director was good and that the established process of evaluation was also satisfactory. 

d. Nominat ion & Remuneration Policy: 

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy and the same has been displayed on the website of the 
Company i.e. www.bharatbijlee.com 

Objective 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto. The objective of this policy is to lay down a 
framework in relation to the nomination and remuneration of Directors, KMP Senior management personnel and 
other employees. The Key Objectives of the Committee would be: 

1.1. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management. 

1.2. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and 
recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel 
and other employees. 

1.3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board. 

1.4. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for 
further evaluation of the Board. 

1.5. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management. 

1.6. To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, 
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company's operations. 

1.7. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons 
and create competitive advantage. 

1.8. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan. 

1.9. To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities. 

1.10 To Implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance. 

Const i tut ion of Committee 

The Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) constituted the committee to be known as the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) consisting of three or more Non-Executive Directors out of which not less 
than one-half are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. However, the 
chairperson of the Company (whether Executive or Non-Executive) may be appointed as a member of the NRC but 
shall not chair such Committee. The meetings of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be 
required. The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. 

Appl icabi l i ty 

a) Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) 

b) Key Managerial Personnel 
c) Senior Management Personnel 

A 1 
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Definit ions 
"Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time. 

"Board" means Board of Directors of the Company. 
"Directors" mean Directors of the Company. 
"Key Managerial Personnel" means 
i. Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time Director; 
ii. Chief Financial Officer/Vice-President: Finance; 

iii. Company Secretary; and 
iv. Such other officer as may be prescribed. 

"Senior Management" means the personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team 
excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below the Managing/Executive 
Directors, including the functional heads. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but defined 
in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned 
to them therein. 

Policy for Appointment and Removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management 

1. Appointment Criteria and Qualifications 
a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the 

person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board 
his/her appointment. 

b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/she is 
considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and 
experience possessed by a person is sufficient/satisfactory for the concerned position. 

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who 
has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be 
extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution 
based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for 
extension of appointment beyond seventy years. 

2. Term/Tenure 

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 
The Board shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Chairman (Executive/Non-Executive), Managing 
Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be 
made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

b) Independent Director: 
— An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the 

Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company 
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

— No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of up to maximum of 
5 years each, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three 
years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, 
during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other 
capacity, either directly or indirectly. 

— At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on 
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent 
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a 
Whole-time Director of a listed Company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act. 
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3. Evaluation 
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel at regular intervals as may be decided by them. 

4. Removal 

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and 
regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal 
of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, 
rules and regulations. 

5. Retirement 
The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act 
and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior 
Management Personnel in the same position/remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, 
for the benefit of the Company. 

Policy for Remuneration to Directors/KMP/Senior Management Personnel 
1. Remuneration to Managing/Whole-time/Executive/Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel: 

The Remuneration/Compensation/Commission etc. to be paid to Director/Managing Director etc. shall be 
governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment 
for the time being in force. 

2. Fixed pay: 
The Whole-time Director/KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration 
as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The breakup of the pay scale 
and quantum of perquisites including employer's contribution to PF, pension scheme, medical expenses, 
club fees, etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/the person authorized by the Board on 
the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the Shareholders and Central Government, 
wherever required. 

3. Minimum Remuneration: 
If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay 
remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Act and if it is 
not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central Government. 

4. Provisions for excess remuneration: 
If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in 
excess of the limit prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where 
required, he/she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for 
the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the 
Central Government. 

5. Increments to the existing remuneration structure may be recommended by the Committee to the Board which 
should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of Whole-time Director. 

6. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying them against any 
liability, the premium paid on such insurances shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any 
such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall 
be treated as part of the remuneration. 

7. Remuneration to Non-Executive/Independent Director: 
The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration/compensation/commission as per 
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/limits as 
provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being 
in force. 
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Duties in Relation to Nominat ion Matters 
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include: 

1. Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior Management 
and reviewing its effectiveness; 

2. Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of appointment in 
accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act; 

3 Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation; 
4. Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board; 
5. Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the plan; 
6. Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the Company's 

performance from business and compliance perspective; 
7. Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of any 

Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee 
of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract; 

8. Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee; 
9. Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and 
10. Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board. 

Duties In Relation To Remuneration Matters 
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include: 
Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that the 
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such other factors as 
the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of the Board. 
Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company maintaining 
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the Company. 
Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee. 
Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board. 
Minutes of Committee Meetings: 

Proceedings of all NRC meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the Committee at the subsequent 
meetings. Minutes of the NRC meetings will be tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee meetings. 

Review and Amendment: 
i. The NRC or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary. 
ii. The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in supplement and 

better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary. 
iii. This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when required and also by the 

Compliance Officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the change in the policy. 

5. Stakeholders Relat ionship Committee: 
The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee comprised of 

1. Mr. Prakash V. Mehta — Chairman & Independent Director 
2. Mr. Sanjiv N Shah — Independent Director 

3. Mr. Nikhil J. Danani — Executive Director 
4. Mr. Nakul P. Mehta — Executive Director 
Mr. D. N. Nagarkar, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary of the Committee. The Committee has met once, 
on 24 t h January, 2018, wherein all members except Mr. Sanjiv N. Shah, were present. The total number of grievances 
received and resolved by the Committee to the satisfaction of the shareholders was 4, all related to non-receipt of Annual 
Report. There were no requests for share transfer/transmission/deletions of names etc. pending as on 3 1 s t March, 2018 
and all such requests were processed and delivered within prescribed time of lodgment with the Company. 
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Mr. D. N. Nagarkar, Company Secretary has been designated as the Compliance Officer of the Company as per 
the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

a. Terms of Reference: 

The Committee looks into redressing grievances of Shareholders pertaining to transfer of shares, non-receipt of 
balance sheet, non-receipt of dividend, dematerialisation of shares, complaints received from SEBI and the Stock 
Exchanges etc. 

The Board of Directors has also delegated the power of approving transfer/transmission/issue of duplicate share 
certificates to a Share Transfer Committee. 

6. Corporate Social Responsibi l i ty (CSR) Committee: 
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee was constituted with the following three (3) members: 
1. Mr. Nakul P. Mehta — Chairman, Managing Director 

2. Mr. Shome N. Danani — Executive Director 
3. Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker — Independent Director 

Mr. D. N. Nagarkar, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary of the Committee. The Committee has met once, on 
January 24, 2018, wherein all the members were present. 

The Chairman of the CSR Committee, at its meeting held on January 24, 2018, stated that the Company had incurred a 
average net loss of ? 1742.42 lakhs for the last three (3) financial years. Accordingly, in absence of average net profits 
for the three (3) immediately preceding financial years, the provision pertaining to spending 2% of average net profits on 
CSR activities is not applicable to the Company for the financial year 2017-2018 and hence it was recommended by the 
CSR Committee not to incur any expenditure on the recognized CSR activity in the financial year 2017-2018. 

a. Terms of Reference: 

i. Formulate and recommend to the Board a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy which shall indicate 
the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII and the prescribed Rules under 
Sections 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

ii. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in point a. above. 

iii. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time. 

iv. Ensure disclosure of the CSR Policy in the Board Report and on the website of the Company. 

v. Ensure activities as included in CSR Policy are undertaken and are monitored regularly. 

vi. Ensure the CSR spend is made in terms of Section 135 (5), i.e. at least 2% of the average net profits of the Company 
made during the 3 annually preceding financial years. 

7. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors: 
During the financial year under review, in compliance with the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 25(3) and 25(4) of the Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was convened, 
on January 24, 2018. However, since half the number of Directors was not present, it was adjourned and held on 
March 31 , 2018 which was in turn attended by Mr. Rajeshwar R. Bajaaj (Chairman), Mr. Prakash V. Mehta, 
Mr. Sanjiv N. Shah and Mr. Jairaj C. Thacker, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of 
management, inter alia to: 

1. Review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 

2. Review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company taking into account the views of the Executive Director 
and the Non-Executive Director; 

3. Assess the quality, quantity and functions of flow of information between the Company management and the Board 
that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 
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8. Annual General Meetings: 
The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under: 

Financial 
Year 

Date, Time & Venue No. of Special 
Resolut ions 

passed 

Special Resolut ions passed 

2016-2017 30-06-2017 at 3.00 p.m. at 
Walchand Hirachand Hall, 
4 t h Floor, Indian Merchants 
Chamber Bldg., Churchgate, 
Mumbai 400 020 

1 Following Special Resolution was passed. 
1) Re-appointment and to fix the Remuneration 

of Mr. Shome N. Danani as a "Whole-time 
Director" designated as "Executive Director" 
for a period of 3 years from January, 28, 2017 
to January 27, 2020. 

2015-2016 20-09-2016 at 3.00 p.m. at 
Walchand Hirachand Hall, 
4 t h Floor, Indian Merchants 
Chamber Bldg., Churchgate, 
Mumbai 400 020 

2 Following 2 Special Resolutions were passed. 
1) Re-appointment and to fix the Remuneration of 

Mr. Nikhil J. Danani as Managing Director for a 
period of 3 years from June, 20, 2016 to June 
19, 2019. 

2) Re-appointment and to fix the Remuneration 
of Mr. Nakul P. Mehta as Managing Director 
for a period of 3 years from June, 20, 2016 
to June 19, 2019. 

2014-2015 22-09-2015 at 3.00 p.m. at 
Walchand Hirachand Hall, 
4 t h Floor, Indian Merchants 
Chamber Bldg., Churchgate, 
Mumbai 400 020 

No Special Resolution was passed 

9. Postal Ballot: 
During the financial year under review, no special resolution was passed through Postal Ballot. 

10. Vigil Mechanism/Whist le Blower Policy: 
The Company has in place a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy, in terms of provisions of Section 178(9) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, which 
was approved by the Board of Directors on November 11, 2014. The Company's personnel have direct access to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee to report concerns about unethical behavior (actual or suspected), frauds and other 
grievances. No personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit Committee. Adequate safeguards are 
being provided against victimization of whistle blowers availing of such mechanism. It is hosted on the website of the 
Company, i.e., http://www.bharatbijlee.com. 

11 . Disclosure Relating to Demat Suspense Account /Uncla imed Suspense Account: 

The requisite disclosures under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, 2015, in respect of the unclaimed shares, pursuant 
to Regulation 39 read with Schedule VI of the Listing Regulations, 2015, are provided herein under: 

Particulars Number of 
shareholders 

Number of Equity 
Shares 

Aggregate number of shareholders and outstanding shares in the 
suspense account at the beginning of the Financial Year 2017-2018 

88 11180 

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for 
transfer of shares and shares transferred from Suspense Account 
during the Financial Year 2017-2018 

1 400 

Transferred to IEPF Demat Account during the year 2017-18 75 9350 

Aggregate number of shareholders and outstanding shares in the 
suspense account at the end of the Financial Year 2017-2018 

12 1430 
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The voting rights in respect of the above 1,430 equity shares are frozen until the rightful owner claims the equity shares. 
All corporate benefits on such shares in the nature of Bonus Shares, split of shares, Rights etc., shall be credited to 
'Unclaimed Suspense Account', as applicable for a period of 7 years and thereafter be transferred in line with the 
provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 
read with Section 124(5) and Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

12. Disclosures: 

i. At the Board Meeting, the Directors disclose the names of the Companies/Parties in which they are interested, 
and accordingly the Register of Contracts under Section 184, 188 & 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 is tabled 
and signed. Related party transactions as per Note No. 35.2 appearing in Financial Statements of the financial year 
are approved by the Audit Committee and recommended to the Board of Directors for their approval . During the 
financial year there were no transactions of material nature with the Directors or the Management or relatives that 
had potential conflict with the interests of the Company. The Policy on Related party Transactions is hosted on the 
website of the Company, i.e. http://www.bharatbijlee.com 

ii. Quarterly Disclosures - Results and notes thereon. 

iii. Risk Management activities are driven by a stated risk management policy and a process that is overseen by a Risk 
Management co-ordinator. The status of risk management is reviewed with the Board members periodically. 

iv. There were no instances of non-compliance on any matter related to the Capital Markets, nor were any penalties or 
strictures imposed on the Company by SEBI or any Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority for non-compliance 
on any matter related to the Capital Markets during the last 3 years. 

v. No member of the Senior Management has a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large relating to 
any material financial and commercial transaction. 

vi. The Company affirms that no employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

vii. The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements as stipulated in Schedule V (C) of the Listing 
Regulations. The disclosures of the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 
17 to 27 of the Listing Regulations, have been made in this Corporate Governance report. All the details required 
under clauses (b) to (i) (except clause clause (h), since not applicable) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the 
said Regulations are displayed on the website of the Company at http://www.bharatbijlee.com 

viii. Compliance 
The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements as required under Listing Regulations. 
Compliance Report on Non-Mandatory requirements as stipulated in Part E of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. 

a. The Board - The Chairman of the Company is a Non-Executive Director. The Company has adequate 
facilities at its registered office to maintain an office for the Chairman but presently no such entitlement is 
explicitly given. 

b. Shareholder Rights - The quarterly and year to date financial statements are disseminated through Stock 
Exchanges, published in newspaper and also uploaded on Company's website. 

c. Modified opinion(s) in audit report - The Statutory Auditors of the Company have issued an unqualified 
Audit Report on the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31 , 2018. 

d. Separate posts of Chairman and CEO - The Company has maintained separate posts of a Non-Executive 
Independent Chairman and Managing Director. 

e. Reporting of Internal Auditor - The Internal auditor reports directly to the CFO and is present in most 
Audit Committee Meetings. He has direct access to the Audit Committee. 

ix. The shares held by the promoters have not been pledged with any Banks, Financial Institutions or with any 
third party. 
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13. Communicat ion to Shareholders: 

i. Quarterly/half yearly/annual results and information relating to convening of Board meetings/Annual General Meetings 
are published in Free Press Journal and Navshakti and are also notified to the Stock Exchanges. Half yearly report 
is not sent to each shareholder in view of its publication in newspapers.. All such financial results are also posted 
on Company's website www.bharatbijlee.com. The Stock Exchanges are also informed of all materially significant 
events which have taken place during the financial year under review. No official releases of any disclosures have 
been made during the financial year which does not form part of this report. 

ii. The Company has made no presentation to any Institutional Investors/Analysts During the financial year. 

iii. Management Discussion and Analysis is covered as part of this Annual Report. 

iv. Further, Company has in place the (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 which came into force from 
May 15, 2015. Accordingly the Directors have approved and adopted the 'Code of internal procedures and conduct 
for regulating, monitoring and reporting of trading by insiders' in terms of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 ("Code"). Mr. Durgesh N. Nagarkar, Company Secretary and Senior General Manager, Legal, 
is the Compliance officer for the purpose of this Code. 

v. The Company has its own website, www.bharatbijlee.com. 

14. General Shareholders Information: 

i. Annual General Meeting: 

Day : Thursday 

Date : June 28, 2018 

Time : 3.00 p.m. 

Venue : Walchand Hirachand Hall, 4 t h Floor, Indian Merchants' Chamber, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020 

i i . Financial Year: 
The Company follows April-March as its financial year. The results for every quarter are declared in the month 
following the quarter except for the quarter January-March, for which the Audited results are declared in May as 
permitted by the Listing Regulations. 

i i i. Dates of Book Closure: 

Thursday June 21, 2018 to Thursday June 28, 2018 (both days inclusive). 

iv. Dividend Payment Date: From Thursday July 5, 2018 

v. Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges: 
Name of Stock Exchange 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 
BSE Limited (BSE) 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001. 
Tel. Nos. : +91 22-2272 1233/34 Fax Nos. : +91 22-2272 1919 
E-mail : is@bseindia.com • Website : www.bseindia.com 

National Stock Exchange (NSE) BBL 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) Exchange Plaza, 
Plot No. C/1, G. Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051. 
Tel. Nos. : +91 22-2659 8100-114 Fax Nos. : +91 22-2659 8120 
E-mail : nseiscmum@nse.co.in • Website : www.nseindia.com 

The listing fees for the financial year 2018-19 have been paid to both BSE & NSE. 
Demat internationals security Identification No. is: INE 464A01028 NSDL & CDSL 
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vi . Stock Price data at the Stock Exchanges: 

Month BSE BSE NSE NSE Month 

High (?) Low (?) High (?) Low (?) 

April, 2017 1120.00 918.00 1112.40 916.00 

May, 2017 1126.65 965.00 1128.90 981.35 

June, 2017 1498.70 1066.65 1500.00 1055.55 

July, 2017 1419.40 1254.00 1419.90 1250.00 

August, 2017 1323.25 1080.00 1330.50 1080.50 

September, 2017 1248.00 1076.00 1249.00 1076.05 

October, 2017 1164.00 996.00 1165.00 992.25 

November, 2017 1159.00 969.60 1161.00 964.10 

December, 2017 1437.25 1025.00 1438.00 1048.00 

January, 2018 1579.00 1270.00 1577.20 1265.00 

February, 2018 1659.00 1231.05 1659.90 1205.00 

March, 2018 1760.00 1410.00 1749.00 1406.30 

BHARAT BIJLEE LIMITED (RATE 2017-2018) 
3000.00 

Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 

Month 
BSE HIGH - - • - - B S E LOW —A— SENSEX HIGH — • — S E N S E X L O W 

vi i . Registrar and Transfer Agents: 

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd 
C-101, 1 s t Floor, 247 Park, 
Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai 400 083, India. 
Telephone: +91 22 49186270 Fax: +91 22 49186060 
E-mail id : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in • Website : www.linkintime.co.in 
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vi i i . Share Transfer System: 
The Board has constituted a Share Transfer Committee and has delegated the requisite power to the Committee 
to attend to share transfer matters. All share transfer and share related issues are approved by a share transfer 
committee comprising 4 Directors and Approvals are obtained at intervals not exceeding 15 days. 

ix. Distr ibution of Shareholding as on 31-03-2018: 

Sr. 
No. 

No. of Equity Shares held No. of 
shareholders 

No. of 
shares 

% of 
shareholders 

% of 
sharehold ing 

1. 1-500 18805 10,78,132 96.19 19.08 

2. 501-1,000 383 2,85,320 1.96 5.05 

3. 1,001-2,000 182 2,64,117 0.94 4.67 

4. 2,001-3,000 56 1,40,217 0.29 2.48 

5. 3,001-4,000 28 1,00,302 0.14 1.78 

6. 4,001-5,000 24 1,12,641 0.12 1.99 

7. 5,001-10,000 31 2,22,122 0.16 3.93 

8. 10,001- above 39 34,48,709 0.20 61.02 

Total 19548 56,51,560 100.00 100.00 

Shareholding Pattern as on 31-03-2018 

Sr. 
No. 

Category No. of shares % to total 
shareholding 

1. Promoters & Promoter Group 19,00,794 33.63 

2. Financial Institutions/Banks 8,09,240 14.32 

3. Mutual Funds/UTI 2,10,928 3.73 

4. Foreign Portfolio/FII 26,414 0.47 

5. NRIs/OCBs 96,538 1.71 

6. Corporate Bodies 5,41,189 9.58 

7. Indian Public 20,66,457 36.56 

Total 56,51,560 100.00 

x. Dematerial ization of shares and l iquidity: 
Your Company's shares are traded compulsorily in electronic form and the Company has established connectivity 
with both the depositories. i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL). 

As on 3 1 s t March, 2018, 98.59% of shares have been held in dematerialized form and the rest are in physical form. 
All promoters' shareholding are in dematerialised form (100%). 

xi. The Company has no outstanding GDR's/ADR's/Warrants or any convertible instruments, since not issued. 

xii. Commodi ty price r isk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activit ies: 

To control and minimize foreign exchange risk, the Company has formulated "Foreign Exchange Management Policy", 
according to which each eligible foreign transaction is individually hedged without resorting to natural hedges across 
transactions, i.e., netting off of inflows and outflows and hedging the net flows will not be resorted to. 
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xii i . Plant Location: 
No. 2, M.I.D.C., Thane-Belapur Road, Airoli, Navi Mumbai 400 708, Maharashtra. 

xiv. Address for correspondence: 
The Corporate Secretarial Department is located at the Company's Registered Office situated at Electric Mansion, 
6 t h Floor, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025, Telephone No. 24306237, Fax No. 24370624. 

Shareholders may correspond on all matters relating to shares at the addresses mentioned below: 

1. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 2. Bharat Bijlee Limited. 
C-101, 1 s t Floor, 247 Park, Electric Mansion, 6 t h Floor, 
Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Appasaheb Marathe Marg,, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400 083. Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025. 
Tel : +91 22 49186270 Tel : 022 24306237 
Fax : +91 22 49186060 Fax : 022 24370624 

3. As per the requirement of the Company has created a dedicated email ID (investorcare@bharatbijlee.com) 
exclusively for the purpose of registering complaints of Investors and this is prominently displayed on the 
Company's website: www.bharatbijlee.com 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Prakash V. Mehta 

Place : Mumbai DIN 00001366 
Date : May 10, 2018 Chairman 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT POLICY 
As required under Schedule V (D) of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all the Members of the Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel have 
confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended March 31 , 2018. 

For Bharat Bijlee Limited 

Nikhil J. Danani 

Place : Mumbai DIN 00056514 
Date : May 10, 2018 Vice Chairman & Managing Director 

Auditors' Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 
To the Members of Bharat Bijlee Limited 

We have examined all the relevant records of Bharat Bijlee Limited ("the Company") for the purpose of certifying 
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance under Chapter IV to the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) for the period from April 1, 2017 
to March 31 , 2018. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of certification. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of the Corporate Governance. This certificate is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of 
the Company. 
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Auditors' Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 
(contd) 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and information furnished to us, we certify 
that the Company has complied with all the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Listing Regulations. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For M/s N. L. Bhatia & Associates 
Practising Company Secretaries 

UIN: P1996MH055800 

N. L. Bhatia 
Managing Partner 

FCS: 1176 
CP. No. 422 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : April 30, 2018 

MD CFO CERTIFICATION 2017-2018 
The Board of Directors 
Bharat Bijlee Limited 

Dear Sirs, 

We, the Vice Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Nikhil J. Danani and the Vice President Finance & Corporate Strategy, 
Mr. Sandeep M. Tilak, hereby certify in terms of Regulation 17 (8) read with Part B of Schedule II of LODR, 2015: 
A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31 , 2018 and that to the 

best of our knowledge and belief: 
1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material act or contain statements 

that might be misleading. 
2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which 

are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct. 
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that they have 

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and they 
have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or they have taken or propose 
to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 
1. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
2. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 

the financial statements; and 
3. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management 

or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting. 

Nikhil J. Danani Sandeep M. Tilak 
Vice Chairman & Managing Director Vice President 
DIN 00056514 Finance & Corporate Strategy 

Date : May 10, 2018 
Place : Mumbai 

C O 
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ANNEXURE VI 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FORM NO. MR-3 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 , 2018 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
Bharat Bijlee Limited. 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Bharat Bijlee Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on March 31 , 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended on March 31 , 2018 according to the provisions of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 ("FEMA") and the Rules and Regulation made there under to the extent 
applicable; 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

('SEBI Act'): 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008: 

Not appl icable to the Company during the Financial Year 

f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2013; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993: 
Not appl icable to the Company during the Financial Year 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009: 
Not appl icable to the Company during the Financial Year 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998: 
Not appl icable to the Company during the Financial Year 

6. Other applicable Laws: 

(1) Factories Act, 1948 and Rules made thereunder 
(2) Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 & Rules 1957 
(3) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 & Rules, 1965 
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(4) Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 & Rules 

(5) Employees Compensation Act, 1923 & Rules. 

(6) Minimum Wages Act, 1948, M.W(C) Rules, 1950 

(7) Child Labour (P&R) Act, 1986 & Rules. 

(8) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 

(9) Water(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 

(10) The Noise (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000 

(11) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 

(12) Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

(13) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 

(14) Employees PF & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

(15) Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970 

(16) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

(17) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 

(18) Indian Contract Act, 1872 

(19) The States Shops and Establishment Acts 

(20) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

(21) Tax Laws 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place 
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 
All the decis ions were passed unanimously in the Board Meetings and wi th requisite majori ty in the General Meetings. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

For N. L. Bhatia & Associates 
Date: April 30, 2018 Company Secretaries 
Place: Mumbai UIN: P1996MH055800 

N L Bhatia 
FCS No. 1176 

CP No. 422 

PL A 
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The past year has been peculiar in many ways. A lot of 
macro changes such as the post-demonetization business 
revival, GST rollout and its discontinuous effects on the 
interconnected business supply chain along with industry 
specific changes such as the Government's prohibition of 
manufacture and sale of electric motors other than those 
meeting minimum efficiency standards, abolishing of the 
IE1 standard for Industrial Motors, capital expenditure by 
newly formed Telangana and Andhra Pradesh States have 
impacted both the Power Systems and Industrial Systems 
segments of your Company in this particular year. It is 
important to take cognizance of these specific events since 
a broader systemic recovery in the underlying business 
environment still needs to be ascertained. 

The Power Systems business saw good order inflow in 
FY 18 although the order booking has not sustained at 
those levels as we begin the current year. We expect that 
things will improve during the year and we will continue to be 
at peak levels of manufacturing activity for the coming year. 
However, margin pressures continue to drag profitability and 
this is likely to be a feature for a few more years to come. 

The Industrial Systems segment has seen quite a few 
significant events in the past year. Slow post-demonetization 
revival ran in rough GST weather. Most customers reduced 
inventory prior to GST leading to supply chain disturbances. 
The Government push for higher energy efficiency was 
mandated through a Quality Control Order that came 
into effect on January 1, 2018. This further exacerbated 
the supply chain issues as a lot of customers advanced 
their purchases of IE1 motors. On a positive note though, 
with IE2 now being the default standard, the unorganized 
sector has been adversely impacted and that has improved 
business conditions for reputed brands like Bharat Bijlee. 
Your Company also won an order worth ? 39.17 Cr for high 
energy efficiency motors from EESL. We expect this to boost 
business volumes in the coming year but more importantly 
positions your Company in a league of the most reputed 
brands in the country. We have also commissioned a new, 
state-of-the-art facility for Magnet Technology Machines and 
look forward to good business growth in that segment over 
the years to come. 

SEGMENT ANALYSIS 
The Company operates in two Business Segments, viz. 
"Power Systems" and "Industrial Systems". 

Power Systems: 
The Power Systems segment comprises of Power 
Transformers upto 200 MVA, 220 KV voltage class and EPC 
projects for electrical substations upto 400 KV. 

We have continuously worked towards reducing 
dependence on State and Central utilities for the 
Transformer business and have largely succeeded in 
quickly diversifying our customer base. We will continue to 
work towards this goal over time. We have also selectively 
taken Projects that have a well-defined scope and 
reasonable certainty of completion and profitability. 

Industrial Systems: 
This segment comprises of a full range of low and medium 
voltage industrial motors, permanent magnet technology 
machines and AC variable drives and drive systems. 

The Motors business depends on the overall health 
of the economy. To that extent we have seen pockets 
of outperformance during the year but nothing that 
shows sustainable, all round growth as reflected in the 
macroeconomic data and forecasts. However, due to 
certain large orders such as EESL and the shift to the IE2 
standard, we have been able to offset the sluggish economic 
conditions. The Drives business is also making inroads into 
new customers and markets and we expect a reasonable 
growth in its portfolio over the next couple of years. MTM 
has been adversely affected due to the slowdown in the 
real estate segment but our efforts continue to focus on 
select customers and markets where we continue to attract 
good demand and reasonably good margins. We expect 
the overall business environment to remain stable during 
the coming year. 

INTERNAL CONTROLS, AUDITS, RISK MANAGEMENT 
& IT 
The internal controls of your Company are continuously 
monitored for adequacy and effectiveness. Most controls 
have now been automated giving us higher confidence in 
their effectiveness. 

The SAP ERP system ensures that there is reasonable 
assurance about the financial and accounting records 
and controls. System driven controls also ensure ease 
of monitoring and consistency of operations 
and compliances. 

Internal controls in all business operations are regularly 
reviewed and tested both by the Company's Internal 
Audit team and the Statutory Auditors. The Management 
and Audit Committee are also informed if there are any 
significant audit observations. 

The Company has defined a framework for Risk Management 
that gets reviewed regularly and updated along with all 
business divisions of the Company. 

RISKS AND CONCERNS 
Recovery of the overall business environment and capital 
expenditure cycle remains a key risk. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 
We hope that business conditions have stabilized at current 
levels. With key reform initiatives having been implemented, 
we expect a stable revival over the coming years. 

For Bharat Bijlee Limited 

Nikhil J. Danani 
Vice Chairman & Managing Director 
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Particulars 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Gross Sales 60077 70609 76299 77385 58683 53306 66262 70883 74557 78456 

Net Sales 54470 65514 69704 71051 53534 48205 60562 63453 67334 76874 

Cptl. Empld. 21507 25668 30951 38375 39807 38224 39875 44127 48136 58008 

Net Worth 19950 22424 28135 31860 31208 30078 26535 27254 30378 36544 

Gross Block 9941 11043 11913 14465 16127 16845 16986 17258 8184 8466 

Net Block 6752 7094 7124 8989 9688 9400 8370 7672 7197 6547 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 7342 6096 9233 6603 (819) (1342) (3443) 735 1806 7268 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 4753 4122 7353 5367 (478) (1130) (3405) 719 1442 6097 
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• Excise Duty • Taxation • Interest • Personnel* 
• ProfiV(-) Loss • Depreciation • Other Expenditure* • Materials 

(In %) 

Particulars 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Excise Duty 10.2 7.7 9.5 8.8 9.6 10.1 9.8 11.4 10.7 2.1 

Profit/(Loss) 8.7 6.2 10.6 7.4 (0.9) (2.2) (5.9) 1.1 2.9 8.0 

Taxation 4.7 3.0 2.7 1.7 (0.6) (0.4) (0.1) — 0.1 1.5 

Depreciation 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 2.0 2.2 2.1 1.6 1.5 1.2 

Interest 0.8 0.9 1.3 1.9 2.3 2.6 3.4 3.2 2.4 2.5 

Other Exp. $ 7.7 6.5 1.7 2.7 6.0 5.6 7.0 4.8 3.9 1.3 

Personnel # 9.3 8.2 8.0 9.7 12.6 14.2 12.9 12.6 12.7 12.0 

Materials 67.5 73.9 74.4 75.3 78.6 78.0 80.5 76.7 76.6 73.4 

$ Other Expenditure is adjusted for Other Income and Exceptional Income. 
# Personnel cost is adjusted for Expenditure on VRS written off and Provision for Gratuity. 
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(? in lakhs) 

Pe r i od e n d e d 

S A L E S & 
E A R N I N G S 

S a l e s 

Pro f i t / (Loss) 
Be fo re Taxes 

Pro f i t / (Loss ) 
Af ter Taxes Net of 
A d j u s t m e n t s 

D i v i d e n d s 

E a r n i n g s 
Per S h a r e (?) 

Equ i t y 
D i v i d e n d R a t e 
(? Per Sha re ) 

Ne t W o r t h 
Per S h a r e (?) 

M a r c h 
2 0 1 8 

M a r c h M a r c h 
2 0 1 7 2 0 1 6 

M a r c h M a r c h M a r c h M a r c h M a r c h M a r c h M a r c h 
2 0 1 5 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 0 2 0 0 9 

7 8 4 5 5 . 8 5 7 4 5 5 7 . 0 9 7 0 8 8 2 . 8 5 6 6 2 6 2 . 3 6 5 3 3 0 5 . 6 0 5 8 6 8 2 . 7 2 7 7 3 8 4 . 7 6 7 6 2 9 9 . 4 8 7 0 6 0 8 . 6 4 6 0 0 7 7 . 0 8 

7 2 6 7 . 8 2 1805 .68 7 3 5 . 3 7 (3443 .14 ) (1342 .12 ) (819 .33) 6 6 0 2 . 5 1 9 2 3 2 . 8 5 6 0 9 5 . 9 6 7 3 4 1 . 9 5 

6 0 9 6 . 7 6 1441 .82 7 1 9 . 1 9 (3404 .95 ) (1197 .92 ) (489 .50) 5 3 6 7 . 2 3 7 3 5 2 . 5 3 4 1 2 2 . 3 5 4 7 5 2 . 7 9 

1 4 1 . 2 9 

1 0 7 . 8 8 

2 . 5 0 

6 4 6 . 6 1 

25 .51 12 .73 

141 .29 1412 .89 1 4 1 2 . 8 9 1412 .89 1 4 1 2 . 8 9 

(60.25) (19 .98) (8.61) 9 4 . 9 7 130 .10 7 2 . 9 4 8 4 . 1 0 

2 .50 2 5 . 0 0 2 5 . 0 0 2 5 . 0 0 2 5 . 0 0 

5 3 7 . 5 2 5 1 0 . 2 5 

D e b t Equ i t y R a t i o s + — — — 

+ D e b t = L o a n F u n d s less c a s h c r e d i t & Shor t -Te rm L o a n s f r o m B a n k s ; Equ i t y = S h a r e h o l d e r s ' F u n d s 

4 6 9 . 5 2 5 3 2 . 2 1 5 5 2 . 2 0 5 6 3 . 7 4 4 9 7 . 8 2 3 9 6 . 7 8 3 5 2 . 9 9 

0 .01 :1 0 .04 :1 0 .05 :1 0 .04 :1 0 .07 :1 0 .08 :1 0 .06 :1 
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To The Members of Bharat Bijlee Limited 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial 
statements of Bharat Bijlee Limited ("the Company"), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, 
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, 
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

Management 's Responsibi l i ty for the Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity 
of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Audi tor 's Responsibi l i ty 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS 
financial statements based on our audit. 

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the 
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 
and matters which are required to be included in the audit 
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder and the Order issued under Section 143(11) 
of the Act. 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Ind 
AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind 
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Opin ion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Ind AS financial statements give the information required 
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Other Matters 

The comparative financial information of the Company 
for the year ended 31st March 2017 and the transition 
date opening balance sheet as at 1st April 2016 included 
in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on the 
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance 
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 
audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the 
year ended 31st March, 2017 and 31st March, 2016 dated 
May 19, 2017 and May 12, 2016 respectively expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those financial statements, and have 
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been restated to comply with Ind AS. Adjustments made 
to the previously issued said financial information prepared 
in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS have been audited 
by us. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements is not 
modified in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our 
audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes 
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial 
statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under Section 133 
of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Company as on 
31st March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
its Ind AS financial statements; 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required 
under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, 
if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, 
we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W / W-100018) 

Sunder V. Iyer 
Mumbai, Partner 
May 10, 2018 (Membership No. 048393) 
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors' 
Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on 
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' Section of 
our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") . 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Bharat Bijlee Limited ("the Company") as of 
March 31 , 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date. 

Management 's Responsibi l i ty for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Audi tor 's Responsibi l i ty 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Report ing 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitat ions of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
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and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at March 3 1 , 2018, based on the criteria for 
internal financial control over financial reporting established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W / W-100018) 

Sunder V. Iyer 
Mumbai, Partner 
May 10, 2018 (Membership No. 048393) 

Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditors' 
Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements' Section of our report of 
even date). 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed 
assets to cover all the items in a phased manner 
over a period of three years which, in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to 
the program, certain fixed assets were physically 
verified by the Management during the year. 
According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations 
given to us and the records examined by us and 
based on the examination of the registered sale 
deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided 
to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising 
all the immovable properties of land and buildings, 
are held in the name of the Company as at the 
balance sheet date. Immovable properties of land 
and buildings whose title deeds have been pledged 
as security for loans are held in the name of the 
Company based on the confirmations directly 
received by us from lenders / parties. In respect 
of immovable properties of land and buildings 
that have been taken on lease and disclosed as 
fixed asset in the financial statements, the lease 
agreements are in the name of the Company, 
where the Company is the lessee in the agreement. 

(ii) As explained to us, the inventories were physically 
verified during the year by the Management at 
reasonable intervals excluding inventories lying with 
third parties. In respect of inventories lying with third 
parties, these have substantially been confirmed by 
them. No material discrepancies were noticed on 
physical verification. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans to parties 
covered under Section 185 of the Companies Act. 
In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments 
and providing guarantees and securities. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits 
during the year. In respect of unclaimed deposits, 
the Company has complied with the provisions of 
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified 
by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed 
the cost records maintained by the Company 
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 
of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion 
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have 
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been made and maintained We have, however, not 
made a detailed examination of the cost records 
with a view to determine whether they are accurate 
or complete. 

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to 
us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, 
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service 
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, 
cess, Goods and Services Tax and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 3 1 , 2018 for 
a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

(c) Details of dues of Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, Excise Duty, and Value Added Tax which 
have not been deposited as on March 31 , 2018 
on account of disputes are given below: 

Name of 
Statute 

Nature of Dues Forum where 
Dispute is 
Pending 

Period to 
which the 
Amount 
Relates 

Amount 
Involved 

<? in 
Lakhs) 

Amount 
Unpaid 

<? in 
Lakhs) 

Custom Act Duty of 
Customs 

Supreme Court 1996-1999 240.83 180.83 

Central 
Excise Act 

Duty of Excise 
and Service Tax 

Supreme Court 1986-1995 142.79 142.79 

Central 
Excise Act 

Duty of Excise 
and Service Tax 

High Court 1998-2004 
and 
2007-2011 

72.51 72.51 

Central 
Excise Act 

Duty of Excise 
and Service Tax 

Central Excise 
and Service 
Tax Appellate 
Tribunal 

2011-2015 21.78 21.78 

Local 
Sales Tax 

Local Sales Tax 
(including Value 
Added Tax, 
Works Contract 
Tax, etc 

Commissioner-
Appeals 

2009-2012 129.98 129.98 

Local 
Sales Tax 

Works Contract 
Tax 

High Court 2002-2004 54.24 45.49 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to 
banks and the Company does not have any loans or 
borrowings from any financial institution or government, 
nor has it issued any debentures. 

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under 
clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by 
the Company and no material fraud on the Company 
by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

(xi) I n our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has paid / 
provided managerial remuneration in accordance with 
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence 
reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii) I n our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us the Company is in compliance 
with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
where applicable, for all transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence 
reporting under clause (xiv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xv) I n our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, during the year the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its directors or persons connected with him and hence 
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are not applicable. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W / W-100018) 

Sunder V. Iyer 
Mumbai, Partner 
May 10, 2018 (Membership No. 048393) 
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A S S E T S : 
N O N - C U R R E N T A S S E T S : 

a) Proper ty , P lan t a n d E q u i p m e n t 
b) Cap i t a l W o r k - i n - P r o g r e s s 
c) I n t a n g i b l e asse t s 

d ) F inanc ia l A s s e t s 
(i) I n v e s t m e n t s 
(i i) L o a n s 
(iii) O t h e r financial a s s e t s 

e) N o n - C u r r e n t Tax A s s e t s (Net) 
f) D e f e r r e d tax asse t s (Net) 
g ) O t h e r n o n - c u r r e n t a s s e t s 

C U R R E N T A S S E T S : 
a) I nven to r i es 
b) F inanc ia l A s s e t s 

(i) I n v e s t m e n t s 
(ii) T r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s 
(iii) C a s h a n d c a s h e q u i v a l e n t s 
(iv) B a n k b a l a n c e s o t h e r t h a n (iii) a b o v e 
(v) L o a n s 
(vi) O t h e r financial a s s e t s 

c) C u r r e n t Tax A s s e t s (Net) 
d ) O t h e r c u r r e n t asse t s 

N o t e 

3 

4 

5 (i) 
5 (ii) 
5 (iii) 

6 
7 
8 

9 

10 (i) 
10 (ii) 
10 (iii) 
10 (iv) 
10 (v) 
10 (vi) 

11 
12 

T o t a l A s s e t s 

E Q U I T Y A N D L I A B I L I T I E S : 
E Q U I T Y : 

a) Equ i t y S h a r e Cap i ta l 
b) O t h e r Equ i t y 

L I A B I L I T I E S : 
N O N - C U R R E N T L I A B I L I T I E S : 

P r o v i s i o n s 

C U R R E N T L I A B I L I T I E S : 
a) F inanc ia l L iab i l i t i es 

(i) B o r r o w i n g s 
(ii) T r a d e p a y a b l e s 
(iii) O t h e r financial l iab i l i t ies 

b) O t h e r c u r r e n t l iab i l i t ies 
c) P rov i s i ons 
d ) C u r r e n t Tax L iab i l i t i es (Net) 

13 
14 

15 

16 (i) 
16 (ii) 
16 (iii) 

17 
18 
19 

T o t a l E q u i t y a n d L i a b i l i t i e s 

G e n e r a l I n f o r m a t i o n 1 
S ign i f i can t A c c o u n t i n g Po l ic ies 2 
T h e N o t e s a re a n in teg ra l pa r t of t h e s e financial s t a t e m e n t s 

A s pe r o u r r e p o r t o f e v e n d a t e . 
For D e l o i t t e H a s k i n s & Se l ls L L P 
Chartered Accountants 
Fi rm Reg i s t r a t i on N o . 1 1 7 3 6 6 W / W - 1 0 0 0 1 8 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

6 4 8 6 . 7 1 
7 3 7 . 2 1 

6 0 . 3 5 

7 2 8 4 . 2 7 

3 3 0 0 0 . 5 8 
5 . 6 4 

3 5 6 3 . 9 7 
6 6 . 9 4 

1 8 6 7 . 4 1 

2 3 1 1 . 2 5 

4 8 1 0 0 . 0 6 

1 1 1 0 2 . 2 2 

1 7 3 7 . 0 2 
2 9 5 9 4 . 0 5 

4 7 4 . 7 3 
5 1 0 . 8 0 

1 7 4 3 5 . 5 2 
6 3 9 . 4 0 

5 8 . 0 5 

1 7 1 1 . 5 9 

6 3 2 6 3 . 3 8 

1 1 1 3 6 3 . 4 4 

5 6 5 . 1 6 
6 8 5 7 7 . 8 9 

6 9 1 4 3 . 0 5 

1 1 4 . 7 0 

1 1 4 . 7 0 

2 1 4 6 4 . 5 6 
1 5 3 8 4 . 3 1 

3 0 3 . 3 8 
3 6 8 0 . 4 4 
1 1 4 9 . 0 3 

1 2 3 . 9 7 

4 2 1 0 5 . 6 9 

1 1 1 3 6 3 . 4 4 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

7 1 1 1 . 0 2 
5 6 . 2 6 
8 5 . 7 6 

7 2 5 3 . 0 4 

3 5 1 5 3 . 8 5 
4 8 5 0 . 8 1 
3 2 3 1 . 2 8 

2 .84 
1 5 7 2 . 1 6 
2 9 0 9 . 9 8 

5 4 9 7 3 . 9 6 

12318 .71 

2 2 3 5 4 . 9 8 
1 4 3 6 . 1 4 

5 2 6 . 1 1 
9 8 8 0 . 8 4 
2 1 2 2 . 3 9 

5 1 . 7 5 

5 4 3 . 1 8 

4 9 2 3 4 . 1 0 

1 0 4 2 0 8 . 0 6 

5 6 5 . 1 6 
6 4 5 6 5 . 6 0 

6 5 1 3 0 . 7 6 

132 .78 

132 .78 

1 7 7 5 7 . 3 9 
1 5 5 5 1 . 9 5 

2 5 0 . 9 2 
4 3 5 5 . 8 0 

9 9 9 . 5 6 

2 8 . 9 0 

3 8 9 4 4 . 5 2 

1 0 4 2 0 8 . 0 6 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

7 5 9 5 . 2 9 
6 2 . 8 0 

76 .61 

7 7 3 4 . 7 0 

2 9 5 0 8 . 8 5 
9 3 4 7 . 2 4 
4 1 4 2 . 9 7 

7 2 7 . 3 0 
1 7 1 7 . 3 0 

2 0 1 6 . 1 9 

5 5 1 9 4 . 5 5 

1 0 6 0 7 . 2 5 

5 2 2 . 7 8 
2 2 3 3 2 . 6 2 

2 6 7 . 1 5 
5 3 5 . 6 3 

4 4 8 2 . 4 0 
6 6 . 6 5 
35 .21 

8 4 3 . 0 7 

3 9 6 9 2 . 7 6 

9 4 8 8 7 . 3 1 

5 6 5 . 1 6 
5 7 3 7 9 . 4 9 

5 7 9 4 4 . 6 5 

2 2 7 . 1 3 

2 2 7 . 1 3 

1 6 8 7 2 . 3 8 
1 5 0 8 2 . 2 6 

2 3 6 . 3 3 
3 4 5 3 . 3 7 
1 0 6 7 . 8 2 

3 .37 

3 6 7 1 5 . 5 3 

9 4 8 8 7 . 3 1 

S u n d e r V. Iyer 
Partner 
M e m b e r s h i p N o . 0 4 8 3 9 3 

Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 

D. N. N a g a r k a r 
C o m p a n y S e c r e t a r y & Sen io r G e n e r a l M a n a g e r : Lega l 

S. M. T i lak 
V i c e P r e s i d e n t : F i n a n c e a n d C o r p o r a t e S t r a t e g y 

N ikh i l J . D a n a n i 

N a k u l P. M e h t a 

S h o m e N. D a n a n i 

P r a k a s h V. M e h t a 

V i c e C h a i r m e n & 
M a n a g i n g D i rec to rs 

Execu t i ve D i rec to r 

D i rec to r 

Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

R E V E N U E : 

R e v e n u e f r o m O p e r a t i o n s 

O t h e r I n c o m e 

T O T A L R E V E N U E 

Y e a r e n d e d 
N o t e 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

2 0 7 8 9 8 0 . 9 5 

21 2 1 1 6 . 8 8 

8 1 0 9 7 . 8 3 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

7 4 9 7 0 . 3 5 

2 6 7 3 . 1 9 

7 7 6 4 3 . 5 4 

E X P E N S E S : 

C o s t of ma te r i a l s c o n s u m e d 

P u r c h a s e s of s t o c k in t r a d e 

C h a n g e s in i n ven to r i es 

Exc i se Du t y 

E m p l o y e e bene f i t s 

F i n a n c e c o s t s 

D e p r e c i a t i o n a n d a m o r t i s a t i o n e x p e n s e 

O t h e r e x p e n s e s 

T O T A L E X P E N S E S 

P R O F I T B E F O R E E X C E P T I O N A L I T E M S A N D TAX 

E X C E P T I O N A L I T E M ( R e f e r N o t e 3 9 ) 

P R O F I T B E F O R E T A X 

2 2 

2 3 

2 4 

2 5 

2 6 

2 7 

3 & 4 

2 8 

5 5 1 0 2 . 7 2 

7 3 7 . 3 0 

7 6 6 . 2 3 

1 5 8 1 . 8 9 

9 1 6 4 . 8 8 

1 9 2 8 . 2 7 

9 3 1 . 4 4 

8 2 9 5 . 2 0 

7 8 5 0 7 . 9 3 

2 5 8 9 . 9 0 

4 6 7 7 . 9 2 

7 2 6 7 . 8 2 

5 0 1 0 2 . 3 4 

1 4 2 5 . 0 2 

(1439 .86 ) 

7 2 2 3 . 0 2 

8 7 2 1 . 8 9 

1 5 9 4 . 8 2 

9 8 7 . 4 2 

7 2 2 3 . 2 1 

7 5 8 3 7 . 8 6 

1 8 0 5 . 6 8 

1 8 0 5 . 6 8 

T A X E X P E N S E 

C u r r e n t Tax 

D e f e r r e d Tax C h a r g e / ( C r e d i t ) 

P R O F I T A F T E R T A X 

42(a ) 

42 (a ) 

1 5 0 2 . 7 3 

( 3 3 1 . 6 7 ) 

1 1 7 1 . 0 6 

6 0 9 6 . 7 6 

2 7 1 . 2 6 

9 2 . 6 0 

3 6 3 . 8 6 

1 4 4 1 . 8 2 

O t h e r C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e 

I t ems t h a t w i l l n o t b e rec lass i f i ed t o pro f i t or l oss 

R e m e a s u r e m e n t o f D e f i n e d Bene f i t P lan (ne t of tax) 

Fair V a l u e o f Equ i t y I n s t r u m e n t s t h r o u g h O the r C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e 

T O T A L O T H E R C O M P R E H E N S I V E I N C O M E 

T O T A L C O M P R E H E N S I V E I N C O M E F O R T H E Y E A R 

6 8 . 8 0 

( 2 1 5 3 . 2 7 ) 

( 2 0 8 4 . 4 7 ) 

4 0 1 2 . 2 9 

9 9 . 2 9 

5 6 4 5 . 0 0 

5 7 4 4 . 2 9 

7 1 8 6 . 1 1 

Bas ic a n d d i l u t e d E a r n i n g / ( l o s s ) pe r s h a r e (in ?) 

[ n o m i n a l v a l u e ? 10 pe r s h a r e ] 

T h e N o t e s a re a n in teg ra l pa r t of t h e s e financial s t a t e m e n t s 

A s pe r o u r r e p o r t o f e v e n d a t e . 
For De lo i t te H a s k i n s & Se l ls LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Fi rm Reg i s t r a t i on N o . 1 1 7 3 6 6 W / W - 1 0 0 0 1 8 

3 7 

S u n d e r V. Iyer 
Partner 
M e m b e r s h i p N o . 0 4 8 3 9 3 

D. N. N a g a r k a r 
C o m p a n y S e c r e t a r y & Sen io r G e n e r a l M a n a g e r : Lega l 

S. M. T i lak 
V i c e P r e s i d e n t : F i n a n c e a n d C o r p o r a t e S t r a t e g y 

1 0 7 . 8 8 

Nikh i l J . D a n a n i 

N a k u l P. M e h t a 

S h o m e N. D a n a n i 

P r a k a s h V. M e h t a 

25 .51 

V i c e C h a i r m e n & 
M a n a g i n g D i rec to rs 

E x e c u t i v e D i rec to r 

D i rec to r 

Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQ 

(A ) E Q U I T Y S H A R E C A P I T A L 

B a l a n c e a s a t 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 
C h a n g e s in e q u i t y s h a r e c a p i t a l 

B a l a n c e a s a t 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

C h a n g e s in e q u i t y s h a r e c a p i t a l 

B a l a n c e a s a t 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2018 

5 6 5 . 1 6 

5 6 5 . 1 6 

5 6 5 . 1 6 

(B ) O T H E R E Q U I T Y 

Par t i cu la rs Rese rves a n d S u r p l u s O the r 
C o m p r e h e n s i v e 

I n c o m e 

Total 

Par t i cu la rs 

R e t a i n e d 
E a r n i n g s 

G e n e r a l 
Rese rve 

Equ i t y 
I n s t r u m e n t s 

t h r o u g h O the r 
C o m p r e h e n s i v e 

I n c o m e 

Total 

B a l a n c e a s a t 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 (a) 

Prof i t fo r t h e y e a r (b) 

O t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e (c) 

3 8 0 0 . 6 0 

1441 .82 

9 9 . 2 9 

2 4 4 7 1 . 3 7 2 9 1 0 7 . 5 2 

5 6 4 5 . 0 0 

5 7 3 7 9 . 4 9 

1 4 4 1 . 8 2 

5 7 4 4 . 2 9 

Total C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e for t h e y e a r (d) = (b) + (c) 1541 .11 — 5 6 4 5 . 0 0 7 1 8 6 . 1 1 

B a l a n c e a s a t 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 (e) = (a) + (d) 5 3 4 1 . 7 1 2 4 4 7 1 . 3 7 3 4 7 5 2 . 5 2 6 4 5 6 5 . 6 0 

Prof i t fo r t h e y e a r (f) 

O t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e (g) 

6 0 9 6 . 7 6 

6 8 . 8 0 

— 

(2153 .27 ) 

6 , 0 9 6 . 7 6 

(2084 .47 ) 

T o t a l C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e f o r t h e y e a r ( h ) = ( f ) + ( g ) 6 1 6 5 . 5 6 — ( 2 1 5 3 . 2 7 ) 4 0 1 2 . 2 9 

B a l a n c e a s a t 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 ( i) = (e) + (h ) 1 1 5 0 7 . 2 7 2 4 4 7 1 . 3 7 3 2 5 9 9 . 2 5 6 8 5 7 7 . 8 9 

T h e N o t e s a re a n in teg ra l pa r t of t h e s e financial s t a t e m e n t s 

A s pe r o u r r e p o r t o f e v e n d a t e . 
For De lo i t te H a s k i n s & Se l ls LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Fi rm Reg i s t r a t i on N o . 1 1 7 3 6 6 W / W - 1 0 0 0 1 8 

S u n d e r V. Iyer 
Partner 
M e m b e r s h i p N o . 0 4 8 3 9 3 

Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 

D. N. N a g a r k a r 
C o m p a n y S e c r e t a r y & Sen io r G e n e r a l M a n a g e r : Lega l 

S. M. T i lak 
V i c e P r e s i d e n t : F i n a n c e a n d C o r p o r a t e S t r a t e g y 

N ikh i l J . D a n a n i 

N a k u l P. M e h t a 

S h o m e N. D a n a n i 

P r a k a s h V. M e h t a 

V i c e C h a i r m e n & 
M a n a g i n g D i rec to rs 

E x e c u t i v e D i rec to r 

D i rec to r 

Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 

66 



Annual Report 2017-2018 
(All amounts are ? in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

A . C A S H F L O W F R O M O P E R A T I N G A C T I V I T I E S 

Pro f i t / (Loss) b e f o r e Taxa t i on 
A d j u s t m e n t s for : 

D e p r e c i a t i o n a n d a m o r t i s a t i o n 
Loss / (Pro f i t ) o n sa le of F i xed A s s e t s (net) 
Prof i t o n s a l e o f c u r r e n t i n v e s t m e n t s 
F i n a n c e C o s t 
In te res t I n c o m e 
D i v i d e n d I n c o m e 
U n r e a l i s e d e x c h a n g e ( g a i n ) / l o s s (net) 

O p e r a t i n g Pro f i t / (Loss ) B e f o r e W o r k i n g Cap i t a l c h a n g e s 
C h a n g e s in W o r k i n g C a p i t a l : 
I n c r e a s e / ( D e c r e a s e ) in t r a d e p a y a b l e 
I n c r e a s e / ( D e c r e a s e ) in p r o v i s i o n s 
I n c r e a s e / ( D e c r e a s e ) in o t h e r c u r r e n t l iab i l i t ies 
( I n c r e a s e ) / D e c r e a s e in t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s 
( I n c r e a s e ) / D e c r e a s e in i n ven to r i es 
( I n c r e a s e ) / D e c r e a s e in l o a n s 
( I n c r e a s e ) / D e c r e a s e in c u r r e n t financial a n d o the r a s s e t s 
( I n c r e a s e ) / D e c r e a s e in n o n - c u r r e n t financial a n d o t h e r asse t s 

C a s h g e n e r a t e d f r o m O p e r a t i o n s 
D i rec t Taxes ( p a i d ) / R e f u n d 

Net C a s h i n f l o w / ( o u t f l o w ) f r o m O p e r a t i n g Ac t i v i t i es 

B. C A S H F L O W F R O M I N V E S T I N G A C T I V I T I E S 
P u r c h a s e of F i xed A s s e t s 
P r o c e e d s f r o m Sa le of F i xed A s s e t s 
P r o c e e d s f r o m S a l e / ( P u r c h a s e ) of C u r r e n t I n v e s t m e n t s (net) 
Inter C o r p o r a t e D e p o s i t s g i v e n 
Inter C o r p o r a t e D e p o s i t s r e d e e m e d 
( I n c r e a s e ) / D e c r e a s e in o t h e r b a n k b a l a n c e (net) 
F i xed D e p o s i t w i t h B a n k s p l a c e d 
In te res t r e c e i v e d 
D i v i d e n d r e c e i v e d 

Net C a s h i n f l o w / ( o u t f l o w ) f r o m Inves t i ng Ac t i v i t ies 

Y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

(A ) 

( B ) 

C. C A S H F L O W F R O M F I N A N C I N G A C T I V I T I E S 
P r o c e e d s / ( R e p a y m e n t ) o f S h o r t Te rm L o a n s f r o m B a n k s (net) 
In te res t p a i d 

U n c l a i m e d / D i v i d e n d i n c l u d i n g D i v i d e n d D i s t r i bu t i on Tax p a i d 

Net C a s h i n f l o w / ( o u t f l o w ) f r o m F i n a n c i n g Ac t i v i t i es (C ) 
( A + B + C ) 

Net I n c r e a s e / ( D e c r e a s e ) in C a s h a n d C a s h e q u i v a l e n t s 
C a s h a n d C a s h e q u i v a l e n t s at t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 

C a s h a n d C a s h e q u i v a l e n t s at t h e e n d o f t h e y e a r [Refer N o t e N o . 10 (iii)] 

T h e N o t e s a re a n in teg ra l pa r t of t h e s e financial s t a t e m e n t s 

A s pe r o u r r e p o r t o f e v e n d a t e . 
For De lo i t te H a s k i n s & Se l ls LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Fi rm Reg i s t r a t i on N o . 1 1 7 3 6 6 W / W - 1 0 0 0 1 8 

9 3 1 . 4 4 
( 4 6 6 7 . 7 0 ) 

( 3 8 . 8 4 ) 
1 9 2 8 . 2 7 

( 1 6 6 9 . 7 7 ) 
( 2 4 7 . 2 1 ) 

2 .41 

( 7 8 5 . 6 3 ) 
4 6 7 9 . 4 9 

( 1 6 9 8 . 1 8 ) 
( 1 2 5 8 3 . 1 9 ) 

9 8 7 7 . 1 7 
1 3 . 7 7 

( 1 2 7 . 2 3 ) 
2 9 3 2 . 7 3 

2 4 7 . 2 1 

3 7 0 7 . 1 7 
( 1 8 9 6 . 1 7 ) 

( 9 .27 ) 

7 2 6 7 . 8 2 

( 3 7 6 1 . 4 0 ) 

3 5 0 6 . 4 2 

( 3 6 5 . 4 7 ) 
2 3 6 . 6 2 

( 6 4 4 . 1 9 ) 
( 7 2 3 7 . 6 5 ) 
1 2 1 6 . 4 9 

( 3 . 4 8 ) 
( 1 1 6 6 . 5 5 ) 

6 1 6 . 5 9 

( 7 3 4 7 . 6 4 ) 

( 3 8 4 1 . 2 2 ) 
( 1 4 7 8 . 0 6 ) 

( 5 3 1 9 . 2 8 ) 

2 5 5 6 . 1 4 

S u n d e r V. Iyer 
Partner 
M e m b e r s h i p N o . 0 4 8 3 9 3 

D. N. N a g a r k a r 
C o m p a n y S e c r e t a r y & Sen io r G e n e r a l M a n a g e r : Lega l 

S. M. T i lak 
V i c e P r e s i d e n t : F i n a n c e a n d C o r p o r a t e S t r a t e g y 

1 8 0 1 . 7 3 

( 9 6 1 . 4 1 ) 

( 9 6 1 . 4 1 ) 

1 4 3 6 . 1 4 

4 7 4 . 7 3 

Nikh i l J . D a n a n i 

N a k u l P. M e h t a 

S h o m e N. D a n a n i 

P r a k a s h V. M e h t a 

9 8 7 . 4 2 
4 .78 

(16.66) 
1 5 9 4 . 8 2 

(1746 .68 ) 
(808 .02) 

2 .55 

(470 .91) 
1.43 

5 3 9 . 4 4 
(5383 .42 ) 
4 4 7 8 . 4 2 

4 .31 

5 7 2 . 7 7 
8 0 8 . 0 2 

8 8 5 . 0 1 
(1581 .21 ) 

(10.61) 

1 8 0 5 . 6 8 

18.21 

1 8 2 3 . 8 9 

4 2 2 . 2 1 
(10.79) 

9 1 9 . 2 3 
(24.35) 

(1711 .46 ) 
2 .99 

3 1 8 . 2 5 
(876 .42) 

(960 .34) 

8 6 3 . 5 5 
4 6 2 . 1 9 

1 3 2 5 . 7 4 

5 5 0 . 0 6 

(706 .81) 

1 1 6 8 . 9 9 

1 1 6 8 . 9 9 
2 6 7 . 1 5 

1 4 3 6 . 1 4 

V i c e C h a i r m e n & 
M a n a g i n g D i rec to rs 

E x e c u t i v e D i rec to r 

D i rec to r 

Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Notes 
1 . G E N E R A L I N F O R M A T I O N : 

Bharat Bi j lee L imi ted is o n e of t he leaders in t he e lectr ical e n g i n e e r i n g indus t ry in India. A mu l t i - p roduc t , mul t i -d iv is ional o rgan i sa t i on , 
its m a i n p r o d u c t s are t r ans fo rmers , e lectr ic m o t o r s , m a g n e t t e c h n o l o g y m a c h i n e s a n d dr ives a n d a u t o m a t i o n s y s t e m s . T h e C o m p a n y a lso 
unde r takes t u rnkey p ro jec ts (sw i t chyards ) . T h e C o m p a n y has a we l l es tab l i shed a l l - Ind ia m a r k e t i n g n e t w o r k tha t ensu res respons i ve pre 
a n d after sa les serv ice. 

T h e a d d r e s s of its reg i s te red of f ice is Electr ic M a n s i o n , 6 th Floor, A p p a s a h e b Mara the M a r g , P rabhadev i , M u m b a i 400 025 . 

2. S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S : 

2 .01 S t a t e m e n t o f C o m p l i a n c e : 

T h e s e financial s t a t e m e n t s o f t h e C o m p a n y c o m p r i s i n g of B a l a n c e Shee t , S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d L o s s , S t a t e m e n t of c h a n g e s 
in Equ i t y a n d C a s h F l o w S t a t e m e n t t o g e t h e r w i t h t h e n o t e s h a v e b e e n p r e p a r e d in a c c o r d a n c e w i t h I nd ian A c c o u n t i n g 
S t a n d a r d s no t i f i ed u n d e r t h e C o m p a n i e s ( I nd ian A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d s ) Ru les , 2 0 1 5 ( " Ind A S " ) as a m e n d e d by t h e C o m p a n i e s 
( I nd ian A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d s ) Ru les , 2 0 1 6 , t h e C o m p a n i e s ( I nd ian A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d s ) Ru les , 2 0 1 7 a n d o t h e r re levan t 
p r o v i s i o n s o f t h e C o m p a n i e s Ac t , 2 0 1 3 . 

U p t o t h e y e a r e n d e d 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 , t h e C o m p a n y p r e p a r e d its financial s t a t e m e n t s in a c c o r d a n c e w i t h g e n e r a l l y a c c e p t e d 
a c c o u n t i n g p r i n c i p l e s in t h e Ind ia , i n c l u d i n g a c c o u n t i n g s t a n d a r d s r e a d w i t h S e c t i o n 133 of t h e C o m p a n i e s Ac t , 2 0 1 3 no t i f i ed 
u n d e r C o m p a n i e s ( A c c o u n t i n g s t a n d a r d s ) Ru les , 2 0 0 6 ( "P rev ious G A A P " ) . T h e s e a re t h e C o m p a n y ' s first I nd A S financial 
s t a t e m e n t s . T h e d a t e of t r a n s i t i o n t o Ind A S is 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 . Refer n o t e 2 .24 for t h e de ta i l s o f t h e first t i m e a d o p t i o n e x e m p t i o n s 
a v a i l e d b y t h e C o m p a n y . 

2 . 0 2 B a s i s o f P r e p a r a t i o n a n d P r e s e n t a t i o n : 

T h e F inanc ia l S t a t e m e n t s h a v e b e e n p r e p a r e d o n t h e h i s to r i ca l c o s t b a s i s e x c e p t for c e r t a i n financial i n s t r u m e n t s m e a s u r e d at 
fair v a l u e at t h e e n d of e a c h r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d , as e x p l a i n e d in t h e a c c o u n t i n g po l i c i es b e l o w . 

H is to r i ca l c o s t is g e n e r a l l y b a s e d o n t h e fair v a l u e o f t h e c o n s i d e r a t i o n g i v e n in e x c h a n g e for g o o d s a n d s e r v i c e s . 

Fair v a l u e is t h e p r i ce t ha t w o u l d b e r e c e i v e d t o sel l a n a s s e t or p a i d t o t rans fe r a l iab i l i ty in a n o r d e r l y t r a n s a c t i o n b e t w e e n 
m a r k e t p a r t i c i p a n t s at t h e m e a s u r e m e n t d a t e , r e g a r d l e s s o f w h e t h e r t h a t p r i c e is d i r ec t l y o b s e r v a b l e or e s t i m a t e d u s i n g a n o t h e r 
v a l u a t i o n t e c h n i q u e . In e s t i m a t i n g t h e fair v a l u e of a n a s s e t o r a l iabi l i ty, t h e C o m p a n y t a k e s in t o a c c o u n t t h e c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s o f 
t h e a s s e t or l iab i l i ty if m a r k e t p a r t i c i p a n t s w o u l d t a k e t h o s e c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s in to a c c o u n t w h e n p r i c i n g t h e a s s e t or l iabi l i ty at t h e 
m e a s u r e m e n t d a t e . Fair v a l u e for m e a s u r e m e n t a n d / o r d i s c l o s u r e p u r p o s e s in t h e s e financial s t a t e m e n t s is d e t e r m i n e d o n s u c h 
a b a s i s , e x c e p t for l e a s i n g t r a n s a c t i o n s t h a t a re w i t h i n t h e s c o p e of Ind A S 17, a n d m e a s u r e m e n t s t ha t h a v e s o m e s im i la r i t i es 
t o fair v a l u e b u t a re n o t fair v a l u e , s u c h as ne t rea l i zab le v a l u e in I nd A S 2 or v a l u e in u s e in Ind A S 36 . 

I n a d d i t i o n , for financial r e p o r t i n g p u r p o s e s , fa i r v a l u e m e a s u r e m e n t s a re c a t e g o r i z e d in to Level 1, 2, o r 3 b a s e d o n t h e 
d e g r e e t o w h i c h t h e i n p u t s t o t h e fair v a l u e m e a s u r e m e n t s a r e o b s e r v a b l e a n d t h e s i g n i f i c a n c e of t h e i n p u t s t o t h e fair v a l u e 
m e a s u r e m e n t s in its ent i re ty , w h i c h a re d e s c r i b e d as f o l l o w s : 

Level 1 i n p u t s a re q u o t e d p r i c e s ( u n a d j u s t e d ) in ac t i ve m a r k e t s fo r i den t i ca l asse t s o r l iab i l i t ies t ha t t h e en t i t y c a n a c c e s s at t h e 
m e a s u r e m e n t d a t e ; 

Level 2 i n p u t s a re i n p u t s , o t h e r t h a n q u o t e d p r i c e s i n c l u d e d w i t h i n level 1 , t h a t a re o b s e r v a b l e for t h e a s s e t or l iabi l i ty, e i ther 
d i rec t l y or i nd i rec t l y ; a n d 

Level 3 i n p u t s a re u n o b s e r v a b l e i n p u t s for t h e a s s e t or l iabi l i ty. 

T h e financial s t a t e m e n t s a re p r e s e n t e d in I nd ian c u r r e n c y ( INR) w h i c h is t h e C o m p a n y ' s f u n c t i o n a l a n d p r e s e n t a t i o n c u r r e n c y . 

Al l v a l u e s a re r o u n d e d of f t o t h e n e a r e s t l akhs . 

T h e financial s t a t e m e n t s w e r e a p p r o v e d for i s s u e by t h e B o a r d o f D i r ec to r s o n 10 th May, 2 0 1 8 . 

Al l a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies h a v e b e e n c l ass i f i ed as c u r r e n t or n o n - c u r r e n t as pe r t h e C o m p a n y ' s o p e r a t i n g c y c l e a n d o t h e r c r i te r ia 
se t o u t in t h e S c h e d u l e III (D iv i s ion II) t o t h e C o m p a n i e s Ac t , 2 0 1 3 . B a s e d o n t h e n a t u r e of p r o d u c t s a n d t h e t i m e b e t w e e n 
t h e a c q u i s i t i o n of a s s e t s fo r p r o c e s s i n g a n d the i r rea l i sa t i on in c a s h a n d c a s h e q u i v a l e n t s , t h e C o m p a n y h a s a s c e r t a i n e d its 
o p e r a t i n g c y c l e as t w e l v e m o n t h s fo r t h e p u r p o s e o f c u r r e n t - n o n c u r r e n t c l ass i f i ca t i on o f a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies . 

2 . 0 3 R e v e n u e R e c o g n i t i o n : 

R e v e n u e is m e a s u r e d at t h e fair v a l u e of t h e c o n s i d e r a t i o n r e c e i v e d o r r e c e i v a b l e . R e v e n u e is i nc lus i ve of Exc ise Du t y ( u p t o t h e 
a p p l i c a b l e d a t e ) , r e d u c e d for c u s t o m e r d i s c o u n t s , r e b a t e s g r a n t e d , o t h e r s im i la r a l l o w a n c e s , sa les t a x e s (up t o t h e a p p l i c a b l e 
d a t e ) , G o o d s a n d S e r v i c e s Tax (GST) a n d d u t i e s c o l l e c t e d o n beha l f o f t h i r d pa r t i es . 

a) R e v e n u e f r o m sa le of g o o d s is r e c o g n i s e d w h e n t h e f o l l o w i n g c o n d i t i o n s a re sa t i s f i ed . 

i) t h e C o m p a n y h a s t r a n s f e r r e d t h e s i gn i f i can t r i sks a n d r e w a r d s of o w n e r s h i p of t h e g o o d s t o t h e b u y e r w h i c h g e n e r a l l y 
c o i n c i d e s w h e n t h e g o o d s a re d e s p a t c h e d in a c c o r d a n c e w i t h t h e t e r m s o f sa le ; 

ii) t h e C o m p a n y re ta ins ne i the r c o n t i n u i n g m a n a g e r i a l i n v o l v e m e n t t o t h e d e g r e e usua l l y a s s o c i a t e d w i t h o w n e r s h i p n o r 
e f fec t i ve c o n t r o l o v e r t h e g o o d s s o l d ; 

iii) t h e a m o u n t o f r e v e n u e c a n b e m e a s u r e d re l iab ly ; 

iv) it is p r o b a b l e t h a t t h e e c o n o m i c bene f i t s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h e t r a n s a c t i o n wi l l flow t o t h e C o m p a n y ; 

v) t h e c o s t s i n c u r r e d or t o b e i n c u r r e d in r e s p e c t o f t h e t r a n s a c t i o n c a n b e m e a s u r e d re l iab ly . 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

b) R e v e n u e f r o m C o n s t r u c t i o n C o n t r a c t s is r e c o g n i s e d b a s e d o n t h e s t a g e of c o m p l e t i o n d e t e r m i n e d w i t h r e f e r e n c e t o t h e 
c o s t s i n c u r r e d o n c o n t r a c t s a n d t h e e s t i m a t e d to ta l c o s t s . W h e n it is e s t i m a t e d t h a t t h e to ta l c o n t r a c t c o s t w i l l e x c e e d to ta l 
c o n t r a c t r e v e n u e , e x p e c t e d l oss is r e c o g n i s e d as a n e x p e n s e i m m e d i a t e l y . Tota l c o n t r a c t c o s t is d e t e r m i n e d b a s e d o n t h e 
t e c h n i c a l a n d o t h e r a s s e s s m e n t o f c o s t t o b e i n c u r r e d . 

c) Se rv i ce i n c o m e is r e c o g n i s e d , ne t of s e r v i c e tax (up t o t h e a p p l i c a b l e d a t e ) / G o o d s a n d S e r v i c e s Tax ( G S T ) , w h e n t h e 
re la ted s e r v i c e s a re p r o v i d e d . 

2 . 0 4 O t h e r I n c o m e : 

a) D i v i d e n d i n c o m e f r o m i n v e s t m e n t s is r e c o g n i s e d w h e n t h e s h a r e h o l d e r ' s r igh t t o r e c e i v e p a y m e n t h a s b e e n e s t a b l i s h e d . 

b) I n te res t i n c o m e is r e c o g n i s e d o n t h e t i m e p r o p o r t i o n bas i s , b y r e f e r e n c e t o t h e p r i n c i p a l o u t s t a n d i n g a n d t h e e f fec t i ve 
in te res t ra te a p p l i c a b l e . 

c) I n s u r a n c e a n d o t h e r c l a i m s a re a c c o u n t e d as a n d w h e n u n c o n d i t i o n a l l y a d m i t t e d b y t h e a p p r o p r i a t e au tho r i t i e s . 

2 . 0 5 P r o p e r t y , P l a n t a n d E q u i p m e n t : 

Proper ty , p l an t a n d e q u i p m e n t is s t a t e d a t a c q u i s i t i o n c o s t ne t o f a c c u m u l a t e d d e p r e c i a t i o n a n d a c c u m u l a t e d i m p a i r m e n t 
l osses , if any . S u b s e q u e n t c o s t s a re i n c l u d e d in t h e a s s e t ' s c a r r y i n g a m o u n t or r e c o g n i s e d as asse t , as a p p r o p r i a t e , 
o n l y w h e n it is p r o b a b l e t h a t f u t u r e e c o n o m i c bene f i t s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h e i t em wi l l flow t o t h e C o m p a n y a n d t h e c o s t o f t h e 
i t em c a n b e m e a s u r e d re l iab ly . Al l o t h e r r epa i r s a n d m a i n t e n a n c e a re c h a r g e d t o t h e S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d L o s s d u r i n g t h e 
p e r i o d in w h i c h t h e y a re i n c u r r e d . 

G a i n s or L o s s e s a r i s i n g o n r e t i r e m e n t o r d i s p o s a l o f p rope r t y , p l an t a n d e q u i p m e n t a re r e c o g n i s e d in t h e S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t 
a n d Loss . 

Cap i ta l w o r k - i n - p r o g r e s s / i n t a n g i b l e asse t s u n d e r d e v e l o p m e n t a re c a r r i e d at c o s t , c o m p r i s i n g d i r e c t c o s t , r e l a ted i n c i d e n t a l 
e x p e n s e s a n d a t t r i b u t a b l e b o r r o w i n g c o s t . 

T h e m a n a g e m e n t ' s e s t i m a t e of use fu l l ives a re in a c c o r d a n c e w i t h S c h e d u l e II t o t h e C o m p a n i e s Ac t , 2 0 1 3 . D e p r e c i a t i o n is 
p r o v i d e d o n p r o - r a t a b a s i s o n t h e s t r a i gh t l ine m e t h o d o v e r t h e use fu l life of a s s e t s . T h e use fu l l i fe, r es i dua l v a l u e a n d t h e 
d e p r e c i a t i o n m e t h o d a re r e v i e w e d a t l eas t at e a c h financial y e a r e n d a n d a d j u s t e d p rospec t i ve l y . 

L e a s e h o l d l a n d is s t a t e d a t h i s to r i ca l c o s t l ess a m o u n t s a m o r t i s e d p r o p o r t i o n a t e t o e x p i r e d l ease p e r i o d . 

S p a r e s in t h e n a t u r e of cap i t a l s p a r e s / i n s u r a n c e s p a r e s a r e a d d e d t o t h e c o s t of t h e a s s e t s . T h e to ta l c o s t o f s u c h s p a r e s is 
d e p r e c i a t e d o v e r a p e r i o d n o t e x c e e d i n g t h e use fu l l i fe of t h e a s s e t t o w h i c h t h e y re la te . 

T rans i t i on t o Ind A S : 

O n t r ans i t i on t o I nd A S , t h e C o m p a n y h a s e l e c t e d t o c o n t i n u e w i t h t h e c a r r y i n g v a l u e of all o f its p rope r t y , p l an t a n d e q u i p m e n t 
r e c o g n i s e d as at 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 m e a s u r e d as pe r I G A A P as t h e d e e m e d c o s t of t h e p rope r t y , p l an t a n d e q u i p m e n t . 

2 . 0 6 I n t a n g i b l e A s s e t s : 

I n t ang ib l e a s s e t s a re s t a t e d at a c q u i s i t i o n c o s t , n e t o f a c c u m u l a t e d a m o r t i s a t i o n a n d a c c u m u l a t e d i m p a i r m e n t l o s s e s , if any. 
I n t ang ib l e asse t s a re a m o r t i s e d o n a s t r a i gh t l ine b a s i s ove r the i r e s t i m a t e d use fu l l ives. T h e a m o r t i s a t i o n p e r i o d a n d a m o r t i s a t i o n 
m e t h o d a re r e v i e w e d at least at e a c h financial y e a r e n d . If t h e e x p e c t e d use fu l l i fe of t h e a s s e t is s i gn i f i can t l y d i f fe ren t f r o m 
p r e v i o u s e s t i m a t e s , t h e a m o r t i s a t i o n p e r i o d is c h a n g e d a c c o r d i n g l y . 

E x p e n d i t u r e o n a p p l i c a t i o n s o f t w a r e is a m o r t i s e d o v e r a p e r i o d of t h r e e y e a r s . 

T rans i t i on t o Ind A S : 

O n t r a n s i t i o n t o Ind A S , t h e C o m p a n y h a s e l e c t e d t o c o n t i n u e w i t h t h e c a r r y i n g v a l u e of i n t a n g i b l e a s s e t s r e c o g n i s e d as at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 m e a s u r e d as pe r I G A A P as t h e d e e m e d c o s t o f i n t a n g i b l e a s s e t s . 

2 . 0 7 I m p a i r m e n t o f A s s e t s : 

Proper ty , p l an t a n d e q u i p m e n t a n d i n t a n g i b l e asse t s w i t h finite life a r e e v a l u a t e d for r ecove rab i l i t y w h e n e v e r t h e r e is 
a n y i n d i c a t i o n t ha t the i r c a r r y i n g a m o u n t s m a y n o t b e r e c o v e r a b l e . If a n y s u c h i n d i c a t i o n ex is ts , t h e r e c o v e r a b l e a m o u n t 
(i.e. h i g h e r o f t h e fair v a l u e less c o s t t o sel l a n d t h e va l ue - i n -use ) is d e t e r m i n e d o n a n i nd i v i dua l a s s e t bas i s u n l e s s t h e a s s e t 
d o e s n o t g e n e r a t e c a s h flows t h a t a r e l a rge l y i n d e p e n d e n t o f t h o s e f r o m o t h e r a s s e t s . In s u c h c a s e s , t h e r e c o v e r a b l e a m o u n t 
is d e t e r m i n e d for t h e c a s h g e n e r a t i n g un i t ( C G U ) t o w h i c h t h e a s s e t b e l o n g s . 

If t h e r e c o v e r a b l e a m o u n t of a n a s s e t (or C G U ) is e s t i m a t e d t o b e less t h a n its c a r r y i n g a m o u n t , t h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t 
of t h e a s s e t (or C G U ) is r e d u c e d t o its r e c o v e r a b l e a m o u n t . A n i m p a i r m e n t l oss is r e c o g n i s e d in t h e S t a t e m e n t o f Prof i t 
a n d Loss . 

W h e n a n i m p a i r m e n t l oss s u b s e q u e n t l y r eve rses , t h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t of t h e a s s e t or a c a s h - g e n e r a t i n g un i t is i n c r e a s e d t o t h e 
r ev i sed e s t i m a t e o f its r e c o v e r a b l e a m o u n t , b u t s o t h a t t h e i n c r e a s e d c a r r y i n g a m o u n t d o e s n o t e x c e e d t h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t 
t ha t w o u l d h a v e b e e n d e t e r m i n e d h a d n o i m p a i r m e n t loss b e e n r e c o g n i s e d for t h e a s s e t (or c a s h - g e n e r a t i n g uni t ) ear l ier. 
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2 . 0 8 F i n a n c i a l i n s t r u m e n t s : 

1 . I n i t i a l r e c o g n i t i o n a n d m e a s u r e m e n t : 

F inanc ia l a s s e t s a n d / o r financial l iab i l i t ies a r e r e c o g n i s e d w h e n t h e C o m p a n y b e c o m e s p a r t y t o a c o n t r a c t e m b o d y i n g 
t h e re la ted financial i n s t r u m e n t s . Al l financial a s s e t s , financial l iab i l i t ies a r e in i t ia l ly m e a s u r e d at fa i r v a l u e . T r a n s a c t i o n 
c o s t s t ha t a re a t t r i b u t a b l e t o t h e a c q u i s i t i o n o r i ssue of financial asse t s a n d financial l iab i l i t ies (o ther t h a n financial a s s e t s 
a n d financial l iab i l i t ies at fair v a l u e t h r o u g h pro f i t o r loss) a re a d d e d t o or d e d u c t e d f r o m a s t h e c a s e m a y b e , t h e fair 
v a l u e of s u c h a s s e t s o r l iab i l i t ies , o n ini t ia l r e c o g n i t i o n . T r a n s a c t i o n c o s t s d i r ec t l y a t t r i b u t a b l e t o t h e a c q u i s i t i o n of financial 
asse t s o r financial l iab i l i t ies at fair v a l u e t h r o u g h pro f i t o r l oss a r e r e c o g n i s e d i m m e d i a t e l y in pro f i t or l oss . 

2 . F i n a n c i a l A s s e t s : 

C l a s s i f i c a t i o n a n d s u b s e q u e n t m e a s u r e m e n t o f financial a s s e t s : 

a ) C l a s s i f i c a t i o n o f financial a s s e t s : 

(i) T h e C o m p a n y c lass i f i es its financial a s s e t s in t h e f o l l o w i n g m e a s u r e m e n t c a t e g o r i e s : 

- t h o s e t o b e m e a s u r e d s u b s e q u e n t l y at fa i r v a l u e (e i ther t h r o u g h o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e , o r t h r o u g h 
pro f i t or l o ss ) , a n d 

- t h o s e m e a s u r e d at a m o r t i s e d c o s t . 

(ii) T h e c l ass i f i ca t i on is d o n e d e p e n d i n g u p o n t h e C o m p a n y ' s b u s i n e s s m o d e l for m a n a g i n g t h e financial a s s e t s 
a n d t h e c o n t r a c t u a l t e r m s o f t h e c a s h flows. 

(iii) For i n v e s t m e n t s in d e b t i n s t r u m e n t s , th is wi l l d e p e n d o n t h e b u s i n e s s m o d e l in w h i c h t h e i n v e s t m e n t is h e l d . 

(iv) T h e C o m p a n y rec lass i f i es d e b t i n v e s t m e n t s w h e n a n d o n l y w h e n its b u s i n e s s m o d e l for m a n a g i n g t h o s e 
asse t s c h a n g e s . 

b ) S u b s e q u e n t M e a s u r e m e n t : 

( i ) D e b t i n s t r u m e n t s : 

S u b s e q u e n t m e a s u r e m e n t o f d e b t i n s t r u m e n t s d e p e n d s o n t h e C o m p a n y ' s b u s i n e s s m o d e l for m a n a g i n g t h e 
a s s e t a n d t h e c a s h flow c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of t h e asse t . T h e r e a re t h r e e m e a s u r e m e n t c a t e g o r i e s in to w h i c h 
t h e C o m p a n y c lass i f i es its d e b t i n s t r u m e n t s : 

(1) F i n a n c i a l a s s e t s a t a m o r t i s e d c o s t 

F inanc ia l a s s e t s a r e s u b s e q u e n t l y m e a s u r e d at a m o r t i s e d c o s t if t h e s e financial asse t s a re h e l d w i t h i n 
a b u s i n e s s w h o s e o b j e c t i v e is t o h o l d t h e s e asse t s in o r d e r t o c o l l e c t c o n t r a c t u a l c a s h flows a n d t h e 
c o n t r a c t u a l t e r m s of t h e financial a s s e t g i v e r ise o n s p e c i f i e d d a t e s t o c a s h flows t ha t a re so le l y p a y m e n t s 
of p r i n c i p a l a n d in te res t o n t h e p r i n c i p a l a m o u n t o u t s t a n d i n g . 

(2) F i n a n c i a l a s s e t s a t f a i r v a l u e t h r o u g h o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e ( F V T O C I ) 

F inanc ia l a s s e t s a re s u b s e q u e n t l y m e a s u r e d a t fair v a l u e t h r o u g h o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e if t h e s e 
financial a s s e t s a re h e l d w i t h i n a b u s i n e s s w h o s e o b j e c t i v e is a c h i e v e d b y b o t h c o l l e c t i n g c o n t r a c t u a l 
c a s h flows t h a t g i v e r ise o n s p e c i f i e d d a t e s t o so le l y p a y m e n t s of p r i n c i p a l a n d in te res t o n t h e p r i n c i p a l 
a m o u n t o u t s t a n d i n g a n d by se l l i ng financial a s s e t s . 

(3) F i n a n c i a l a s s e t s a t f a i r v a l u e t h r o u g h p r o f i t o r l o s s ( F V T P L ) 

F inanc ia l a s s e t s a re s u b s e q u e n t l y m e a s u r e d at fair v a l u e t h r o u g h pro f i t o r l oss u n l e s s it is m e a s u r e d at 
a m o r t i s e d c o s t or fair v a l u e t h r o u g h o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e o n ini t ia l r e c o g n i t i o n . T h e t r a n s a c t i o n 
c o s t s d i r ec t l y a t t r i b u t a b l e t o t h e a c q u i s i t i o n of financial a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies at fair v a l u e t h r o u g h p ro f i t o r 
l oss a re i m m e d i a t e l y r e c o g n i s e d in p ro f i t or l oss . 

( i i ) E q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s : 

T h e C o m p a n y s u b s e q u e n t l y m e a s u r e s all e q u i t y i n v e s t m e n t s at fair v a l u e . T h e r e a re t w o m e a s u r e m e n t 
c a t e g o r i e s in to w h i c h t h e C o m p a n y c lass i f i es its e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s : 

I n v e s t m e n t s i n e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s a t F V T P L : 

I n v e s t m e n t s in e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s a re c l ass i f i ed a s at FVTPL , u n l e s s t h e C o m p a n y i r r e v o c a b l y e l ec t s o n ini t ia l 
r e c o g n i t i o n t o p r e s e n t s u b s e q u e n t c h a n g e s in fa i r v a l u e in o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e for e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s 
w h i c h a re n o t h e l d for t r a d i n g . 

I n v e s t m e n t s i n e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s a t F V T O C I : 

O n ini t ia l r e c o g n i t i o n , t h e C o m p a n y c a n m a k e a n i r r e v o c a b l e e l e c t i o n ( o n a n i n s t r u m e n t - b y - i n s t r u m e n t bas is ) 
t o p r e s e n t t h e s u b s e q u e n t c h a n g e s in fair v a l u e in o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e . T h i s e l e c t i o n is n o t p e r m i t t e d 
if t h e e q u i t y i n v e s t m e n t is h e l d for t r a d i n g . T h e s e e l e c t e d i n v e s t m e n t s a re in i t ia l ly m e a s u r e d at fair v a l u e p l u s 
t r a n s a c t i o n c o s t s . S u b s e q u e n t l y , t h e y a re m e a s u r e d at fair v a l u e w i t h g a i n s a n d l o s s e s a r i s i n g f r o m c h a n g e s 
in fair v a l u e r e c o g n i s e d in o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e a n d a c c u m u l a t e d in t h e rese rve for ' equ i t y i n s t r u m e n t s 
t h r o u g h o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e ' . T h e c u m u l a t i v e g a i n or loss is n o t r ec l ass i f i ed t o S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t 
a n d L o s s o n d i s p o s a l of t h e i n v e s t m e n t s . 
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c ) I m p a i r m e n t o f F i n a n c i a l A s s e t s : 

T h e C o m p a n y a p p l i e s t h e e x p e c t e d c red i t l oss m o d e l for r e c o g n i s i n g i m p a i r m e n t l oss o n financial asse t s m e a s u r e d 
at a m o r t i s e d cos t , l ease r e c e i v a b l e s , t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s , o t h e r c o n t r a c t u a l r i gh t s t o r e c e i v e c a s h o r o t h e r financial 
asse t . For t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s , t h e C o m p a n y m e a s u r e s t h e l oss a l l o w a n c e at a n a m o u n t e q u a l t o l i fe t ime e x p e c t e d 
c red i t l o s s e s . Further, for t h e p u r p o s e of m e a s u r i n g l i fe t ime e x p e c t e d c r e d i t l oss a l l o w a n c e for t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s , 
t h e C o m p a n y h a s u s e d a p rac t i ca l e x p e d i e n t as p e r m i t t e d u n d e r Ind A S 109. T h i s e x p e c t e d c r e d i t l oss a l l o w a n c e is 
c o m p u t e d b a s e d o n a p r o v i s i o n ma t r i x w h i c h t a k e s in to a c c o u n t h i s to r i ca l c r e d i t l oss e x p e r i e n c e a n d a d j u s t e d fo r 
f o r w a r d - l o o k i n g i n f o r m a t i o n . 

d ) D e r e c o g n i t i o n o f F i n a n c i a l A s s e t s : 

A financial a s s e t is p r ima r i l y d e r e c o g n i s e d w h e n : 

1. t h e r i gh t t o rece i ve c a s h flows f r o m t h e a s s e t h a s e x p i r e d , or 

2. t h e C o m p a n y h a s t r a n s f e r r e d its r i gh ts t o rece i ve c a s h flows f r o m t h e asse t ; a n d 

(a) t h e C o m p a n y h a s t r a n s f e r r e d s u b s t a n t i a l l y all t h e r isks a n d r e w a r d s of t h e asse t , or 

(b) t h e C o m p a n y h a s ne i the r t r a n s f e r r e d n o r r e t a i n e d s u b s t a n t i a l l y all t h e r i sks a n d r e w a r d s of t h e asse t , b u t 
h a s t r a n s f e r r e d c o n t r o l of t h e asse t . 

O n d e r e c o g n i t i o n o f a financial a s s e t in its en t i re t y (o ther t h a n i n v e s t m e n t s in e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s at F V O C I ) , t h e 
d i f f e r e n c e s b e t w e e n t h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t s m e a s u r e d at t h e d a t e of d e r e c o g n i t i o n a n d t h e c o n s i d e r a t i o n r e c e i v e d is 
r e c o g n i s e d in t h e S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d Loss . 

3. F i n a n c i a l L i a b i l i t i e s a n d E q u i t y I n s t r u m e n t s 

C l a s s i f i c a t i o n a s d e b t o r e q u i t y 

F inanc ia l l iab i l i t ies a n d e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s i s s u e d by t h e C o m p a n y a re c l ass i f i ed a c c o r d i n g t o t h e s u b s t a n c e of t h e 
c o n t r a c t u a l a r r a n g e m e n t s e n t e r e d in to a n d t h e d e f i n i t i o n s of a financial l iab i l i ty a n d a n e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t . 

E q u i t y I n s t r u m e n t s 

A n e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t is a n y c o n t r a c t t ha t e v i d e n c e s a res idua l i n te res t in t h e asse t s of t h e C o m p a n y af ter d e d u c t i n g al l 
o f its l iab i l i t ies. Equ i t y i n s t r u m e n t s a re r e c o r d e d at t h e p r o c e e d s r e c e i v e d , ne t of d i r e c t i s s u e c o s t s . 

R e p u r c h a s e o f t h e C o m p a n y ' s o w n e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t is r e c o g n i s e d a n d d e d u c t e d d i r ec t l y in equ i t y . N o g a i n o r l oss 
is r e c o g n i s e d in t h e S t a t e m e n t o f Prof i t a n d L o s s o n t h e p u r c h a s e , sa le , i s sue or c a n c e l l a t i o n of t h e C o m p a n y ' s o w n 
e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s . 

F i n a n c i a l L i a b i l i t i e s 

Class i f i ca t i on a n d s u b s e q u e n t m e a s u r e m e n t . 

T h e C o m p a n y ' s financial l iab i l i t ies i n c l u d e t r a d e a n d o t h e r p a y a b l e s , l o a n s a n d b o r r o w i n g s a n d de r i va t i ve financial 
i n s t r u m e n t s . S u b s e q u e n t m e a s u r e m e n t o f financial l iab i l i t ies d e p e n d s o n the i r c l ass i f i ca t i on as fair v a l u e t h r o u g h 
pro f i t a n d loss or at a m o r t i z e d c o s t . Al l c h a n g e s in fair v a l u e of financial l iab i l i t ies c l ass i f i ed a s F V T P L a r e r e c o g n i z e d 
in t h e S t a t e m e n t o f Prof i t a n d Loss . A m o r t i s e d c o s t c a t e g o r y is a p p l i c a b l e t o l o a n s a n d b o r r o w i n g s , t r a d e a n d o t h e r 
p a y a b l e s . Af ter ini t ia l r e c o g n i t i o n t h e financial l iab i l i t ies a r e m e a s u r e d a t a m o r t i s e d c o s t u s i n g t h e Ef fec t ive In te res t 
Rate m e t h o d . 

D e r e c o g n i t i o n 

A financial l iab i l i ty is d e r e c o g n i z e d w h e n t h e o b l i g a t i o n u n d e r t h e l iabi l i ty is d i s c h a r g e d or c a n c e l l e d o r e x p i r e s . G a i n s 
a n d l o s s e s a re r e c o g n i z e d in p ro f i t a n d loss w h e n t h e l iab i l i t ies a re d e r e c o g n i z e d . 

O f f s e t t i n g o f F i n a n c i a l I n s t r u m e n t s 

F inanc ia l a s s e t s a n d financial l iab i l i t ies a re o f fse t a n d p r e s e n t e d o n ne t b a s i s in t h e B a l a n c e S h e e t w h e n t h e r e is a 
c u r r e n t l y e n f o r c e a b l e lega l r i gh t t o o f fse t t h e r e c o g n i s e d a m o u n t s a n d t h e r e is a n i n t en t i on e i the r t o se t t le o n a n e t b a s i s 
or t o rea l i se t h e a s s e t s a n d se t t le t h e l iab i l i t ies s i m u l t a n e o u s l y . 

D e r i v a t i v e F i n a n c i a l I n s t r u m e n t s 

Der iva t i ves a re in i t ia l ly r e c o g n i s e d at fa i r v a l u e at t h e d a t e t h e de r i va t i ve c o n t r a c t s a re e n t e r e d in to a n d a re s u b s e q u e n t l y 
r e m e a s u r e d t o the i r fa i r v a l u e a t t h e e n d of e a c h r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d . T h e resu l t i ng g a i n o r loss is r e c o g n i s e d in t h e 
S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d L o s s i m m e d i a t e l y . 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

2 . 0 9 I n v e n t o r i e s : 

I n v e n t o r i e s a re s t a t e d at t h e l o w e r of c o s t a n d ne t rea l i sab le v a l u e . 

C o s t o f i n ven to r i es c o m p r i s e al l c o s t s of p u r c h a s e (net of i n p u t c r e d i t s ) , c o s t s of c o n v e r s i o n a n d o t h e r c o s t s i n c u r r e d 
in b r i n g i n g t h e i nven to r i es t o the i r p r e s e n t l o c a t i o n a n d c o n d i t i o n . 

Ne t r ea l i sab le v a l u e is t h e e s t i m a t e d se l l i ng p r i c e in t h e o r d i n a r y c o u r s e of b u s i n e s s , less t h e e s t i m a t e d c o s t s o f c o m p l e t i o n 
a n d t h e e s t i m a t e d c o s t s n e c e s s a r y t o m a k e t h e sa le . 

C o s t o f r a w m a t e r i a l s a n d c o m p o n e n t s , p a c k i n g ma te r i a l s , s t o r e s , s p a r e p a r t s o t h e r t h a n spec i f i c s p a r e s for m a c h i n e r y a n d 
t r a d e d finished g o o d s a re d e t e r m i n e d o n t h e b a s i s o f w e i g h t e d a v e r a g e m e t h o d . 

C o s t of Ma te r ia l s in t rans i t a n d m a t e r i a l s in b o n d e d w a r e h o u s e a re d e t e r m i n e d at c o s t - t o - d a t e . 

C o s t of W o r k - i n - p r o g r e s s a n d m a n u f a c t u r e d finished g o o d s c o m p r i s e s of al l c o s t s of p u r c h a s e , c o s t s o f c o n v e r s i o n a n d o t h e r 
c o s t s i n c u r r e d in b r i n g i n g t h e i nven to r i es t o the i r p r e s e n t l o c a t i o n a n d c o n d i t i o n . 

C u s t o m d u t y is i n c l u d e d in t h e ma te r i a l s l y i ng in b o n d e d w a r e h o u s e . 

2 . 1 0 F o r e i g n C u r r e n c i e s : 

I t ems i n c l u d e d in t h e financial s t a t e m e n t s of t h e C o m p a n y a r e r e c o r d e d u s i n g t h e c u r r e n c y o f t h e p r i m a r y e c o n o m i c e n v i r o n m e n t 
( INR) in w h i c h t h e C o m p a n y o p e r a t e s ( the ' f unc t i ona l c u r r e n c y ' ) . 

F o r e i g n c u r r e n c y t r a n s a c t i o n s a r e t r a n s l a t e d in to t h e f u n c t i o n a l c u r r e n c y u s i n g e x c h a n g e ra tes at t h e d a t e of t h e t r a n s a c t i o n . 
F o r e i g n e x c h a n g e g a i n s a n d l o s s e s f r o m s e t t l e m e n t of t h e s e t r a n s a c t i o n s , a n d f r o m t r a n s l a t i o n of m o n e t a r y a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies 
at t h e r e p o r t i n g d a t e a re r e c o g n i s e d in t h e S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d Loss . 

2 .11 E m p l o y e e B e n e f i t s : 

R e t i r e m e n t B e n e f i t C o s t s a n d T e r m i n a t i o n B e n e f i t s : 

D e f i n e d C o n t r i b u t i o n P l a n s 

P a y m e n t t o d e f i n e d c o n t r i b u t i o n r e t i r e m e n t bene f i t p l a n s a re r e c o g n i s e d a s a n e x p e n s e w h e n e m p l o y e e s h a v e r e n d e r e d s e r v i c e 
en t i t l i ng t h e m t o t h e c o n t r i b u t i o n s . 

C o n t r i b u t i o n s t o P r o v i d e n t a n d Fam i l y P e n s i o n F u n d a n d S u p e r a n n u a t i o n s c h e m e , w h i c h a r e d e f i n e d c o n t r i b u t i o n p l a n s , a re 
m a d e as r e q u i r e d by t h e s ta tu te a n d e x p e n s e d in t h e S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d Loss . 

D e f i n e d B e n e f i t P l a n s 

For d e f i n e d bene f i t r e t i r e m e n t bene f i t p l a n s , t h e c o s t of p r o v i d i n g bene f i t s is d e t e r m i n e d u s i n g t h e p r o j e c t e d un i t c r e d i t m e t h o d , 
w i t h ac tua r i a l v a l u a t i o n s b e i n g c a r r i e d o u t at t h e e n d of e a c h a n n u a l r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d . R e m e a s u r e m e n t c o m p r i s i n g ac tua r i a l 
g a i n s a n d l o s s e s a n d t h e e f fec t of t h e c h a n g e s t o t h e re tu rn o f p l a n a s s e t s ( e x c l u d i n g ne t in te res t ) , is r e f l ec ted i m m e d i a t e l y 
in t h e b a l a n c e s h e e t w i t h a c h a r g e o r c r e d i t r e c o g n i s e d in o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e in t h e p e r i o d in w h i c h t h e y occu r . 
R e m e a s u r e m e n t r e c o g n i s e d in t h e o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e is r e f l ec ted i m m e d i a t e l y in r e t a i n e d e a r n i n g s a n d is n o t 
rec lass i f i ed t o S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d Loss . Past s e r v i c e c o s t is r e c o g n i s e d in S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d Loss in t h e p e r i o d o f a 
p l a n a m e n d m e n t . Ne t i n te res t is c a l c u l a t e d b y a p p l y i n g t h e d i s c o u n t ra te at t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e p e r i o d t o t h e d e f i n e d bene f i t 
l iabi l i ty o r asse t . D e f i n e d bene f i t c o s t s a re c a t e g o r i s e d as f o l l o w s : 

• se rv i ce c o s t ( i n c l u d i n g c u r r e n t s e r v i c e c o s t , p a s t se rv i ce c o s t , as we l l as g a i n s a n d l o s s e s o n c u r t a i l m e n t s a n d s e t t l e m e n t s ) ; 

• ne t in te res t e x p e n s e or i n c o m e ; a n d 

• r e m e a s u r e m e n t 

T h e C o m p a n y p r e s e n t s t h e first t w o c o m p o n e n t s of d e f i n e d bene f i t c o s t s in t h e S t a t e m e n t o f Prof i t a n d L o s s in t h e l ine i t em 
" E m p l o y e e bene f i t s e x p e n s e " . C u r t a i l m e n t g a i n s a n d l o s s e s a re a c c o u n t e d for as p a s t s e r v i c e cos t . 

T h e r e t i r e m e n t bene f i t o b l i g a t i o n r e c o g n i s e d in t h e b a l a n c e s h e e t r e p r e s e n t s t h e a c t u a l de f i c i t or s u r p l u s in t h e C o m p a n y ' s 
d e f i n e d bene f i t p l a n s . A n y s u r p l u s r esu l t i ng f r o m th i s c a l c u l a t i o n is l im i t ed t o t h e p r e s e n t v a l u e o f a n y e c o n o m i c bene f i t s 
ava i l ab le in t h e f o r m of r e f u n d s f r o m t h e p l a n s or r e d u c t i o n s in f u t u r e c o n t r i b u t i o n s t o t h e p l a n s . 

A l iabi l i ty for t h e t e r m i n a t i o n bene f i t is r e c o g n i z e d at t h e ear l ie r of w h e n t h e en t i t y c a n n o l o n g e r w i t h d r a w t h e of fer o f t h e 
t e r m i n a t i o n bene f i t a n d w h e n t h e en t i t y r e c o g n i z e s a n y re la ted r e s t r u c t u r i n g c o s t s . 

S h o r t - t e r m a n d O t h e r L o n g - T e r m E m p l o y e e B e n e f i t s 

Liabi l i t ies r e c o g n i z e d in r e s p e c t of s h o r t - t e r m e m p l o y e e bene f i t s a re m e a s u r e d at t h e u n d i s c o u n t e d a m o u n t o f t h e bene f i t s 
e x p e c t e d t o b e p a i d in e x c h a n g e o f r e l a ted se rv i ce . 

L iab i l i t ies r e c o g n i z e d in r e s p e c t of o the r l o n g - t e r m e m p l o y e e bene f i t s a re m e a s u r e d at p r e s e n t v a l u e o f t h e e s t i m a t e d 
f u t u r e c a s h o u t f l o w s e x p e c t e d t o b e m a d e b y t h e C o m p a n y in r e s p e c t of s e r v i c e s p r o v i d e d b y e m p l o y e e u p t o t h e 
r e p o r t i n g d a t e . 
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2 . 1 2 B o r r o w i n g C o s t s : 

(a) B o r r o w i n g c o s t s t ha t a re a t t r i b u t a b l e t o t h e a c q u i s i t i o n , c o n s t r u c t i o n , o r p r o d u c t i o n o f a q u a l i f y i n g a s s e t a r e c a p i t a l i s e d 
as a pa r t o f t h e c o s t of s u c h a s s e t t i l l s u c h t i m e t h e a s s e t is r e a d y for its i n t e n d e d u s e o r sa le . A q u a l i f y i n g a s s e t is a n 
a s s e t t h a t n e c e s s a r i l y r e q u i r e s a s u b s t a n t i a l p e r i o d of t i m e (gene ra l l y o v e r t w e l v e m o n t h s ) t o g e t r e a d y for its i n t e n d e d 
u s e or sa le . 

(b) Al l o t h e r b o r r o w i n g c o s t s a re r e c o g n i s e d as e x p e n s e in t h e p e r i o d in w h i c h t h e y a re i n c u r r e d . 

2 . 1 3 T a x a t i o n : 

I n c o m e Tax e x p e n s e r e p r e s e n t s t h e s u m of t h e tax c u r r e n t l y p a y a b l e a n d d e f e r r e d tax . 

C u r r e n t Tax 

C u r r e n t t a x is m e a s u r e d a t t h e a m o u n t o f t ax e x p e c t e d t o b e p a y a b l e o n t h e t a x a b l e i n c o m e for t h e year. 

D e f e r r e d Tax 

D e f e r r e d tax is r e c o g n i s e d o n t e m p o r a r y d i f f e r e n c e s b e t w e e n t h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t s of a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies in t h e C o m p a n y ' s 
financial s t a t e m e n t s a n d t h e c o r r e s p o n d i n g tax b a s e s u s e d in c o m p u t a t i o n o f t a x a b l e pro f i t . 

D e f e r r e d tax l iab i l i t ies a re g e n e r a l l y r e c o g n i s e d for all t a x a b l e t e m p o r a r y d i f f e r e n c e s . 

D e f e r r e d tax asse t s i n c l u d i n g M i n i m u m A l t e r n a t e Tax (MAT) a re g e n e r a l l y r e c o g n i s e d for al l t a x a b l e t e m p o r a r y d i f f e r e n c e s t o 
t h e e x t e n t t h a t is p r o b a b l e t h a t t a x a b l e p ro f i t s wi l l b e ava i l ab le a g a i n s t w h i c h t h o s e d e d u c t i b l e t e m p o r a r y d i f f e r e n c e s c a n b e 
u t i l i sed . T h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t of d e f e r r e d tax a s s e t s is r e v i e w e d at t h e e n d of e a c h r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d a n d r e d u c e d t o t h e e x t e n t 
t ha t it is n o l o n g e r p r o b a b l e t ha t su f f i c ien t t a x a b l e pro f i t s wi l l b e ava i l ab le t o a l l o w al l or pa r t of t h e a s s e t t o b e r e c o v e r e d . 

D e f e r r e d tax a s s e t s re la t i ng t o u n a b s o r b e d d e p r e c i a t i o n / b u s i n e s s l o s s e s / l o s s e s u n d e r t h e h e a d " cap i t a l g a i n s " a re r e c o g n i s e d 
a n d c a r r i e d f o r w a r d t o t h e e x t e n t of a v a i l a b l e t a x a b l e t e m p o r a r y d i f f e r e n c e s or w h e r e t h e r e is c o n v i n c i n g o t h e r e v i d e n c e t ha t 
su f f i c ien t f u t u r e t a x a b l e i n c o m e wi l l b e a v a i l a b l e a g a i n s t w h i c h s u c h d e f e r r e d tax asse t s c a n b e r ea l i sed . 

D e f e r r e d t a x a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies a re m e a s u r e d u s i n g tax ra tes a n d t a x l a w s t h a t h a v e b e e n e n a c t e d or s u b s t a n t i v e l y e n a c t e d 
by t h e e n d of t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d a n d a re e x p e c t e d t o a p p l y w h e n t h e re la ted d e f e r r e d tax a s s e t is r ea l i sed o r t h e d e f e r r e d tax 
l iabi l i ty is s e t t l e d . 

T h e m e a s u r e m e n t o f d e f e r r e d t a x l iab i l i t ies a n d a s s e t s re f lec ts t h e t a x c o n s e q u e n c e s t h a t w o u l d f o l l o w f r o m t h e m a n n e r 
in w h i c h t h e C o m p a n y e x p e c t s , a t t h e e n d of t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d , t o r ecove r o r se t t le t h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t of its a s s e t s 
a n d l iab i l i t ies. 

C u r r e n t Tax A s s e t s a n d C u r r e n t Tax L iab i l i t ies a re o f fse t w h e n t h e r e is a l ega l l y e n f o r c e a b l e r igh t t o set -o f f t h e r e c o g n i s e d 
a m o u n t s a n d t h e r e is a n i n t en t i on t o se t t le t h e a s s e t a n d l iabi l i ty o n a ne t b a s i s . D e f e r r e d Tax A s s e t s a n d D e f e r r e d Tax L iabi l i ty 
a re o f fse t w h e n t h e y re la te t o t h e s a m e g o v e r n i n g t a x a t i o n l aws . 

C u r r e n t a n d D e f e r r e d tax is r e c o g n i s e d in S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d L o s s , e x c e p t w h e n it re la tes t o i t e m s r e c o g n i s e d in o t h e r 
c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e o r d i r ec t l y in equ i t y . In th is c a s e , t h e t a x is a l s o r e c o g n i s e d in o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e or d i rec t l y 
in equ i t y , respec t i ve l y . 

2 . 1 4 L e a s e s : 

Leases a r e c l ass i f i ed as finance l eases w h e n e v e r t h e t e r m s o f t h e l ease t rans fe r s u b s t a n t i a l l y al l t h e r isks a n d r e w a r d s o f 
o w n e r s h i p t o t h e l essee . Al l o t h e r l eases a re c l ass i f i ed as o p e r a t i n g l eases . 

O p e r a t i n g L e a s e s 

T h e C o m p a n y ' s o p e r a t i n g l ease a r r a n g e m e n t s a re for p r e m i s e s a n d v e h i c l e s . 

For p r e m i s e s / v e h i c l e s , t a k e n / g i v e n o n o p e r a t i n g l ease , l ease ren ta ls p a y a b l e / r e c e i v a b l e a re c h a r g e d / c r e d i t e d in t h e S t a t e m e n t 
of Prof i t a n d Loss . 

Renta l e x p e n s e u n d e r o p e r a t i n g l eases a re c h a r g e d t o t h e S t a t e m e n t o f Prof i t a n d L o s s o n a s t ra igh t - l i ne bas i s ove r t h e p e r i o d 
of t h e lease . W h e r e t h e ren ta l s a re s t r u c t u r e d s o l e l y t o i n c r e a s e in l ine w i t h e x p e c t e d g e n e r a l in f la t ion t o c o m p e n s a t e for t h e 
l esso r ' s e x p e c t e d in f l a t i onary c o s t i n c r e a s e s , s u c h i n c r e a s e s a re r e c o g n i s e d in t h e p e r i o d in w h i c h t h e y a re i n c u r r e d . 

2 . 1 5 P r o v i s i o n s , C o n t i n g e n t L i a b i l i t i e s a n d C o n t i n g e n t A s s e t s : 

P r o v i s i o n s : P rov i s i ons a re r e c o g n i s e d w h e n t h e r e is a p r e s e n t l ega l or c o n s t r u c t i v e o b l i g a t i o n a s a resu l t o f a p a s t even t , it 
is p r o b a b l e t ha t a n o u t f l o w o f r e s o u r c e s e m b o d y i n g e c o n o m i c bene f i t s wi l l b e r e q u i r e d t o se t t l e t h e o b l i g a t i o n a n d t h e r e is a 
re l iab le e s t i m a t e o f t h e a m o u n t o f t h e o b l i g a t i o n . P rov i s i ons a re m e a s u r e d u s i n g t h e c a s h flows e s t i m a t e d t o se t t le t h e p r e s e n t 
o b l i g a t i o n at t h e B a l a n c e s h e e t d a t e . 

C o n t i n g e n t L i a b i l i t i e s : C o n t i n g e n t l iab i l i t ies a re d i s c l o s e d w h e n t h e r e is a p o s s i b l e o b l i g a t i o n a r i s i ng f r o m p a s t e v e n t s , t h e 
e x i s t e n c e of w h i c h w i l l b e c o n f i r m e d o n l y b y t h e o c c u r r e n c e or n o n - o c c u r r e n c e o f o n e o r m o r e u n c e r t a i n f u t u r e e v e n t s n o t 
w h o l l y w i t h i n t h e c o n t r o l of t h e C o m p a n y o r a p r e s e n t o b l i g a t i o n t ha t a r i ses f r o m p a s t e v e n t s w h e r e it is e i ther n o t p r o b a b l e 
t ha t a n o u t f l o w o f r e s o u r c e s wi l l b e r e q u i r e d t o se t t le or a re l i ab le e s t i m a t e of t h e a m o u n t c a n n o t b e m a d e . 

C o n t i n g e n t A s s e t s : C o n t i n g e n t a s s e t s a re d i s c l o s e d , w h e r e a n i n f l ow of e c o n o m i c bene f i t s is p r o b a b l e . 

"7Q. 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

2 . 1 6 S e g m e n t R e p o r t i n g : 

O p e r a t i n g s e g m e n t s a re d e f i n e d a s c o m p o n e n t s of a n e n t e r p r i s e for w h i c h d i s c r e t e financial i n f o r m a t i o n is a v a i l a b l e t ha t 
is e v a l u a t e d regu la r l y b y t h e ch ie f o p e r a t i n g d e c i s i o n m a k i n g b o d y , in d e c i d i n g h o w t o a l l o c a t e r e s o u r c e s a n d a s s e s s i n g 
p e r f o r m a n c e . 

T h e r e p o r t i n g o f s e g m e n t i n f o r m a t i o n is t h e s a m e as p r o v i d e d t o t h e m a n a g e m e n t for t h e p u r p o s e of t h e p e r f o r m a n c e 
a s s e s s m e n t a n d r e s o u r c e a l l o c a t i o n t o t h e s e g m e n t s . 

S e g m e n t r e v e n u e , s e g m e n t e x p e n s e s , s e g m e n t asse t s a n d s e g m e n t l iab i l i t ies h a v e b e e n i den t i f i ed t o s e g m e n t s o n t h e b a s i s 
of the i r r e l a t i o n s h i p t o t h e o p e r a t i n g ac t i v i t ies of t h e s e g m e n t . Inter s e g m e n t r e v e n u e is a c c o u n t e d o n t h e b a s i s o f t r a n s a c t i o n s 
w h i c h a r e p r ima r i l y d e t e r m i n e d b a s e d o n marke t / f a i r v a l u e f a c t o r s . R e v e n u e , e x p e n s e s , a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies w h i c h re la te t o 
t h e C o m p a n y as a w h o l e a n d a re n o t a l l o c a b l e t o s e g m e n t s o n a r e a s o n a b l e b a s i s h a v e b e e n i n c l u d e d u n d e r " u n a l l o c a t e d 
r e v e n u e / e x p e n s e s / a s s e t s / l i a b i l i t i e s " . 

2 . 1 7 C a s h a n d C a s h E q u i v a l e n t s : 

C a s h a n d C a s h e q u i v a l e n t s i n c l u d e c a s h , c h e q u e s o n h a n d , c a s h at b a n k a n d s h o r t t e r m d e p o s i t s w i t h b a n k s h a v i n g o r i g i na l 
ma tu r i t y of t h r e e m o n t h s or less, w h i c h a re s u b j e c t t o i ns ign i f i can t r isk of c h a n g e s in v a l u e . 

2 . 1 8 S t a t e m e n t o f C a s h F l o w s : 

C a s h flows a re r e p o r t e d u s i n g t h e i nd i rec t m e t h o d w h e r e b y p ro f i t / ( l oss ) is a d j u s t e d for t h e e f fec ts of t r a n s a c t i o n s o f 
n o n - c a s h n a t u r e a n d a n y de fe r ra l s or a c c r u a l s o f p a s t o r f u t u r e c a s h r e c e i p t s or p a y m e n t s . T h e c a s h flows f r o m o p e r a t i n g , 
i n ves t i ng a n d financing ac t i v i t ies of t h e C o m p a n y a r e s e g r e g a t e d b a s e d o n t h e a v a i l a b l e i n f o r m a t i o n . 

2 . 1 9 D i v i d e n d t o E q u i t y S h a r e h o l d e r s : 

D i v i d e n d t o e q u i t y s h a r e h o l d e r s is r e c o g n i s e d as a l iabi l i ty a n d d e d u c t e d f r o m s h a r e h o l d e r s ' equ i t y , in t h e p e r i o d 
in w h i c h t h e d i v i d e n d s a re a p p r o v e d by t h e e q u i t y s h a r e h o l d e r s in t h e g e n e r a l m e e t i n g . 

2 . 2 0 E a r n i n g s p e r S h a r e : 

Bas ic e a r n i n g s pe r s h a r e is c a l c u l a t e d by d i v i d i n g t h e ne t p ro f i t or l oss fo r t h e p e r i o d a t t r i b u t a b l e t o e q u i t y s h a r e h o l d e r s b y 
t h e w e i g h t e d a v e r a g e n u m b e r of e q u i t y s h a r e s o u t s t a n d i n g d u r i n g t h e p e r i o d . For t h e p u r p o s e of c a l c u l a t i n g d i l u t e d e a r n i n g s 
pe r s h a r e , t h e ne t p ro f i t or l oss for t h e p e r i o d a t t r i b u t a b l e t o e q u i t y s h a r e h o l d e r s a n d w e i g h t e d a v e r a g e n u m b e r of s h a r e s 
o u t s t a n d i n g d u r i n g t h e p e r i o d is a d j u s t e d for t h e e f fec ts of al l d i l u t i ve po ten t i a l e q u i t y s h a r e s . 

2 .21 G o v e r n m e n t G r a n t s : 

G o v e r n m e n t g r a n t s i n c l u d i n g e x p o r t i n c e n t i v e s a re n o t r e c o g n i s e d unt i l t h e r e is r e a s o n a b l e a s s u r a n c e t h a t t h e C o m p a n y wi l l 
c o m p l y w i t h t h e c o n d i t i o n s a t t a c h i n g t o t h e m a n d t ha t t h e g r a n t s wi l l b e r e c e i v e d . T h e C o m p a n y a c c o u n t s for its e n t i t l e m e n t in 
t h e S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d L o s s o n a c c r u a l b a s i s in t h e p e r i o d in w h i c h t h e m a t c h i n g c o s t s a re i n c u r r e d . 

2 . 2 2 C r i t i c a l a c c o u n t i n g j u d g e m e n t s a n d k e y s o u r c e s o f e s t i m a t i o n u n c e r t a i n t y : 

T h e p r e p a r a t i o n of financial s t a t e m e n t s in c o n f o r m i t y w i t h I nd A S requ i r es t ha t t h e m a n a g e m e n t o f t h e C o m p a n y m a k e s 
j u d g e m e n t s , e s t i m a t e s a n d a s s u m p t i o n s t ha t a f fec t t h e r e p o r t e d a m o u n t s o f i n c o m e a n d e x p e n s e s of t h e p e r i o d , t h e r e p o r t e d 
b a l a n c e s of a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies a n d t h e d i s c l o s u r e s re la t i ng t o c o n t i n g e n t l iab i l i t ies as of t h e d a t e o f t h e financial s t a t e m e n t s . 
T h e j u d g e m e n t s , e s t i m a t e s a n d u n d e r l y i n g a s s u m p t i o n s a re r e v i e w e d o n a n o n g o i n g bas i s . Rev i s i ons t o s i gn i f i can t a c c o u n t i n g 
e s t i m a t e s i n c l u d e use fu l l ives a n d i m p a i r m e n t o f p rope r t y , p l an t a n d e q u i p m e n t , a l l o w a n c e for d o u b t f u l d e b t s / a d v a n c e s , d e f e r r e d 
tax a s s e t s , f u t u r e o b l i g a t i o n s in r e s p e c t of r e t i r e m e n t bene f i t p l a n s , e x p e c t e d c o s t of c o m p l e t i o n of c o n t r a c t s , a l l o w a n c e s fo r 
i nven to r i es , e tc . D i f f e rence , if any , b e t w e e n t h e a c t u a l resu l ts a n d e s t i m a t e s is r e c o g n i s e d in t h e p e r i o d in w h i c h t h e resu l t s 
a re k n o w n . 

( i ) U s e f u l l i v e s a n d I m p a i r m e n t o f p r o p e r t y , p l a n t a n d e q u i p m e n t 

T h e C o m p a n y rev i ews t h e use fu l life of p rope r t y , p l an t a n d e q u i p m e n t at t h e e n d of e a c h r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d . Th i s re¬
a s s e s s m e n t m a y resu l t in c h a n g e in d e p r e c i a t i o n e x p e n s e in f u t u r e p e r i o d s . 

T h e C o m p a n y a s s e s s e s at e a c h r e p o r t i n g d a t e w h e t h e r t h e r e is a n i n d i c a t i o n t ha t a n a s s e t m a y b e i m p a i r e d . If a n y 
s u c h i n d i c a t i o n ex is ts , o r w h e n a n n u a l i m p a i r m e n t t e s t i n g for a n a s s e t is r e q u i r e d , t h e C o m p a n y m a k e s a n e s t i m a t e 
of t h e a s s e t ' s r e c o v e r a b l e a m o u n t . A n a s s e t ' s r e c o v e r a b l e a m o u n t is t h e h i g h e r o f its fair v a l u e less c o s t s t o se l l a n d 
its v a l u e in u s e a n d is d e t e r m i n e d for a n i nd i v i dua l asse t , u n l e s s t h e a s s e t d o e s n o t g e n e r a t e c a s h i n f l ows t h a t a re 
l a rge ly i n d e p e n d e n t of t h o s e f r o m o t h e r a s s e t s or g r o u p s of a s s e t s a n d t h e a s s e t ' s v a l u e in u s e c a n n o t b e e s t i m a t e d 
t o b e c l o s e t o its fair v a l u e . In s u c h c a s e s t h e a s s e t is t e s t e d fo r i m p a i r m e n t a s pa r t of t h e c a s h - g e n e r a t i n g un i t t o 
w h i c h it b e l o n g s . W h e n t h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t of a n a s s e t or c a s h - g e n e r a t i n g un i t e x c e e d s its r e c o v e r a b l e a m o u n t , 
t h e a s s e t or c a s h - g e n e r a t i n g un i t is c o n s i d e r e d i m p a i r e d a n d is w r i t t e n d o w n t o its r e c o v e r a b l e a m o u n t . In a s s e s s i n g 
v a l u e in u s e , t h e e s t i m a t e d f u t u r e c a s h flows a r e d i s c o u n t e d t o the i r p r e s e n t v a l u e u s i n g a p re - tax d i s c o u n t ra te 
t ha t re f lec ts c u r r e n t m a r k e t a s s e s s m e n t s of t h e t i m e v a l u e of m o n e y a n d t h e r isks spec i f i c t o t h e asse t . I m p a i r m e n t 
l o s s e s re la t i ng t o c o n t i n u i n g o p e r a t i o n s a re r e c o g n i s e d in t h o s e e x p e n s e c a t e g o r i e s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h t h e f u n c t i o n of t h e 
i m p a i r e d asse t . 

~7 A 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

( i i ) A l l o w a n c e f o r D o u b t f u l D e b t s / A d v a n c e s 

W h e n d e t e r m i n i n g t h e l i fe t ime e x p e c t e d c r e d i t l o s s e s fo r t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s , t h e C o m p a n y c o n s i d e r s r e a s o n a b l e a n d 
s u p p o r t a b l e i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t is re levan t a n d a v a i l a b l e w i t h o u t u n d u e c o s t or e f for t . Th i s i n c l u d e s b o t h q u a n t i t a t i v e a n d 
qua l i t a t i ve i n f o r m a t i o n a n d a n a l y s i s , b a s e d o n t h e C o m p a n y ' s h i s to r i ca l e x p e r i e n c e a n d c r e d i t a s s e s s m e n t a n d i n c l u d i n g 
f o r w a r d - l o o k i n g i n f o r m a t i o n . Refer N o t e 10 (i i). 

( i i i ) D e f e r r e d Tax A s s e t s 

S ign i f i can t m a n a g e m e n t j u d g m e n t is r e q u i r e d t o d e t e r m i n e t h e a m o u n t o f d e f e r r e d tax a s s e t s t ha t c a n b e r e c o g n i s e d , 
b a s e d u p o n t h e l ike ly t i m i n g a n d t h e level of f u t u r e t a x a b l e p ro f i t s . T h e a m o u n t o f to ta l d e f e r r e d t a x a s s e t s c o u l d c h a n g e 
if e s t i m a t e s of p r o j e c t e d f u t u r e t a x a b l e i n c o m e or if t a x r e g u l a t i o n s u n d e r g o a c h a n g e . 

( i v ) E m p l o y e e B e n e f i t O b l i g a t i o n s 

E m p l o y e e bene f i t o b l i g a t i o n s a re d e t e r m i n e d u s i n g ac tua r i a l v a l u a t i o n s . A n ac tua r ia l v a l u a t i o n i nvo l ves m a k i n g v a r i o u s 
a s s u m p t i o n s t h a t m a y di f fer f r o m a c t u a l d e v e l o p m e n t s in t h e f u tu re . T h e s e i n c l u d e t h e d e t e r m i n a t i o n of t h e d i s c o u n t rate, 
f u t u r e sa la r y i n c r e a s e s a n d mor ta l i t y ra tes . D u e t o t h e c o m p l e x i t i e s i n v o l v e d in t h e v a l u a t i o n a n d its l o n g - t e r m na tu re , 
e m p l o y e e bene f i t o b l i g a t i o n is h i g h l y sens i t i ve t o c h a n g e s in t h e s e a s s u m p t i o n s . Al l a s s u m p t i o n s a re r e v i e w e d at e a c h 
r e p o r t i n g d a t e . 

(v) E x p e c t e d C o s t o f C o m p l e t i o n o f C o n t r a c t s 

T h e C o m p a n y ' s r e v e n u e r e c o g n i t i o n po l i cy , se t o u t in N o t e 2 .03 , e x p l a i n s h o w t h e C o m p a n y v a l u e s t h e w o r k it h a s 
c a r r i e d o u t in e a c h financial year . 

Es t ima tes a r e a l s o r e q u i r e d w i t h r e s p e c t t o t h e b e l o w m e n t i o n e d a s p e c t s o f t h e c o n t r a c t . 

1) D e t e r m i n a t i o n of s t a g e of c o m p l e t i o n ; 

2) E s t i m a t i o n o f p r o j e c t c o m p l e t i o n d a t e ; a n d 

3) E s t i m a t e d to ta l r e v e n u e s a n d e s t i m a t e d to ta l c o s t s t o c o m p l e t i o n , i n c l u d i n g c l a i m s a n d va r i a t i ons . 

(v i ) A l l o w a n c e f o r I n v e n t o r i e s 

A n i n v e n t o r y p r o v i s i o n is r e c o g n i s e d for c a s e s w h e r e t h e rea l i sab le v a l u e is e s t i m a t e d t o b e l o w e r t h a n t h e i n v e n t o r y 
c a r r y i n g v a l u e . T h e i n v e n t o r y p r o v i s i o n is e s t i m a t e d t a k i n g in to a c c o u n t v a r i o u s f a c t o r s , i n c l u d i n g p r e v a i l i n g s a l e s p r i c e s 
of i n v e n t o r y i t em a n d l o s s e s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h o b s o l e t e / n o n - m o v i n g i n v e n t o r y i t e m s . 

2 . 2 3 R e c e n t A c c o u n t i n g P r o n o u n c e m e n t s 

A p p l i c a t i o n o f n e w a n d r e v i s e d I n d A S s 

All t h e I nd ian A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d s ( " Ind A S " ) i s s u e d a n d no t i f i ed b y t h e M in is t ry of C o r p o r a t e Af fa i rs a re e f fec t i ve a n d 
c o n s i d e r e d for t h e s i gn i f i can t a c c o u n t i n g p o l i c i e s t o t h e ex ten t re levan t a n d a p p l i c a b l e for t h e C o m p a n y . 

T h e C o m p a n y h a s n o t a p p l i e d t h e f o l l o w i n g n e w a n d rev i sed I nd ian A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d s ( " Ind A S " ) t ha t h a v e b e e n i s s u e d 
a n d no t i f i ed b y t h e M in i s t r y o f C o r p o r a t e Af fa i rs in M a r c h 2 0 1 8 b u t a r e n o t y e t e f fec t ive . T h e s e a m e n d m e n t s a re in a c c o r d a n c e 
w i t h t h e r e c e n t a m e n d m e n t s m a d e b y In te rna t iona l A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d s B o a r d ( IASB) . T h e C o m p a n y is e v a l u a t i n g t h e i m p a c t 
of t h e s e p r o n o u n c e m e n t s o n t h e financial s t a t e m e n t s . 

I n d A S 1 1 5 - R e v e n u e f r o m C o n t r a c t s w i t h C u s t o m e r s 

O n 2 8 t h M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 , M in is t ry o f C o r p o r a t e Af fa i rs ( " "MCA" " ) h a s no t i f i ed t h e Ind A S 115, R e v e n u e f r o m C o n t r a c t w i t h C u s t o m e r s . 
T h e c o r e p r i n c i p l e of t h e n e w s t a n d a r d is t ha t a n en t i t y s h o u l d r e c o g n i z e r e v e n u e t o d e p i c t t h e t rans fe r o f p r o m i s e d g o o d s 
or s e r v i c e s t o c u s t o m e r s in a n a m o u n t t h a t re f lec ts t h e c o n s i d e r a t i o n t o w h i c h t h e en t i t y e x p e c t s t o b e en t i t l ed in e x c h a n g e 
for t h o s e g o o d s or se r v i ces . Fur ther t h e n e w s t a n d a r d r e q u i r e s e n h a n c e d d i s c l o s u r e s a b o u t t h e n a t u r e , a m o u n t , t i m i n g a n d 
u n c e r t a i n t y of r e v e n u e a n d c a s h flows a r i s i n g f r o m t h e en t i t y ' s c o n t r a c t s w i t h c u s t o m e r s . 

T h e s t a n d a r d p e r m i t s t w o p o s s i b l e m e t h o d s of t r ans i t i on : 

• R e t r o s p e c t i v e a p p r o a c h - U n d e r th is a p p r o a c h t h e s t a n d a r d wi l l b e a p p l i e d r e t r o s p e c t i v e l y t o e a c h p r io r r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d 
p r e s e n t e d in a c c o r d a n c e w i t h I nd A S 8- A c c o u n t i n g Po l i c ies , C h a n g e s in A c c o u n t i n g E s t i m a t e s a n d Er ro rs . 

• R e t r o s p e c t i v e l y w i t h c u m u l a t i v e e f fec t of in i t ia l ly a p p l y i n g t h e s t a n d a r d r e c o g n i z e d at t h e d a t e of ini t ial a p p l i c a t i o n 
( C u m u l a t i v e c a t c h - u p a p p r o a c h ) . T h e e f fec t i ve d a t e for a d o p t i o n of Ind A S 115 is financial p e r i o d s b e g i n n i n g o n or af ter 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 8 . 

T h e C o m p a n y is in t h e p r o c e s s of m a k i n g a n a s s e s s m e n t o f t h e i m p a c t of Ind A S 115 u p o n ini t ia l a p p l i c a t i o n . 

A p p e n d i x B t o I n d A S 2 1 , F o r e i g n c u r r e n c y t r a n s a c t i o n s a n d a d v a n c e c o n s i d e r a t i o n 

O n 2 8 t h M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 , M in is t ry o f C o r p o r a t e Af fa i rs ( "MCA" ) h a s no t i f i ed t h e C o m p a n i e s ( I nd ian A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d s ) 
A m e n d m e n t Ru les , 2 0 1 8 c o n t a i n i n g A p p e n d i x B t o Ind A S 2 1 , F o r e i g n c u r r e n c y t r a n s a c t i o n s a n d a d v a n c e c o n s i d e r a t i o n w h i c h 
c lar i f ies t h e d a t e of t h e t r a n s a c t i o n for t h e p u r p o s e o f d e t e r m i n i n g t h e e x c h a n g e rate t o u s e o n ini t ia l r e c o g n i t i o n o f t h e r e l a t ed 
asse t , e x p e n s e o r i n c o m e , w h e n a n en t i t y h a s r e c e i v e d or p a i d a d v a n c e c o n s i d e r a t i o n in a f o r e i g n c u r r e n c y . T h e a m e n d m e n t 
wi l l c o m e in to f o r c e f r o m 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 8 . 
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2 . 2 4 F i r s t t i m e A d o p t i o n o f I n d A S : 

T h e C o m p a n y h a s a d o p t e d Ind ian A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d s ( Ind AS) as no t i f i ed b y t h e M in i s t r y of C o r p o r a t e Af fa i rs w i t h e f fec t 
f r o m 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 7 , w i t h a t r a n s i t i o n d a t e of 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 . T h e s e financial s t a t e m e n t s for t h e y e a r e n d e d 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 
a re t h e first financial s t a t e m e n t s t h e C o m p a n y h a s p r e p a r e d u n d e r I nd A S . For al l p e r i o d s u p t o a n d i n c l u d i n g t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 , t h e C o m p a n y p r e p a r e d its financial s t a t e m e n t s in a c c o r d a n c e w i t h t h e a c c o u n t i n g s t a n d a r d s no t i f i ed 
u n d e r t h e s e c t i o n 133 of t h e C o m p a n i e s A c t 2 0 1 3 , r e a d t o g e t h e r w i t h ru le 7 of t h e C o m p a n i e s ( A c c o u n t s ) Ru les , 2 0 1 4 
( 'P rev ious G A A P ' ) . 

T h e C o m p a n y h a s p r e p a r e d o p e n i n g B a l a n c e S h e e t as pe r Ind A S as o f 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 ( t rans i t i on da te ) b y r e c o g n i s i n g al l 
a sse t s a n d l iab i l i t ies w h o s e r e c o g n i s t i o n is r e q u i r e d by I nd A S , d e r e c o g n i s i n g i t e m s of a s s e t s or l iab i l i t ies w h i c h a re n o t 
p e r m i t t e d t o b e r e c o g n i s e d b y Ind A S , r ec l ass i f y i ng i t e m s f r o m P rev i ous G A A P t o I nd A S as r e q u i r e d , a n d a p p l y i n g Ind A S 
t o m e a s u r e t h e r e c o g n i s e d a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies . T h e o p t i o n a l e x e m p t i o n a n d m a n d a t o r y e x c e p t i o n s a v a i l e d b y t h e C o m p a n y 
u n d e r Ind A S 101 a re as f o l l o w s : 

A . O p t i o n a l E x e m p t i o n : 

D e e m e d c o s t f o r p r o p e r t y , p l a n t a n d e q u i p m e n t a n d i n t a n g i b l e a s s e t s 

T h e C o m p a n y h a s e l e c t e d t o c o n t i n u e w i t h t h e c a r r y i n g v a l u e d e t e r m i n e d in a c c o r d a n c e w i t h P rev i ous G A A P for al l o f 
its p rope r t y , p l an t a n d e q u i p m e n t a n d i n t a n g i b l e a s s e t s r e c o g n i s e d as of 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 ( t rans i t i on da te ) a n d u s e t ha t 
c a r r y i n g v a l u e as d e e m e d c o s t of s u c h asse t s as o f t r ans i t i on d a t e . 

B. M a n d a t o r y E x c e p t i o n s : 

U s e o f E s t i m a t e 

O n a s s e s s m e n t of t h e e s t i m a t e s m a d e u n d e r t h e P rev i ous G A A P financial s t a t e m e n t s , t h e C o m p a n y h a s c o n c l u d e d 
t ha t t h e r e is n o n e c e s s i t y t o rev ise t h e e s t i m a t e s u n d e r Ind A S , a s t h e r e is n o o b j e c t i v e e v i d e n c e o f a n er ror in t h o s e 
e s t i m a t e s . H o w e v e r , e s t i m a t e s t ha t a re r e q u i r e d u n d e r I nd A S b u t n o t r e q u i r e d u n d e r P rev i ous G A A P a re m a d e b y t h e 
C o m p a n y fo r t h e re levan t r e p o r t i n g d a t e s re f l ec t i ng c o n d i t i o n s e x i s t i n g as a t t h a t d a t e . 
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( i ) R e c o n c i l i a t i o n o f E q u i t y : 

P a r t i c u l a r s A s a t A s at 
N o t e s 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

E q u i t y a s p e r P r e v i o u s G A A P 2 9 2 1 5 . 0 6 2 7 2 5 4 . 2 9 
Prov i s i on for E x p e c t e d C r e d i t Loss o n t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s (a) (4.52) (60.26) 
G a i n o n Fair V a l u a t i o n of Equ i t y i n v e s t m e n t s (b) 3 4 7 5 2 . 5 2 2 9 1 0 7 . 5 2 
G a i n o n Fair V a l u a t i o n of M u t u a l F u n d i n v e s t m e n t s (c) — 112 .43 
I n c o m e t a x a d j u s t m e n t s o n t h e a b o v e a d j u s t m e n t s (d) 1.55 2 0 . 8 5 
R e c o g n i t i o n of D e f e r r e d Tax A s s e t s o n c u m u l a t i v e l o s s e s (e) 1 1 6 6 . 1 5 1 5 0 9 . 8 2 
E q u i t y a s p e r I n d A S 6 5 1 3 0 . 7 6 5 7 9 4 4 . 6 5 

R e c o n c i l i a t i o n o f T o t a l C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e : 

P a r t i c u l a r s F o r t h e y e a r e n d e d 
N o t e s 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

P r o f i t a s p e r P r e v i o u s G A A P 1 9 6 0 . 7 7 
Reversa l of P rov i s i on for E x p e c t e d C r e d i t L o s s (a) 5 5 . 7 4 
Ac tua r i a l ( g a i n ) / l o s s o n e m p l o y e e d e f i n e d bene f i t p l a n s r e c o g n i s e d in (f) (151 .84) 
O the r C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e (net of t axes ) 
Reversa l of D e f e r r e d Tax A s s e t s o n u t i l i sa t ion of c a r r i e d f o r w a r d l o s s e s (e) (343 .67) 
Reversa l of g a i n o n r e m e a s u r e m e n t of M u t u a l F u n d i n v e s t m e n t s (c) (112 .43) 
I n c o m e t a x a d j u s t m e n t s o n t h e a b o v e a d j u s t m e n t s (d) 3 3 . 2 5 
N e t p r o f i t a f t e r t a x a s p e r I n d A S 1 4 4 1 . 8 2 
Othe r C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e (net of t axes ) (b) a n d (f) 5 7 4 4 . 2 9 
T o t a l C o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e a s p e r I n d A S 7 1 8 6 . 1 1 

( i i i ) N o t e s t o t h e R e c o n c i l i a t i o n t o P r e v i o u s G A A P : 

(a) T h e p r o v i s i o n is m a d e a g a i n s t t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s b a s e d o n " E x p e c t e d C red i t L o s s " m o d e l as pe r I nd A S 109. U n d e r P rev i ous G A A P 
t h e p r o v i s i o n w a s m a d e w h e n t h e r e c e i v a b l e t u r n e d d o u b t f u l b a s e d o n t h e a s s e s s m e n t o n c a s e t o c a s e bas i s . 

(b) U n d e r P r e v i o u s GAAP, l o n g t e r m i n v e s t m e n t s in Equ i t y I n s t r u m e n t s w e r e m e a s u r e d at c o s t less d i m i n u t i o n in v a l u e w h i c h is o the r 
t h a n t e m p o r a r y . U n d e r Ind A S , t h e s a m e a re m e a s u r e d a t fair v a l u e t h r o u g h O the r C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e . C o n s e q u e n t l y , t h e 
d i f f e rences , as a t t h e t r a n s i t i o n d a t e a n d as at t h e e n d o f y e a r 2 0 1 6 - 1 7 , b e t w e e n c a r r y i n g v a l u e as pe r P rev i ous G A A P a n d fair 
v a l u e , a re r e f l ec ted in to ta l e q u i t y a n d O the r C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e respec t i ve l y . 

(c) U n d e r P rev i ous GAAP, i n v e s t m e n t s in F i xed Ma tu r i t y P lans a n d O the r M u t u a l F u n d s w e r e m e a s u r e d at c o s t l ess d i m i n u t i o n in 
v a l u e w h i c h is o t h e r t h a n t e m p o r a r y . U n d e r Ind A S , t h e s a m e a r e m e a s u r e d at fair v a l u e t h r o u g h Prof i t a n d Loss . C o n s e q u e n t l y , 
t h e d i f f e rences , as a t t h e t r ans i t i on d a t e a n d as at t h e e n d of y e a r 2 0 1 6 - 1 7 , b e t w e e n c a r r y i n g v a l u e as pe r P rev i ous G A A P a n d fair 
v a l u e , a re r e f l ec ted in to ta l e q u i t y a n d Prof i t a n d Loss respec t i ve l y . 

(d) I n c o m e Tax a d j u s t m e n t s i n c l u d e s d e f e r r e d t a x i m p a c t o n a c c o u n t o f d i f f e r e n c e b e t w e e n P rev i ous G A A P a n d Ind A S . 

(e) U n d e r P rev i ous G A A P in t h e a b s e n c e o f v i r tua l ce r t a i n t y o f h a v i n g f u t u r e p ro f i t s , t h e C o m p a n y h a d r e c o g n i s e d d e f e r r e d tax a s s e t 
o n u n a b s o r b e d d e p r e c i a t i o n a n d t a x l o s s e s i n c u r r e d o n l y t o t h e ex ten t of t h e d e f e r r e d t a x l iab i l i t ies . A s pe r I nd A S , D e f e r r e d t a x 
a s s e t c a n b e r e c o g n i s e d if it is p r o b a b l e t ha t t h e c u r r e n t l o s s e s wi l l b e r e c o v e r e d a g a i n s t f u t u r e p ro f i t s , a c c o r d i n g l y t h e d e f e r r e d 
tax a s s e t h a s b e e n r e c o g n i s e d o n s u c h u n a b s o r b e d d e p r e c i a t i o n a n d tax l osses . 

(f) U n d e r P rev i ous G A A P ac tua r ia l g a i n s a n d l o s s e s o n e m p l o y e e s d e f i n e d bene f i t o b l i g a t i o n s w e r e r e c o g n i s e d as pa r t o f E m p l o y e e 
bene f i t s in S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d L o s s . U n d e r I nd A S , t h e ac tua r i a l g a i n s a n d l o s s e s o n r e - m e a s u r e m e n t of ne t d e f i n e d bene f i t 
o b l i g a t i o n s a re r e c o g n i s e d in O the r C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e . 

( i v ) O t h e r m a t e r i a l r e c l a s s i f i c a t i o n a d j u s t m e n t s m a d e i n t h e B a l a n c e S h e e t a n d S t a t e m e n t o f P r o f i t a n d L o s s 

(a) U n d e r P rev i ous G A A P M i n i m u m A l t e r n a t e Tax (MAT) e n t i t l e m e n t s w e r e c l ass i f i ed u n d e r o t h e r n o n - c u r r e n t a s s e t s . U n d e r I nd A S , it 
is c l ass i f i ed as u n u s e d tax c r e d i t s u n d e r d e f e r r e d tax . 

(b) U n d e r P rev i ous GAAP, r e v e n u e f r o m sa le of g o o d s w a s p r e s e n t e d ne t of e x c i s e d u t y w h e r e a s u n d e r I nd A S t h e r e v e n u e f r o m sa le 
o f g o o d s is p r e s e n t e d i nc lus i ve of e x c i s e du ty . T h e e x c i s e d u t y is p r e s e n t e d o n t h e f a c e of t h e S t a t e m e n t o f Prof i t a n d L o s s as pa r t 
o f e x p e n s e s . 

(c) U n d e r P rev i ous G A A P c a s h d i s c o u n t p a i d a n d o u t w a r d f r e i gh t r e c o v e r i e s w e r e r e c o r d e d u n d e r o t h e r e x p e n s e s a n d F re igh t a n d 
f o r w a r d i n g c h a r g e s respec t i ve l y . U n d e r Ind A S , c a s h d i s c o u n t p a i d a n d o u t w a r d f r e i g h t r e c o v e r i e s a re re f l ec ted , as a d j u s t m e n t s , 
in r e v e n u e . 

(d) U n d e r P rev i ous GAAP, t h e C o m p a n y h a d c r e a t e d p r o v i s i o n for d o u b t f u l d e b t s o n t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s o n t h e b a s i s of i n c u r r e d l oss . 
U n d e r Ind A S , loss a l l o w a n c e o n t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s h a s b e e n d e t e r m i n e d o n t h e b a s i s o f " E x p e c t e d C red i t L o s s " m o d e l as pe r I nd 
A S 109. 

(v ) R e c o n c i l i a t i o n o f c a s h flows f o r t h e y e a r e n d e d 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

T h e t r a n s i t i o n f r o m P rev i ous G A A P t o Ind A S h a s n o t m a d e a ma te r i a l i m p a c t o n t h e s t a t e m e n t of c a s h flows. 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

3. P r o p e r t y , P l a n t a n d E q u i p m e n t : 

L e a s e h o l d B u i l d i n g s I n c l . P l a n t a n d F u r n i t u r e O f f i c e M o t o r T o t a l 
L a n d R o a d s M a c h i n e r y a n d E q u i p m e n t s V e h i c l e s 

( R e f e r N o t e 2 ) F i t t i n g s 

D e e m e d C o s t : 
A s at 0 1 - 0 4 - 2 0 1 6 (Refer N o t e 1) 5 .42 2 7 4 3 . 7 2 4 4 9 8 . 7 5 138 .55 7 5 . 5 2 133 .33 7 5 9 5 . 2 9 
A d d i t i o n s - 9 .75 3 7 4 . 2 8 10 .40 4 4 . 0 0 — 4 3 8 . 4 3 
D e d u c t i o n s - — 4 .01 0 .04 2 .16 — 6.21 
A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 7 5 .42 2 7 5 3 . 4 7 4 8 6 9 . 0 2 1 4 8 . 9 1 1 1 7 . 3 6 1 3 3 . 3 3 8 0 2 7 . 5 1 

A d d i t i o n s — 2 0 0 . 2 7 4 .93 2 7 . 1 8 10 .65 2 4 3 . 0 3 
D e d u c t i o n s 0.61 10 .26 0 .52 0 .54 — 11 .93 
A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 8 4 . 8 1 2 7 5 3 . 4 7 5 0 5 9 . 0 3 1 5 3 . 3 2 1 4 4 . 0 0 1 4 3 . 9 8 8 2 5 8 . 6 1 

A c c u m u l a t e d d e p r e c i a t i o n : 
A s at 0 1 - 0 4 - 2 0 1 6 (Refer N o t e 1) — — — — — — 
D e p r e c i a t i o n c h a r g e for t h e y e a r 0 .12 1 1 8 7 1 6 . 3 8 3 7 . 4 8 3 5 . 6 7 16 .76 9 1 6 . 4 9 
A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 7 0 .12 1 1 0 . 0 8 7 1 6 . 3 8 3 7 . 4 8 3 5 . 6 7 1 6 . 7 6 9 1 6 . 4 9 

D e p r e c i a t i o n c h a r g e for t h e y e a r 0 .12 104 .86 6 7 1 . 5 6 26 .61 3 5 . 4 6 16 .93 8 5 5 . 5 4 
D e d u c t i o n s — — — — 0.13 — 0 .13 
A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 8 0 . 2 4 2 1 4 . 9 4 1 3 8 7 . 9 4 6 4 . 0 9 7 1 . 0 0 3 3 . 6 9 1 7 7 1 . 9 0 

N e t b o o k v a l u e 
A s at 0 1 - 0 4 - 2 0 1 6 5 .42 2 7 4 3 . 7 2 4 4 9 8 . 7 5 138 .55 7 5 . 5 2 133 .33 7 5 9 5 . 2 9 
A s at 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 7 5 .30 2 6 4 3 . 3 9 4 1 5 2 . 6 4 111 .43 8 1 . 6 9 116 .57 7 1 1 1 . 0 2 
A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 8 4 . 5 7 2 5 3 8 . 5 3 3 6 7 1 . 0 9 8 9 . 2 3 7 3 . 0 0 1 1 0 . 2 9 6 4 8 6 . 7 1 

N o t e s : 
1 . T h e C o m p a n y has e l e c t e d t o m e a s u r e al l its Proper ty , P lant a n d E q u i p m e n t at P rev ious G A A P c a r r y i n g a m o u n t as at 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 6 

as its d e e m e d c o s t for G r o s s B l o c k o n t h e d a t e of t r ans i t i on t o Ind A S i.e. 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 . 
2 . B u i l d i n g s i n c l u d e s ? 16 ,350 (P rev ious Year — ? 16 ,350) b e i n g t h e v a l u e of 3 2 6 s h a r e s (P rev ious Year — 3 2 6 sha res ) in C o - o p e r a t i v e 

S o c i e t i e s for o w n e d p r e m i s e s . 

4 . I n t a n g i b l e A s s e t s : 

C o s t : 
A s at 0 1 - 0 4 - 2 0 1 6 (Refer N o t e b e l o w ) 
A d d i t i o n s 
D e d u c t i o n s 
A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 7 

A d d i t i o n s 
D e d u c t i o n s 
A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 8 

A c c u m u l a t e d d e p r e c i a t i o n : 
A s at 0 1 - 0 4 - 2 0 1 6 (Refer N o t e b e l o w ) 
D e p r e c i a t i o n c h a r g e for t h e y e a r 
A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 7 

D e p r e c i a t i o n c h a r g e for t h e y e a r 
D e d u c t i o n s 

A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 8 

N e t b o o k v a l u e 
A s at 0 1 - 0 4 - 2 0 1 6 
A s at 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 7 

A s a t 3 1 - 0 3 - 2 0 1 8 

A p p l i c a t i o n 
S o f t w a r e 

76 .61 
8 0 . 0 8 

1 5 6 . 6 9 

5 0 . 4 9 

2 0 7 . 1 8 

7 0 . 9 3 
7 0 . 9 3 

7 5 . 9 0 

1 4 6 . 8 3 

76 .61 
8 5 . 7 6 

6 0 . 3 5 

N o t e : 
T h e C o m p a n y h a s e l e c t e d t o m e a s u r e al l its I n t ang ib l e A s s e t s at P rev i ous G A A P c a r r y i n g a m o u n t as at 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 6 as its d e e m e d 
c o s t for G r o s s B l o c k o n t h e d a t e o f t r a n s i t i o n t o I nd A S i.e. 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 . 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

N O N - C U R R E N T A S S E T S 

5. F i n a n c i a l A s s e t s : 

i) I n v e s t m e n t s : 

N o m i n a l Q u a n t i t y A s a t Q u a n t i t y A s at Q u a n t i t y A s at 
V a l u e 3 1 s t M a r c h , 3 1 s t M a r c h , 1st Ap r i l , 
( i n ?) 2 0 1 8 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 6 

N o n - c u r r e n t 

Q u o t e d e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s 
(All fu l l y p a i d up ) 

I n v e s t m e n t s c a r r i e d at fair v a l u e t h r o u g h 
o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e (FVTOCI ) 
S i e m e n s Ind ia L td . 2 2 1 3 8 1 6 0 2 2 9 4 3 . 5 2 2 1 3 8 1 6 0 2 6 8 9 3 . 7 7 2 1 3 8 1 6 0 2 3 4 9 1 . 9 6 
H D F C L td . 2 5 1 4 9 0 0 9 3 9 3 . 8 4 5 1 4 9 0 0 7 7 3 5 . 8 6 5 1 4 9 0 0 5 6 9 2 . 4 8 
ICICI B a n k L td . 2 8 7 0 1 5 2 4 2 . 2 5 7 9 1 0 5 2 1 9 . 2 0 7 9 1 0 5 187 .12 
H i n d u s t a n Oi l E x p l o r a t i o n C o . L td . 1 0 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 6 8 . 0 0 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 6 1 . 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 105 .17 
H D F C B a n k L td . 2 2 5 0 0 4 7 . 2 9 2 5 0 0 3 6 . 0 6 2 5 0 0 2 6 . 7 8 
B a n k o f I nd ia 1 0 5 4 0 0 5 . 5 8 5 4 0 0 7 .53 5 4 0 0 5 .24 

T o t a l a g g r e g a t e q u o t e d i n v e s t m e n t s A 3 3 0 0 0 . 4 8 A 3 5 1 5 3 . 7 5 A 2 9 5 0 8 . 7 5 
(a t Fa i r V a l u e ) 

A g g r e g a t e M a r k e t V a l u e o f q u o t e d 3 3 0 0 0 . 4 8 3 5 1 5 3 . 7 5 2 9 5 0 8 . 7 5 
i n v e s t m e n t s 

U n q u o t e d e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s 
(All fu l l y p a i d up ) 

S a r a s w a t C o - o p e r a t i v e B a n k L td 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 . 1 0 1000 0 .10 1000 0 .10 

T o t a l a g g r e g a t e u n q u o t e d i n v e s t m e n t s B 0 . 1 0 B 0 .10 B 0 .10 
T o t a l n o n - c u r r e n t i n v e s t m e n t s ( A + B ) 3 3 0 0 0 . 5 8 ( A + B ) 3 5 1 5 3 . 8 5 ( A + B ) 2 9 5 0 8 . 8 5 

i i ) L o a n s : 

U n s e c u r e d , c o n s i d e r e d g o o d 
E m p l o y e e L o a n s 
C o r p o r a t e D e p o s i t 

i i i ) O t h e r financial a s s e t s : 
U n s e c u r e d , c o n s i d e r e d g o o d 

S e c u r i t y D e p o s i t s 

( i n c l u d i n g Na t i ona l S a v i n g s Cer t i f i ca tes of t h e f a c e 
v a l u e of ? 0 .36 l akhs m a t u r e d b u t n o t e n c a s h e d , 
d e p o s i t e d w i t h G o v e r n m e n t D e p a r t m e n t s a n d 
S e m i G o v e r n m e n t — P r e v i o u s Year ? 0 .36 lakhs) 

O t h e r L o a n s a n d A d v a n c e s 

E m p l o y e e A d v a n c e s 

D e p o s i t s w i t h B a n k s w i t h m a t u r i t y p e r i o d m o r e t h a n 

12 m o n t h s * 

In te res t a c c r u e d o n D e p o s i t s 

O t h e r R e c e i v a b l e s 

* I n c l u d e s ? 127 .23 l a k h s k e p t as F i xed D e p o s i t s 
a g a i n s t B a n k G u a r a n t e e s 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

5 . 6 4 

6. N o n - C u r r e n t Tax A s s e t s ( N e t ) : 

A d v a n c e p a y m e n t s of t a x (ne t o f p r o v i s i o n ) 

5 . 6 4 

2 6 7 . 1 7 

7 . 3 0 

2 6 2 7 . 2 3 

6 6 2 . 2 7 

3 5 6 3 . 9 7 

6 6 . 9 4 

6 6 . 9 4 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

3 .89 
4 8 4 6 . 9 2 

4 8 5 0 . 8 1 

2 7 9 . 0 0 

8 .18 

2 5 0 0 . 0 0 

4 4 4 . 1 0 

3 2 3 1 . 2 8 

2 .84 

2 .84 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

6 .57 
9 3 4 0 . 6 7 

9 3 4 7 . 2 4 

2 8 0 . 3 6 

8 .40 

2 5 0 0 . 0 0 

1 3 4 4 . 2 9 

9 .92 

4 1 4 2 . 9 7 

7 2 7 . 3 0 

7 2 7 . 3 0 

~7Q 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

7. D e f e r r e d Tax A s s e t s ( N e t ) : 

D e f e r r e d Tax (L iabi l i ty) 
P roper ty , P lan t a n d E q u i p m e n t 

D e f e r r e d Tax A s s e t 
P rov i s i on for d o u b t f u l d e b t s a n d a d v a n c e s 
O t h e r T e m p o r a r y D i f f e rences 
Ca r r y F o r w a r d t a x l o s s e s 
M A T Cred i t 

D e f e r r e d Tax A s s e t s a n d D e f e r r e d Tax L iab i l i ty h a v e b e e n o f fse t as 
t h e y re la te t o t h e s a m e g o v e r n i n g t a x a t i o n l aws . 

(Refer N o t e N o . 4 2 for d e f e r r e d t a x m o v e m e n t a n d re la ted 
d i s c l o s u r e s ) 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

( 9 1 8 . 2 8 ) 

2 4 3 . 3 7 
2 5 6 . 0 4 
2 8 9 . 5 9 

1 9 9 6 . 6 9 

2 7 8 5 . 6 9 

1 8 6 7 . 4 1 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

(952 .15) 

2 7 0 . 2 8 
2 6 8 . 6 5 

1 5 8 0 . 9 3 
4 0 4 . 4 5 

2 5 2 4 . 3 1 

1572 .16 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

(1001 .08 ) 

2 9 2 . 1 4 
2 6 5 . 2 7 

1 9 7 4 . 3 4 
186 .63 

2 7 1 8 . 3 8 

1717 .30 

8. O t h e r N o n - C u r r e n t A s s e t s : 

Cap i ta l A d v a n c e s ( U n s e c u r e d ) 

O t h e r L o a n s a n d A d v a n c e s 
A d v a n c e s t o V e n d o r s 
B a l a n c e s w i t h S t a t u t o r y / G o v e r n m e n t A u t h o r i t i e s 
P r e p a i d E x p e n s e s 
O t h e r D e p o s i t s 

P r e p a i d Gra tu i t y (Refer N o t e N o . 33) 

3 1 . 5 9 2 6 . 4 4 2 0 . 5 7 

1 1 . 8 7 18 .99 18 .99 
2 1 5 1 . 1 4 2 7 8 5 . 5 1 1 8 9 1 . 9 3 

1 6 . 2 9 16.71 22 .51 
6 2 . 4 9 6 2 . 3 3 6 2 . 1 9 

3 7 . 8 7 — — 

2 3 1 1 . 2 5 2 9 0 9 . 9 8 2 0 1 6 . 1 9 

C U R R E N T A S S E T S : 

9. I n v e n t o r i e s : 

R a w Mate r i a l s a n d C o m p o n e n t s 
(In t rans i t ? 2 .03 l a k h s — P rev i ous Year ? 0 .79 lakhs) 
W o r k - i n - P r o g r e s s 
F i n i s h e d G o o d s 
S t o c k in T r a d e 
S t o r e s , S p a r e Par ts a n d Fuel 
C o n s u m a b l e Too ls 
P a c k i n g Mate r ia l s 

2 9 5 8 . 2 8 

5 0 7 3 . 0 7 
2 7 0 3 . 0 5 

2 6 6 . 3 5 
2 0 . 1 2 
2 0 . 3 7 

6 0 . 9 8 

1 1 1 0 2 . 2 2 

2 7 1 9 . 3 6 

4 1 3 2 . 9 8 
4 9 1 7 . 6 4 

4 5 8 . 1 9 
2 6 . 2 4 
2 3 . 9 7 
4 0 . 3 3 

12318 .71 

2 4 1 3 . 2 8 

2 5 4 0 . 6 6 
5 0 8 9 . 6 4 

4 8 2 . 6 4 
2 6 . 1 8 
14.01 
4 0 . 8 4 

1 0 6 0 7 . 2 5 

N o t e s : 

2 . 

3. 

4 . 

T h e c o s t o f i n ven to r i es r e c o g n i s e d as a n e x p e n s e d u r i n g 
t h e y e a r w a s ? 5 6 8 5 5 . 4 2 l a k h s (for t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 : ? 5 0 3 7 8 . 6 9 l akhs ) . 
T h e c o s t o f i n ven to r i es r e c o g n i s e d as a n e x p e n s e i n c l u d e s 
? 2 8 1 . 4 0 l akhs ( d u r i n g 2 0 1 6 - 2 0 1 7 : ? 185 .75 lakhs) in r e s p e c t of 
w r i t e - d o w n s o f i n v e n t o r y t o ne t r ea l i sab le v a l u e , a n d h a s b e e n 
r e d u c e d b y ? 19 .84 l akhs ( d u r i n g 2 0 1 6 - 2 0 1 7 : ? 2 5 . 3 7 l akhs ) 
in r e s p e c t o f t h e reversa l of s u c h w r i t e - d o w n s . P rev i ous 
w r i t e - d o w n s h a v e b e e n r e v e r s e d as a resu l t o f i n c r e a s e d 
sa les p r i c e s in c e r t a i n m a r k e t s . 

T h e m o d e of v a l u a t i o n of i n ven to r i es h a s b e e n s t a t e d in 
N o t e 2 .09 o n A c c o u n t i n g p o l i c y for i nven to r i es . 
I nven to r i es a re h y p o t h e c a t e d a g a i n s t l o a n s r e p a y a b l e o n 
d e m a n d f r o m b a n k s . Refer N o t e 16 (i) o n B o r r o w i n g s . 

1. 

O A 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

10 . F i n a n c i a l A s s e t s 

i) I n v e s t m e n t s 

I n v e s t m e n t s 
N u m b e r 
o f U n i t s 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 

2 0 1 8 

N u m b e r 
of Un i t s 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 

2 0 1 7 

N u m b e r 
of Un i ts 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 

2 0 1 6 

C u r r e n t 

U n q u o t e d M u t u a l F u n d s 

I n v e s t m e n t s c a r r i e d at fair v a l u e t h r o u g h p ro f i t 
a n d loss (FVTPL) 

ICICI P ruden t i a l M o n e y M a r k e t F u n d — G r o w t h 3 4 6 0 4 0 8 2 8 . 8 4 — — — — 

UTI M o n e y M a r k e t — IP — G r o w t h 4 6 8 3 1 9 0 8 . 1 8 — — — — 

ICICI Pruden t ia l — F M P ser ies 6 8 - 3 6 9 d a y s Plan K 
Regu la r P lan C u m u l a t i v e _ — — 4 1 0 3 4 1 8 5 2 2 . 7 8 

T o t a l a g g r e g a t e u n q u o t e d i n v e s t m e n t s 1 7 3 7 . 0 2 — 5 2 2 . 7 8 

A g g r e g a t e m a r k e t v a l u e o f u n q u o t e d 
i n v e s t m e n t s 

1 7 3 7 . 0 2 — 5 2 2 . 7 8 

A s a t A s at A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

i i ) T r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s : 

S e c u r e d , c o n s i d e r e d g o o d 7 6 . 2 8 5 4 . 8 5 6 4 . 6 2 
U n s e c u r e d : 

c o n s i d e r e d g o o d 2 9 5 1 7 . 7 7 2 2 3 0 0 . 1 3 2 2 2 6 8 . 0 0 
c o n s i d e r e d d o u b t f u l 6 9 6 . 4 5 7 8 0 . 9 8 8 4 4 . 1 5 

3 0 2 1 4 . 2 2 2 3 0 8 1 . 1 1 2 3 1 1 2 . 1 5 
Less : A l l o w a n c e for d o u b t f u l d e b t s 6 9 6 . 4 5 7 8 0 . 9 8 8 4 4 . 1 5 

2 9 5 1 7 . 7 7 2 2 3 0 0 . 1 3 2 2 2 6 8 . 0 0 

2 9 5 9 4 . 0 5 2 2 3 5 4 . 9 8 2 2 3 3 2 . 6 2 

i i i ) C a s h a n d c a s h e q u i v a l e n t s : 

B a n k b a l a n c e s 
In C a s h C red i t A c c o u n t s 1 7 5 . 6 2 1218 .51 4 9 . 2 5 
In C u r r e n t A c c o u n t s 8 1 . 4 0 100 .36 5 8 . 8 9 

C h e q u e s o n h a n d 6 2 . 0 0 6 2 . 7 9 7 6 . 4 8 
C a s h o n h a n d 3 . 3 8 3 .63 5.41 
R e m i t t a n c e s in t rans i t 1 5 2 . 3 3 5 0 . 8 5 7 7 . 1 2 

4 7 4 . 7 3 1436 .14 2 6 7 . 1 5 

i v ) B a n k b a l a n c e s o t h e r t h a n ( i i i ) a b o v e : 

E a r m a r k e d b a l a n c e s w i t h b a n k s 
In C u r r e n t A c c o u n t s (Refer N o t e b e l o w ) 
In F i xed D e p o s i t s 

3 5 . 8 8 
4 . 9 2 

4 6 . 7 0 
9.41 

6 2 . 5 2 
3.11 

O t h e r 
D e p o s i t s w i t h B a n k s w i t h o r i g i na l m a t u r i t y p e r i o d m o r e 
t h a n 3 m o n t h s b u t less t h a n 12 m o n t h s 

N o t e : 

B a l a n c e s in c u r r e n t a c c o u n t s a re e a r m a r k e d t o w a r d s u n c l a i m e d 
d i v i d e n d , r e p a y m e n t o f p u b l i c d e p o s i t s i n c l u d i n g in te res t . 

4 7 0 . 0 0 

5 1 0 . 8 0 

9 8 5 . 5 3 

4 7 0 . 0 0 

5 2 6 . 1 1 

1962 .25 

4 7 0 . 0 0 

5 3 5 . 6 3 

8 0 2 . 7 8 

Q 1 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

10 . F i n a n c i a l A s s e t s ( C o n t d . ) : 

v ) L o a n s : 

U n s e c u r e d , c o n s i d e r e d g o o d 

E m p l o y e e L o a n s 

C o r p o r a t e D e p o s i t 

A s a t A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

5 . 4 0 

1 7 4 3 0 . 1 2 

1 7 4 3 5 . 5 2 

3 .67 

9 8 7 7 . 1 7 

9 8 8 0 . 8 4 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

3 .98 

4 4 7 8 . 4 2 

4 4 8 2 . 4 0 

v i ) O t h e r F i n a n c i a l A s s e t s : 

U n s e c u r e d , c o n s i d e r e d g o o d 

E m p l o y e e A d v a n c e s 

In te res t a c c r u e d o n D e p o s i t s 

Der i va t i ve A s s e t 

O t h e r R e c e i v a b l e s 

1 5 . 5 2 

6 1 4 . 2 5 

0 . 0 9 

9 . 5 4 

6 3 9 . 4 0 

12.45 

2 0 9 5 . 3 8 

14 .56 

2 1 2 2 . 3 9 

16 .84 

2 1 . 2 8 

2 8 . 5 3 

6 6 . 6 5 

1 1 . C u r r e n t Tax A s s e t s ( N e t ) : 

A d v a n c e p a y m e n t s of t a x (ne t o f p r o v i s i o n ) 5 8 . 0 5 

5 8 . 0 5 

5 1 . 7 5 

5 1 . 7 5 

35 .21 

35 .21 

12 . O t h e r C u r r e n t A s s e t s : 

A d v a n c e s t o V e n d o r s 

B a l a n c e s w i t h S t a t u t o r y / G o v e r n m e n t A u t h o r i t i e s 

P r e p a i d E x p e n s e s 

O t h e r s 

E x p o r t I ncen t i ve 

G r o s s A m o u n t s D u e f r o m C u s t o m e r s o f C o n s t r u c t i o n C o n t r a c t s 
(Refer N o t e N o . 32) 

P r e p a i d Gra tu i t y (Refer N o t e N o . 33) 

6 3 . 6 5 

1 3 5 1 . 1 0 

2 4 9 . 4 7 

1 6 . 8 1 

1 3 . 5 2 

0 .02 

1 7 . 0 2 

1 7 1 1 . 5 9 

129 .68 

103 .13 

2 6 9 . 2 2 

12 .24 

28 .91 

6 6 . 9 8 

5 1 8 . 0 9 

2 2 6 . 5 9 

8 .30 

0 .13 

2 2 . 9 8 

5 4 3 . 1 8 8 4 3 . 0 7 

Q O 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

13 . E q u i t y S h a r e C a p i t a l : 
A u t h o r i s e d : 

2 ,00 ,000 (P rev ious Year — 2 ,00 ,000 ) 1 2 % N o n - C o n v e r t i b l e 
R e d e e m a b l e C u m u l a t i v e 
P r e f e r e n c e S h a r e s 
of ? 100 e a c h 

8 0 , 0 0 , 0 0 0 (Prev ious Year — 80 ,00 ,000 ) Equi ty Sha res of ? 10 e a c h 

I s s u e d a n d S u b s c r i b e d a n d f u l l y p a i d - u p s h a r e s 

56 ,51 ,560 (Prev ious Year — 56 ,51 ,560) Equi ty Sha res of ? 10 e a c h 

(a) D e t a i l s o f s h a r e s h e l d b y s h a r e h o l d e r s h o l d i n g m o r e t h a n 
5 % o f t h e a g g r e g a t e s h a r e s i n t h e C o m p a n y 

1. Life I n s u r a n c e C o r p o r a t i o n of I nd ia 

2. D a n m e t C h e m i c a l s Pvt. L td . 

3. Gaya t r i E d u c a t i o n M e d i c a l & R e s e a r c h F o u n d a t i o n Pvt. L td . 

4 . N ikh i l J . D a n a n i 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

2 0 0 . 0 0 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

2 0 0 . 0 0 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

2 0 0 . 0 0 

8 0 0 . 0 0 8 0 0 . 0 0 8 0 0 . 0 0 

1 0 0 0 . 0 0 

5 6 5 . 1 6 

5 6 5 . 1 6 

N o . o f S h a r e s 
(% o f h o l d i n g ) 

4 4 9 9 1 1 
( 7 . 9 6 ) 

4 5 9 7 7 7 
( 8 . 1 4 ) 

4 5 0 1 6 5 
( 7 . 9 7 ) 

3 3 9 5 1 9 
( 6 . 0 1 ) 

1 0 0 0 . 0 0 

5 6 5 . 1 6 

5 6 5 . 1 6 

N o . of S h a r e s 
(% o f h o l d i n g ) 

4 4 9 9 1 1 
(7.96) 

4 5 9 7 7 7 
(8.14) 

4 5 0 1 6 5 
(7.97) 

3 2 3 4 0 4 
(5.72) 

1000 .00 

5 6 5 . 1 6 

5 6 5 . 1 6 

N o . o f S h a r e s 
(% of h o l d i n g ) 

4 4 9 9 1 1 
(7.96) 

4 5 9 7 7 7 
(8.14) 

4 5 0 1 6 5 
(7.97) 

3 2 3 4 0 4 
(5.72) 

(b ) R i g h t s , p r e f e r e n c e s a n d r e s t r i c t i o n s a t t a c h e d t o s h a r e s 

Equ i ty Sha res : T h e C o m p a n y has o n e c l ass of equ i t y s h a r e s h a v i n g a pa r va l ue of ? 10 per sha re . Each s h a r e h o l d e r is e l i g ib le 
for o n e v o t e pe r s h a r e h e l d . T h e d i v i d e n d p r o p o s e d b y t he B o a r d of D i rec to rs is s u b j e c t t o t he a p p r o v a l o f t he s h a r e h o l d e r s in t h e 
e n s u i n g A n n u a l Gene ra l M e e t i n g , e x c e p t in c a s e of in te r im d i v i d e n d . In t he even t of l i qu ida t i on , t h e equ i t y s h a r e h o l d e r s a re e l ig ib le 
t o rece ive t he r e m a i n i n g asse ts of t h e C o m p a n y after d i s t r i bu t i on of all p re ferent ia l a m o u n t s , in p r o p o r t i o n t o thei r s h a r e h o l d i n g . 

14 . O t h e r E q u i t y : 

G e n e r a l R e s e r v e 
R e t a i n e d E a r n i n g s 
E q u i t y I n s t r u m e n t s t h r o u g h O t h e r C o m p r e h e n s i v e 
I n c o m e 

A s a t 
N o t e 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

1(A) 
1(B) 

2 4 4 7 1 . 3 7 
1 1 5 0 7 . 2 7 
3 2 5 9 9 . 2 5 

6 8 5 7 7 . 8 9 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

2 4 4 7 1 . 3 7 
5 3 4 1 . 7 1 

3 4 7 5 2 . 5 2 

6 4 5 6 5 . 6 0 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

2 4 4 7 1 . 3 7 
3 8 0 0 . 6 0 

2 9 1 0 7 . 5 2 

5 7 3 7 9 . 4 9 

Notes: 
I. Nature and Purpose of Reserve 

(A) General Reserve is created out of the profits earned by the Company 
by way of transfer from surplus in the statement of profit and loss. 
The Company can use this reserve for payment of dividends and issue 
of fully paid-up shares. As General Reserve is created by transfer 
of one component of equity to another and is not an item of other 
comprehensive income, items included in General Reserve will not be 
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(B) Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till 
date, less any transfers to General Reserve and payment of Dividend. 

II. Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares (Refer Note No. 41) 
Dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2018 : ? 2.50 per share 
(31st March, 2017 : ? NIL) 
Dividend Distribution Tax on proposed dividend 

141.29 

29.04 

170.33 
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15 . P r o v i s i o n s : 

E m p l o y e e b e n e f i t s : 
Prov i s i on for Gra tu i t y (Refer N o t e N o . 33) 

O t h e r s (Refer N o t e N o . 38) 

C U R R E N T L I A B I L I T I E S : 

16 . F i n a n c i a l L i a b i l i t i e s : 

i) B o r r o w i n g s : 

S e c u r e d : 
W o r k i n g Cap i t a l Faci l i t ies f r o m B a n k s r e p a y a b l e o n 
d e m a n d 

S e c u r e d by h y p o t h e c a t i o n of all t ang ib l e m o v e a b l e asse ts 
i nc l ud ing s t o c k of Raw Mater ia ls a n d C o m p o n e n t s , 
S to res , S p a r e s , Fuel , Work - i n -P rog ress , F in i shed G o o d s , 
S tock- in - t rade a n d B o o k Deb ts a n d nega t i ve l ien o n t he 
fixed asse ts . T h e ora l e q u i t a b l e m o r t g a g e , r ank ing s e c o n d 
a n d subse rv i en t t o m o r t g a g e s c r e a t e d , o n i m m o v a b l e 
p roper t i es e x c l u d i n g v a c a n t l and at C o m p a n y ' s Airol i 
f ac to ry is in t h e p r o c e s s of b e i n g sat is f ied as t h e s a m e 
has b e e n w a i v e d b y t he b a n k s . 

T h e w e i g h t e d ave rage effect ive interest rate o n t he W o r k i n g 
Capital Facilit ies is 9 .6% p.a. (for 31st March , 2017 8 .8% 
p.a., for 1st Apr i l , 2016 1 1 . 1 % p.a.) 

U n s e c u r e d : 

S h o r t T e r m L o a n s f r o m B a n k s 

T h e p r e s e n t i n te res t ra te o n t h e b a n k l o a n s is 
8 . 3 % p.a. (for 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 8 . 3 % p.a. , fo r 1st Ap r i l , 
2 0 1 6 1 0 . 0 % p.a) . 

i i ) T r a d e P a y a b l e s : 

D u e t o M i c r o E n t e r p r i s e s a n d S m a l l E n t e r p r i s e s 
[ see n o t e s (a) a n d (b) b e l o w ] 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

1 1 4 . 7 0 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

18 .08 

114 .70 

1 1 4 . 7 0 

3 4 6 7 . 5 6 

3 4 6 7 . 5 6 

1 7 9 9 7 . 0 0 

1 7 9 9 7 . 0 0 

2 1 4 6 4 . 5 6 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

112 .43 

114 .70 

132 .78 

2 8 7 8 . 0 4 

2 8 7 8 . 0 4 

1 4 8 7 9 . 3 5 

1 4 8 7 9 . 3 5 

1 7 7 5 7 . 3 9 

2 2 7 . 1 3 

4 4 2 2 . 3 8 

4 4 2 2 . 3 8 

1 2 4 5 0 . 0 0 

1 2 4 5 0 . 0 0 

1 6 8 7 2 . 3 8 

D u e t o c r e d i t o r s o t h e r t h a n M i c r o E n t e r p r i s e s a n d S m a l l 
En te rp r i ses 

(i) 

(ii) 

A c c e p t a n c e s 

O t h e r s 

7 9 2 1 . 9 4 

7 4 6 2 . 3 7 

1 5 3 8 4 . 3 1 

8 5 5 6 . 6 4 

6 9 9 5 . 3 1 

1 5 5 5 1 . 9 5 

7 7 0 9 . 5 2 

7 3 7 2 . 7 4 

1 5 0 8 2 . 2 6 

(a) D i s c l o s u r e u n d e r t h e M i c r o , S m a l l a n d M e d i u m 
En te rp r i ses D e v e l o p m e n t Ac t , 2 0 0 6 

T h e r e a r e n o M i c r o a n d Sma l l E n t e r p r i s e s t o w h o m 
t h e C o m p a n y o w e s d u e s w h i c h a re o u t s t a n d i n g 
for m o r e t h a n 4 5 d a y s as at 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 . 
Th i s i n f o r m a t i o n a s r e q u i r e d t o b e d i s c l o s e d 
u n d e r t h e M i c r o , S m a l l a n d M e d i u m E n t e r p r i s e s 
D e v e l o p m e n t Ac t , 2 0 0 6 h a s b e e n d e t e r m i n e d t o 
t h e e x t e n t s u c h pa r t i es h a v e b e e n iden t i f i ed o n t h e 
bas i s o f i n f o r m a t i o n ava i l ab le w i t h t h e C o m p a n y . 

QA 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

16 . F i n a n c i a l L i a b i l i t i e s ( C o n t d . ) : 

(b) D i s c l o s u r e in a c c o r d a n c e w i t h S e c t i o n 2 2 o f t h e 
M S M E D A c t r e a d w i t h No t i f i ca t i on N o . G S R 679 (E ) 
d a t e d 4 th S e p t e m b e r 2 0 1 5 i s s u e d b y t h e M in i s t r y 
of C o r p o r a t e Af fa i rs : 

P r inc ipa l a m o u n t r e m a i n i n g u n p a i d a n d in te res t 
d u e t h e r e o n 

I n te res t p a i d in t e r m s of S e c t i o n 16 

I n te res t p a i d , o t h e r t h a n u n d e r S e c t i o n 16 

In terest d u e a n d p a y a b l e for t h e p e r i o d o f d e l a y in 
p a y m e n t 

I n te res t a c c r u e d a n d r e m a i n i n g u n p a i d 

Fur ther In te res t r e m a i n i n g d u e a n d p a y a b l e for 
ear l ier y e a r s 

(c) T r a d e p a y a b l e s g e n e r a l l y h a v e p a y m e n t t e r m s o f 
0 t o 180 d a y s 

i i i ) O t h e r F i n a n c i a l L i a b i l i t i e s : 

In terest a c c r u e d b u t n o t d u e o n b o r r o w i n g s 
U n c l a i m e d d i v i d e n d s * 
U n c l a i m e d m a t u r e d d e p o s i t s a n d in te res t a c c r u e d t h e r e o n * 
D e p o s i t s f r o m V e n d o r s , Dea le r s 
Der i va t i ve l iab i l i ty 
O t h e r s 

* A s at t h e y e a r e n d t h e r e is n o a m o u n t d u e for p a y m e n t 
t o t h e Inves to r E d u c a t i o n a n d P r o t e c t i o n F u n d u n d e r 
S e c t i o n 125 of C o m p a n i e s Ac t , 2 0 1 3 . 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

8 2 . 4 9 
2 0 . 1 0 
1 4 . 9 6 

1 6 2 . 8 5 
1 5 . 5 6 

7 .42 

3 0 3 . 3 8 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

5 0 . 3 9 
2 9 . 3 7 
16 .50 

144 .19 

10 .47 

2 5 0 . 9 2 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

3 6 . 7 8 
3 9 . 9 8 
21 .71 

121 .28 

16 .58 

2 3 6 . 3 3 

17. O t h e r C u r r e n t L i a b i l i t i e s : 
Othe r p a y a b l e s : 

A d v a n c e s f r o m C u s t o m e r s 
E m p l o y e e Bene f i t s 
P ro jec t A m o u n t d u e t o c u s t o m e r s (Refer N o t e N o . 32) 
S t a t u t o r y d u e s 
O t h e r s 

1 2 0 5 . 4 7 
1 1 1 7 . 0 5 

7 5 . 6 3 
2 3 1 . 8 1 

1 0 5 0 . 4 8 

3 6 8 0 . 4 4 

1357 .33 
1008 .28 

7 1 . 1 3 
1 0 4 0 . 3 7 

8 7 8 . 6 9 

4 3 5 5 . 8 0 

8 3 7 . 5 7 
7 3 6 . 1 9 

30 .41 
9 6 0 . 6 0 
8 8 8 . 6 0 

3 4 5 3 . 3 7 

18. P r o v i s i o n s : 

E m p l o y e e bene f i t s : 
P rov i s i on for Gra tu i t y (Refer N o t e N o . 33) 
P rov i s i on for c o m p e n s a t e d a b s e n c e s 

O t h e r s 
P r o v i s i o n for W a r r a n t y C o s t s (Refer N o t e N o . 38) 
P r o v i s i o n for C o n t r a c t s 

19. C u r r e n t Tax L i a b i l i t i e s ( N e t ) : 

Prov i s i on for Tax (ne t o f a d v a n c e tax) 

_ 13 .04 5 4 . 6 7 
6 1 1 . 4 7 4 9 7 . 6 6 4 8 4 . 2 3 

5 0 4 . 7 9 2 8 5 . 7 5 4 1 8 . 2 6 

3 2 . 7 7 2 0 3 . 1 1 110 .66 

1 1 4 9 . 0 3 9 9 9 . 5 6 1067 .82 

1 2 3 . 9 7 2 8 . 9 0 3 .37 

1 2 3 . 9 7 2 8 . 9 0 3 .37 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

R E V E N U E F R O M O P E R A T I O N S 

2 0 . R e v e n u e F r o m O p e r a t i o n s 
( R e f e r N o t e 4 0 ) 

Sa le o f p r o d u c t s 

M a n u f a c t u r e d g o o d s 

T r a d e d g o o d s 

Sa le o f S e r v i c e s 

Pro jec t R e v e n u e 

O the r O p e r a t i n g r e v e n u e 

S c r a p Sa les 

D e t a i l s o f S a l e s 

M a n u f a c t u r e d g o o d s 

E lec t r i c M o t o r s 

T r a n s f o r m e r s 

M a g n e t T e c h n o l o g y M a c h i n e s 

D r i v e S y s t e m s 

T r a d e d g o o d s 

D r i v e s 

O t h e r s 

2 1 . O t h e r I n c o m e 

I n te res t 

D i v i d e n d I n c o m e 

Prof i t o n sa le a n d fair v a l u a t i o n o f C u r r e n t I n v e s t m e n t s 

Prof i t o n sa le of F i xed A s s e t s 

N e t g a i n o n f o r e i g n c u r r e n c y t r a n s a c t i o n a n d t r a n s l a t i o n 

P rov i s i on n o l o n g e r r e q u i r e d / C r e d i t B a l a n c e s a p p r o p r i a t e d 

M i s c e l l a n e o u s I n c o m e 

2 2 . C o s t o f m a t e r i a l s c o n s u m e d 

R a w Mate r i a l s a n d C o m p o n e n t s C o n s u m e d 

( I n c l u d i n g P r o c e s s i n g c h a r g e s a n d S u b c o n t r a c t i n g c h a r g e s ) 

P a c k i n g Mate r ia l s C o n s u m e d 

P ro jec t Ma te r ia l s C o n s u m e d 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

7 4 9 0 4 . 1 8 

1 2 4 3 . 5 3 

7 6 1 4 7 . 7 1 

6 7 6 . 6 2 

1 6 3 1 . 5 2 

7 8 4 5 5 . 8 5 

5 2 5 . 1 0 

7 8 9 8 0 . 9 5 

2 6 6 0 9 . 6 4 

4 4 3 7 9 . 5 8 

2 3 5 8 . 4 1 

1 5 5 6 . 5 5 

7 4 9 0 4 . 1 8 

1 0 2 7 . 1 1 

2 1 6 . 4 2 

1 2 4 3 . 5 3 

7 6 1 4 7 . 7 1 

1 6 6 9 . 7 7 

2 4 7 . 2 1 

6 4 . 1 0 

0 . 7 6 

4 5 . 3 7 

8 9 . 6 7 

2 1 1 6 . 8 8 

5 3 0 7 9 . 8 5 

1 1 4 5 . 9 3 

8 7 6 . 9 4 

5 5 1 0 2 . 7 2 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

7 1 2 9 5 . 4 9 

1 7 8 3 . 0 4 

7 3 0 7 8 . 5 3 

4 7 1 . 0 9 

1 0 0 7 . 4 7 

7 4 5 5 7 . 0 9 

4 1 3 . 2 6 

7 4 9 7 0 . 3 5 

2 6 4 9 4 . 2 0 

4 0 9 2 1 . 5 1 

2 4 8 9 . 6 4 

1 3 9 0 . 1 4 

7 1 2 9 5 . 4 9 

1 5 5 2 . 1 8 

2 3 0 . 8 6 

1 7 8 3 . 0 4 

7 3 0 7 8 . 5 3 

1 7 4 6 . 6 8 

8 0 8 . 0 2 

16 .66 

0 .30 

1.97 

2 6 . 1 5 

73 .41 

2 6 7 3 . 1 9 

4 8 3 6 4 . 3 6 

1 1 5 4 . 9 7 

5 8 3 . 0 1 

5 0 1 0 2 . 3 4 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

2 3 . P u r c h a s e s o f s t o c k i n t r a d e 

P u r c h a s e s 

2 4 . C h a n g e s i n i n v e n t o r i e s 

C h a n g e s i n i n v e n t o r i e s o f F i n i s h e d g o o d s , 
W o r k - i n - P r o g r e s s a n d S t o c k i n t r a d e 

S t o c k at t h e b e g i n n i n g of t h e y e a r 

W o r k - i n - P r o g r e s s 

F i n i s h e d G o o d s 

S t o c k in t r a d e 

S t o c k at t h e e n d o f t h e y e a r 

W o r k - i n - P r o g r e s s 

F i n i s h e d G o o d s 

S t o c k in t r a d e 

V a r i a t i o n i n E x c i s e d u t y o n finished g o o d s 

Exc ise d u t y o n c l o s i n g s t o c k 

L e s s : Exc i se d u t y o n o p e n i n g s t o c k 

2 5 . E x c i s e D u t y 

Exc ise D u t y o n Sa les 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

7 3 7 . 3 0 

7 3 7 . 3 0 

4 1 3 2 . 9 8 

4 9 1 7 . 6 4 

4 5 8 . 1 9 

9 5 0 8 . 8 1 

5 0 7 3 . 0 7 

2 7 0 3 . 0 5 

2 6 6 . 3 5 

8 0 4 2 . 4 7 

7 0 0 . 1 1 

( 7 0 0 . 1 1 ) 

7 6 6 . 2 3 

1 5 8 1 . 8 9 

1 5 8 1 . 8 9 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

1 4 2 5 . 0 2 

1 4 2 5 . 0 2 

2 5 4 0 . 6 6 

5 0 8 9 . 6 4 

4 8 2 . 6 4 

8 1 1 2 . 9 4 

4 1 3 2 . 9 8 

4 9 1 7 . 6 4 

4 5 8 . 1 9 

9 5 0 8 . 8 1 

7 0 0 . 1 1 

7 4 4 . 1 0 

(43.99) 

(1439 .86 ) 

7 2 2 3 . 0 2 

7 2 2 3 . 0 2 

2 6 . E m p l o y e e b e n e f i t s 

Sala r ies a n d W a g e s 

W o r k m e n a n d Staff We l f a re E x p e n s e s 

C o n t r i b u t i o n t o a n d p r o v i s i o n fo r P r o v i d e n t a n d O the r F u n d s 

7 4 2 9 . 8 5 

1 2 6 8 . 1 7 

4 6 6 . 8 6 

9 1 6 4 . 8 8 

7 0 6 7 . 6 9 

1 1 8 6 . 2 3 

4 6 7 . 9 7 

8 7 2 1 . 8 9 

2 7 . F i n a n c e c o s t s 

In terest e x p e n s e 

D i s c o u n t i n g C h a r g e s 

N e t ( ga in ) / l oss o n f o r e i g n c u r r e n c y t r a n s a c t i o n a n d t r a n s l a t i o n a d j u s t e d 
t o in te res t c o s t 

1 4 9 9 . 6 0 

2 9 3 . 3 6 

1 3 5 . 3 1 

1 3 8 6 . 8 4 

2 9 . 5 9 

178 .39 

1 9 2 8 . 2 7 1 5 9 4 . 8 2 

Q"7 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

Yea r e n d e d Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

2 8 . O t h e r E x p e n s e s : 

P o w e r a n d Fuel 6 4 8 . 8 9 5 8 4 . 6 1 

S t o r e s , S p a r e Par ts a n d Too ls c o n s u m e d 2 4 9 . 1 7 2 9 1 . 1 9 

Fuel c o n s u m e d ( e x c l u d i n g fo r o w n p o w e r g e n e r a t i o n ) 8 8 . 9 1 7 7 . 1 7 

Repa i r s t o B u i l d i n g s 5 0 . 0 5 5 4 . 1 3 

Repa i r s t o M a c h i n e r y 1 7 0 . 5 6 129 .05 

O t h e r Repa i r s 4 9 . 6 5 3 6 . 7 8 

I n s u r a n c e 6 1 . 6 1 5 5 . 7 9 

Ren t 1 5 5 . 3 6 154 .99 

Rates a n d Taxes 2 7 1 . 6 6 2 2 6 . 3 8 

Roya l t y 7 5 . 7 3 5 3 . 9 7 

Pos t a n d T e l e c o m m u n i c a t i o n C h a r g e s 1 3 3 . 8 5 145 .70 

T rave l l i ng , C o n v e y a n c e a n d M o t o r V e h i c l e E x p e n s e s 6 4 5 . 5 8 6 2 5 . 1 5 

F re igh t a n d F o r w a r d i n g C h a r g e s 2 4 7 0 . 1 8 2 1 7 6 . 8 0 

P r o d u c t A d v e r t i s e m e n t a n d Pub l i c i t y 5 1 . 6 2 7 9 . 7 5 

P r i n t i ng a n d S ta t i one ry 1 0 6 . 4 1 105 .98 

D a t a P r o c e s s i n g C h a r g e s 1 5 1 . 6 9 142 .71 

P r o f e s s i o n a l C h a r g e s 4 8 7 . 2 3 4 2 1 . 1 4 

C o m m i s s i o n 3 0 2 . 2 5 3 8 2 . 2 1 

B a n k C h a r g e s 3 6 3 . 8 9 2 6 5 . 6 0 

D i r ec to r s ' Fees 1 4 . 6 0 17 .40 

Ne t l oss o n f o r e i g n c u r r e n c y t r a n s a c t i o n a n d t r a n s l a t i o n 2 . 2 9 -

Ne t l oss a r i s i ng o n financial l iab i l i ty m a n d a t o r i l y m e a s u r e d at FVTPL 1 5 . 1 8 -

L o s s o n F i xed A s s e t s s o l d , d i s c a r d e d , a n d s c r a p p e d 1 0 . 9 8 5 .08 

A l l o w a n c e fo r d o u b t f u l d e b t s 1 7 . 8 9 110 .92 

Less : A l l o w a n c e for d o u b t f u l d e b t s n o l o n g e r r e q u i r e d 1 0 2 . 4 2 174 .09 

( 8 4 . 5 3 ) (63 .17) 

B a d D e b t s / S u n d r y Deb i t B a l a n c e s w r i t t e n of f 1 2 0 . 3 5 6 5 . 2 8 

O t h e r s 1 6 8 2 . 0 4 1189 .52 

8 2 9 5 . 2 0 7 2 2 3 . 2 1 

Q Q 
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2 9 . C o n t i n g e n t L i a b i l i t i e s : 

D i s p u t e d Sa les Tax D e m a n d s 

D i s p u t e d Exc ise Du t y D e m a n d s 

D i s p u t e d C u s t o m Du ty D e m a n d 

D i s p u t e d I n c o m e Tax D e m a n d s 

It is n o t p r a c t i c a b l e for t h e C o m p a n y t o e s t i m a t e t h e t i m i n g s of 
c a s h o u t f l o w s , if any , in r e s p e c t o f t h e a b o v e p e n d i n g r e s o l u t i o n 
of t h e r e s p e c t i v e p r o c e e d i n g s . 

3 0 . E s t i m a t e d a m o u n t of c o n t r a c t s r e m a i n i n g t o b e e x e c u t e d o n 
cap i t a l a c c o u n t a n d n o t p r o v i d e d for (net of a d v a n c e s ) 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

1 8 4 . 2 2 

2 3 7 . 0 9 

1 2 6 . 1 2 

2 4 . 7 6 

1 1 7 . 4 1 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

2 0 4 . 5 5 

2 5 2 . 7 1 

126 .12 

28 .01 

3 1 . P r o f e s s i o n a l C h a r g e s i n c l u d e : 

(a) To A u d i t o r s : (ne t of S e r v i c e Tax /GST) 

A u d i t Fees 

Tax A u d i t Fees 

O t h e r s 

R e i m b u r s e m e n t of O u t o f P o c k e t E x p e n s e s 

(b) To C o s t A u d i t o r s (net of Se rv i ce Tax /GST) 

3 2 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 11 : C o n s t r u c t i o n C o n t r a c t s 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

(a) Con t rac t R e v e n u e r e c o g n i s e d for t h e yea r (Refer N o t e N o . 20) 

3 8 . 0 7 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

2 0 . 0 0 

3 . 5 5 

1 9 . 5 6 

0 . 1 4 

4 3 . 2 5 

0 . 9 8 

1 6 3 1 . 5 2 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

3 4 4 . 7 5 

2 6 3 . 8 8 

126 .12 

28 .01 

2 5 . 8 9 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

17 .50 

3 .50 

19 .00 

0 .52 

4 0 . 5 2 

0 .85 

1 0 0 7 . 4 7 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

For c o n t r a c t s in p r o g r e s s as at y e a r e n d 

i) A g g r e g a t e a m o u n t o f c o s t i n c u r r e d a n d 
r e c o g n i s e d p ro f i t s ( less r e c o g n i s e d l osses ) 

ii) A m o u n t o f a d v a n c e s r e c e i v e d f r o m c u s t o m e r s 

iii) A m o u n t o f r e t e n t i o n s d u e f r o m c u s t o m e r s 

G r o s s a m o u n t d u e f r o m c u s t o m e r s 

G r o s s a m o u n t d u e t o c u s t o m e r s 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

1 9 4 2 . 9 9 

8 2 . 0 2 

1 0 7 . 4 8 

0 .02 

7 5 . 6 3 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

2 4 7 1 . 6 3 

120 .33 

185 .39 

28 .91 

7 1 . 1 3 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

2 4 2 2 . 2 3 

3 .28 

128 .60 

2 2 . 9 8 

30 .41 

3 3 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 1 9 : E m p l o y e e B e n e f i t s 

1) D e f i n e d c o n t r i b u t i o n p l a n s : 

T h e C o m p a n y p a r t i c i p a t e s in d e f i n e d c o n t r i b u t i o n p l a n s o n beha l f o f re levan t p e r s o n n e l . A n y e x p e n s e r e c o g n i s e d in re la t i on t o 

t h e s e s c h e m e s r e p r e s e n t s t h e v a l u e of c o n t r i b u t i o n s p a y a b l e d u r i n g t h e p e r i o d b y t h e C o m p a n y at ra tes s p e c i f i e d b y t h e ru les o f 

t h o s e p l a n s . T h e o n l y a m o u n t s i n c l u d e d in t h e b a l a n c e s h e e t a re t h o s e re la t i ng t o t h e p r io r m o n t h s c o n t r i b u t i o n s t ha t w e r e n o t 

d u e t o b e p a i d unt i l af ter t h e e n d of t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d . 

T h e d e f i n e d c o n t r i b u t i o n p l a n s a re as b e l o w : 

a ) P r o v i d e n t f u n d 
In a c c o r d a n c e w i th t he E m p l o y e e ' s Prov ident F u n d a n d Misce l laneous Provis ions Act , 1952 e l ig ib le e m p l o y e e s of t he C o m p a n y are 
ent i t led to receive benef i ts in respec t of p rov iden t f u n d , a de f i ned con t r i bu t ion p lan , in w h i c h b o t h e m p l o y e e s a n d t he C o m p a n y 
m a k e m o n t h l y con t r ibu t ions at a spec i f i ed p e r c e n t a g e of the c o v e r e d e m p l o y e e s ' salary. T h e con t r ibu t ions , as spec i f ied under 
t he law, are m a d e t o the p rov iden t f u n d adm in i s te red a n d m a n a g e d by G o v e r n m e n t of India (GOI) . T h e C o m p a n y has n o further 
ob l iga t ions unde r t he f u n d m a n a g e d by t he GO I b e y o n d its m o n t h l y con t r ibu t ions w h i c h are c h a r g e d to t he S ta temen t of Profit a n d 
Loss in t he pe r i od they are incur red . T h e benef i ts are pa id to e m p l o y e e s o n their re t i rement or res ignat ion f r o m the C o m p a n y . 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

3 3 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 1 9 : E m p l o y e e B e n e f i t s ( C o n t d . ) 

b ) S u p e r a n n u a t i o n f u n d 

T h e C o m p a n y h o l d s a p o l i c y w i t h a n I n s u r a n c e c o m p a n y , t o w h i c h it c o n t r i b u t e s a fixed a m o u n t re la t i ng t o s u p e r a n n u a t i o n 
a n d t h e p e n s i o n a n n u i t y is m e t b y t h e Insurer as r e q u i r e d , t a k i n g in to c o n s i d e r a t i o n t h e c o n t r i b u t i o n s m a d e . T h e C o m p a n y 
h a s n o fu r t he r o b l i g a t i o n s u n d e r t h e S c h e m e b e y o n d its m o n t h l y c o n t r i b u t i o n s w h i c h a r e c h a r g e d t o t h e S t a t e m e n t o f Prof i t 
a n d L o s s in t h e p e r i o d t h e y a re i n c u r r e d . 

C o n t r i b u t i o n t o D e f i n e d C o n t r i b u t i o n P lans , r e c o g n i s e d in t h e S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d L o s s for t h e y e a r u n d e r e m p l o y e e 
bene f i t s e x p e n s e , a re a s u n d e r : 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

i) E m p l o y e r ' s C o n t r i b u t i o n t o P r o v i d e n t F u n d 

ii) E m p l o y e r ' s C o n t r i b u t i o n t o S u p e r a n n u a t i o n F u n d 

T o t a l 

F o r t h e y e a r e n d e d 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

2 7 4 . 7 8 

5 7 . 8 8 

For t h e y e a r e n d e d 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

2 6 0 . 1 7 

5 5 . 9 7 

3 3 2 . 6 6 3 1 6 . 1 4 

(2) D e f i n e d B e n e f i t P l a n s : 

T h e D e f i n e d Bene f i t P lan is as b e l o w : 

G r a t u i t y ( F u n d e d ) 

T h e C o m p a n y h a s a n o b l i g a t i o n t o w a r d s gra tu i ty , a f u n d e d d e f i n e d bene f i t r e t i r e m e n t p l a n c o v e r i n g e l i g i b l e e m p l o y e e s . T h e 
p l a n p r o v i d e s for l u m p s u m p a y m e n t t o v e s t e d e m p l o y e e s at r e t i r emen t , o n d e a t h w h i l e in e m p l o y m e n t or o n t e r m i n a t i o n of t h e 
e m p l o y m e n t in t e r m s o f t h e p r o v i s i o n s o f t h e P a y m e n t of Gra tu i t y Ac t , 1972 or as pe r t h e C o m p a n y ' s S c h e m e , as a p p l i c a b l e . 
V e s t i n g o c c u r s u p o n c o m p l e t i o n o f five y e a r s o f se r v i ce . T h e C o m p a n y m a k e s a n n u a l c o n t r i b u t i o n s t o g ra tu i t y f u n d e s t a b l i s h e d 
w i t h t h e i n s u r a n c e c o m p a n y . T h e C o m p a n y a c c o u n t s for t h e l iab i l i ty for g ra tu i t y bene f i t s p a y a b l e b a s e d o n a n ac tua r ia l v a l u a t i o n . 
T h e p l a n t y p i c a l l y e x p o s e s t h e C o m p a n y t o ac tua r ia l r i sks s u c h as : i n v e s t m e n t r isk, i n te res t ra te r isk, l o n g e v i t y r isk a n d sa la r y r isk. 

I n v e s t m e n t r i s k 

T h e P robab i l i t y o r l i k e l i h o o d o f o c c u r r e n c e of l o s s e s re la t ive t o t h e e x p e c t e d re tu rn o n a n y pa r t i cu la r i n v e s t m e n t . 

I n t e r e s t r i s k 

I f t h e D i s c o u n t Rate i.e t h e y i e l d o n t h e G o v e r n m e n t B o n d s d e c r e a s e in f u tu re , t h e A c t u a r i a l L iab i l i ty wi l l i n c r e a s e a n d v i c e v e r s a . 
T h e q u a n t u m of i n c r e a s e in v a l u a t i o n l iab i l i ty c o r r e s p o n d i n g t o s p e c i f i c d e c r e a s e in t h e D i s c o u n t Rate a n d v i c e v e r s a , h a s b e e n 
s h o w n in t h e a n n e x u r e c o n t a i n i n g t h e sens i t i v i t y A n a l y s i s of Key A c t u a r i a l A s s u m p t i o n . 
L o n g e v i t y r i s k 

I f t h e Mor ta l i t y ra te e x p e r i e n c e d b y t h e staf f o f a pa r t i cu la r c o m p a n y is h i g h e r t h a n w h a t is a s s u m e d in mo r ta l i t y Tab le u s e d in t h e 
v a l u a t i o n , t h e v a l u a t i o n l iab i l i ty wi l l i n c r e a s e . 
Howeve r , it w i l l b e v e r y c u m b e r s o m e t o m e a s u r e t h e q u a n t u m of i n c r e a s e for a s s u m e d r e d u c t i o n o f Mor ta l i t y ra tes as c a n b e d o n e 
in c a s e of c h a n g e s in sa la ry G r o w t h Rate a n d In te res t Rate . 
S a l a r y r i s k 
I f t h e sa la r y G r o w t h Rate o v e r t h e f u t u r e y e a r s o f s e r v i c e s is i n c r e a s e d , t h e A c t u a r i a l L iab i l i ty w i l l i n c r e a s e a n d v i c e v e r s a . 
T h e q u a n t u m of i n c r e a s e in t h e v a l u a t i o n l iab i l i ty c o r r e s p o n d i n g t o spec i f i c i n c r e a s e in t h e sa la r y g r o w t h rate a n d v i c e v e r s a h a s 
b e e n s h o w n in t h e a n n e x u r e c o n t a i n i n g Sens i t i v i t y A n a l y s i s of Key Ac tua r i a l A s s u m p t i o n . 

T h e m o s t r e c e n t ac tua r i a l v a l u a t i o n of t h e p r e s e n t v a l u e of t h e d e f i n e d bene f i t o b l i g a t i o n w a s c a r r i e d o u t a t 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 by 
a n i n d e p e n d e n t ac tua ry . T h e p r e s e n t v a l u e of t h e d e f i n e d bene f i t o b l i g a t i o n , t h e r e l a t ed c u r r e n t se rv i ce c o s t a n d p a s t s e r v i c e c o s t 
w e r e m e a s u r e d u s i n g t h e p r o j e c t e d un i t c r e d i t m e t h o d . 

A . P r i n c i p a l a c t u a r i a l a s s u m p t i o n s u s e d : 

T h e p r i n c i p a l a s s u m p t i o n s u s e d for t h e p u r p o s e s of t h e ac tua r ia l v a l u a t i o n s a re as f o l l o w s : 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

1 . D i s c o u n t ra te 

2 . Sa la r y e s c a l a t i o n 

3. Rate of E m p l o y e e Tu rnove r 

4 . Mor ta l i t y ra te 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

7 . 7 5 % 

6 . 5 0 % 

u p t o a g e 3 4 = 3 % 
a g e 3 5 - 4 4 = 2 % 

a g e 4 5 & a b o v e = 1 % 

I n d i a n A s s u r e d L i v e s 
M o r t a l i t y ( 2 0 0 6 - 0 8 ) 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

7 . 5 0 % 

6 . 5 0 % 

u p t o a g e 3 4 = 3 % 
a g e 3 5 - 4 4 = 2 % 

a g e 4 5 & a b o v e = 1 % 

Ind ian A s s u r e d L ives 
Mor ta l i t y (2006-08 ) 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

7 . 5 0 % 

6 . 5 0 % 

u p t o a g e 3 4 = 3 % 
a g e 3 5 - 4 4 = 2 % 

a g e 4 5 & a b o v e = 1 % 

Ind ian A s s u r e d L ives 
Mor ta l i t y (2006-08 ) 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

3 3 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 1 9 : E m p l o y e e B e n e f i t s ( C o n t d . ) 

B. E x p e n s e s r e c o g n i s e d i n S t a t e m e n t o f P r o f i t a n d L o s s 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

S e r v i c e c o s t : 

C u r r e n t s e r v i c e c o s t 

Past s e r v i c e c o s t 

Ne t In terest c o s t 

C o m p o n e n t s o f d e f i n e d b e n e f i t c o s t s r e c o g n i s e d i n t h e ' E m p l o y e e 
b e n e f i t s e x p e n s e s ' i n t h e S t a t e m e n t o f P r o f i t a n d L o s s 

N e t I n t e r e s t C o s t r e c o g n i s e d i n S t a t e m e n t o f P r o f i t a n d L o s s : 

In terest C o s t 

( In te res t I n c o m e ) 

N e t i n t e r e s t c o s t r e c o g n i s e d i n S t a t e m e n t o f P r o f i t a n d L o s s 

C. E x p e n s e s R e c o g n i z e d i n t h e O t h e r C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n c o m e ( O C I ) 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

A c t u a r i a l ( G a i n s ) / L o s s e s o n O b l i g a t i o n For t h e Pe r i od - D u e t o c h a n g e s 
in d e m o g r a p h i c a s s u m p t i o n s 

A c t u a r i a l ( G a i n s ) / L o s s e s o n O b l i g a t i o n For t h e Pe r i od - D u e t o c h a n g e s 
in financial a s s u m p t i o n s 

A c t u a r i a l ( G a i n s ) / L o s s e s o n O b l i g a t i o n For t h e Pe r i od - D u e t o 
e x p e r i e n c e a d j u s t m e n t 

Re tu rn o n P lan A s s e t s e x c l u d i n g In te res t I n c o m e 

N e t ( I n c o m e ) / E x p e n s e F o r t h e P e r i o d R e c o g n i z e d i n O C I 

D. A m o u n t r e c o g n i s e d i n t h e B a l a n c e S h e e t 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

Presen t V a l u e of D e f i n e d Bene f i t O b l i g a t i o n as at t h e 
e n d of t h e y e a r 

Fair V a l u e o f p l a n a s s e t s 

N e t ( asse t ) / l i ab i l i t y r e c o g n i s e d i n t h e B a l a n c e S h e e t 

R e c o g n i s e d u n d e r : 

L o n g t e r m ( a s s e t ) / p r o v i s i o n (Refer n o t e n o . 8 a n d 15) 

Sho r t t e r m (asset ) /p rov is ion (Refer no te no . 12 a n d 18) 

T o t a l 

A s a t 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

2 1 3 7 . 5 0 

( 2 1 9 2 . 3 9 ) 

( 5 4 . 8 9 ) 

( 3 7 . 8 7 ) 

( 1 7 . 0 2 ) 

( 5 4 . 8 9 ) 

Y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

1 3 1 . 3 4 

0 . 5 3 

2 . 3 3 

1 3 4 . 2 0 

1 6 8 . 9 4 

( 1 6 6 . 6 1 ) 

2 . 3 3 

Y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

( 2 7 . 7 2 ) 

( 8 1 . 8 1 ) 

4 . 3 2 

( 1 0 5 . 2 1 ) 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

2 2 5 2 . 5 3 

(2221 .41 ) 

3 1 . 1 2 

18 .08 

13 .04 

3 1 . 1 2 

E. M o v e m e n t s i n t h e p r e s e n t v a l u e o f d e f i n e d b e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n a r e a s f o l l o w s : 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

O p e n i n g d e f i n e d bene f i t o b l i g a t i o n 

C u r r e n t S e r v i c e C o s t 

In te res t c o s t 

Past S e r v i c e C o s t 

R e m e a s u r e m e n t ( g a i n s ) / l o s s e s 

Bene f i t s Pa id ( F r o m t h e Fund ) 

C l o s i n g d e f i n e d b e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

2 2 5 2 . 5 3 

1 3 1 . 3 4 

1 6 8 . 9 4 

0 . 5 3 

( 1 0 9 . 5 3 ) 

( 3 0 6 . 3 1 ) 

2 1 3 7 . 5 0 

Year e n d e d 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

132 .48 

13 .37 

145 .85 

176 .08 

(162 .71) 

13 .37 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

(87.06) 

(85.11) 

2 0 . 3 4 

(151 .83) 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

2 2 0 0 . 9 5 

(2033 .85 ) 

167 .10 

112 .43 

5 4 . 6 7 

167 .10 

A s at 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

2 2 0 0 . 9 5 

132 .48 

176 .08 

(37.44) 

(219 .54) 

2 2 5 2 . 5 3 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

3 3 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 1 9 : E m p l o y e e B e n e f i t s ( C o n t d . ) 

F. M o v e m e n t s i n t h e fa i r v a l u e o f t h e p l a n a s s e t s a r e a s f o l l o w s : 

P a r t i c u l a r s A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

O p e n i n g fair v a l u e of t h e p l a n a s s e t s 2 2 2 1 . 4 1 2 0 3 3 . 8 5 

C o n t r i b u t i o n s b y t h e E m p l o y e r 1 1 5 . 0 0 130 .00 

R e m e a s u r e m e n t ( g a i n s ) / l o s s e s - 134 .73 

In terest i n c o m e 1 6 6 . 6 1 162.71 

E x p e c t e d re tu rn o n p l a n asse t s n o t i n c l u d e d in t h e in te res t i n c o m e ( 4 . 32 ) (20 .34) 

Bene f i t s p a i d ( 3 0 6 . 3 1 ) (219 .54) 

C l o s i n g f a i r v a l u e o f p l a n a s s e t s 2 1 9 2 . 3 9 2 2 2 1 . 4 1 

M a t u r i t y p r o f i l e o f d e f i n e d b e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n : 

P r o j e c t e d B e n e f i t s P a y a b l e i n F u t u r e Y e a r s F r o m t h e 
D a t e o f R e p o r t i n g 

E s t i m a t e d f o r t h e 
y e a r e n d e d 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

E s t i m a t e d for t h e 
y e a r e n d e d 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

1st F o l l o w i n g Year 6 7 9 . 7 3 5 8 6 . 1 0 

2 n d F o l l o w i n g Year 3 5 0 . 8 3 4 6 9 . 8 4 

3 r d F o l l o w i n g Year 1 5 4 . 5 9 2 6 6 . 2 2 

4 t h F o l l o w i n g Year 1 4 2 . 8 4 156 .74 

5 t h F o l l o w i n g Year 1 1 4 . 8 9 143 .43 

S u m of Years 6 t o 10 7 1 2 . 3 1 6 1 8 . 9 7 

S u m of Years 11 - a b o v e 1 2 4 8 9 . 3 7 1 1 6 0 0 . 0 6 

T o t a l e x p e c t e d p a y m e n t s 1 4 6 4 4 . 5 6 1 3 8 4 1 . 3 6 

S e n s i t i v i t y A n a l y s i s 

T h e Sens i t i v i t y A n a l y s i s b e l o w h a s b e e n d e t e r m i n e d b a s e d o n r e a s o n a b l y p o s s i b l e c h a n g e o f t h e r e s p e c t i v e a s s u m p t i o n s 
o c c u r r i n g at t h e e n d of t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d , w h i l e h o l d i n g al l o t h e r a s s u m p t i o n s c o n s t a n t . T h e s e sens i t i v i t i es s h o w t h e 
h y p o t h e t i c a l i m p a c t o f a c h a n g e in e a c h of t h e l i s ted a s s u m p t i o n s in i so la t i on . W h i l e e a c h of t h e s e sens i t i v i t i es h o l d s al l o t h e r 
a s s u m p t i o n s c o n s t a n t , in p r a c t i c e s u c h a s s u m p t i o n s rare ly c h a n g e in i so la t i on a n d t h e a s s e t v a l u e c h a n g e s m a y o f fse t t h e 
i m p a c t t o s o m e ex ten t . For p r e s e n t i n g t h e sens i t i v i t i es , t h e p r e s e n t v a l u e o f t h e D e f i n e d Benef i t O b l i g a t i o n h a s b e e n c a l c u l a t e d 
u s i n g t h e p r o j e c t e d un i t c r e d i t m e t h o d at t h e e n d of t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d , w h i c h is t h e s a m e as t ha t a p p l i e d in c a l c u l a t i n g t h e 
D e f i n e d Benef i t O b l i g a t i o n p r e s e n t e d a b o v e . T h e r e w a s n o c h a n g e in t h e m e t h o d s a n d a s s u m p t i o n s u s e d in t h e p r e p a r a t i o n 
of t h e Sens i t i v i t y A n a l y s i s f r o m p r e v i o u s year. 

P r o j e c t e d B e n e f i t s P a y a b l e i n F u t u r e Y e a r s F r o m t h e D a t e o f 
R e p o r t i n g 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

P r o j e c t e d Bene f i t O b l i g a t i o n o n C u r r e n t A s s u m p t i o n s 

I m p a c t of + 0 . 5 % C h a n g e in Rate of D i s c o u n t i n g ( 5 2 . 3 9 ) (28 .99) 

I m p a c t of - 0 . 5 % C h a n g e in Rate o f D i s c o u n t i n g 5 6 . 9 7 3 1 . 4 9 

I m p a c t of + 0 . 5 % C h a n g e in Rate of Sa la r y I n c r e a s e 5 6 . 8 5 3 1 . 6 0 

I m p a c t of - 0 . 5 % C h a n g e in Rate o f Sa la ry I n c r e a s e ( 5 3 . 3 2 ) (29 .35) 

I m p a c t of + 0 . 5 % C h a n g e in Rate of E m p l o y e e Tu rnove r 3 .01 1.31 

I m p a c t of - 0 . 5 % C h a n g e in Rate o f E m p l o y e e T u r n o v e r ( 3 . 17 ) (1.35) 

I. O t h e r D i s c l o s u r e s 

a) T h e w e i g h t e d a v e r a g e d u r a t i o n of t h e o b l i g a t i o n s as at 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 is 2 2 y e a r s (31s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 : 2 3 Years ; 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 : 2 2 Years ) . 

b) T h e C o m p a n y e x p e c t s t o c o n t r i b u t e ? 7 5 . 8 0 l a k h s t o t h e p l a n d u r i n g financial y e a r 2 0 1 8 - 1 9 . 
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3 4 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d A S - 1 0 8 : O P E R A T I N G S E G M E N T S 

B U S I N E S S S E G M E N T S 

P a r t i c u l a r s \ P o w e r S y s t e m s | I n d u s t r i a l S y s t e m s T o t a l 

F o r t h e y e a r 
e n d e d 3 1 s t 

M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

For t h e y e a r 
e n d e d 3 1 s t 

M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

F o r t h e y e a r 
e n d e d 3 1 s t 

M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

For t h e y e a r 
e n d e d 3 1 s t 

M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

F o r t h e y e a r 
e n d e d 3 1 s t 

M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

For t h e y e a r 
e n d e d 3 1 s t 

M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

S e g m e n t R e v e n u e 

Exte rna l R e v e n u e 4 7 1 0 2 . 6 2 4 2 6 6 8 . 1 9 3 1 8 7 8 . 3 3 3 2 3 0 2 . 1 6 7 8 9 8 0 . 9 5 7 4 9 7 0 . 3 5 

I n t e r - s e g m e n t R e v e n u e - - - - - -

T o t a l R e v e n u e 4 7 1 0 2 . 6 2 4 2 6 6 8 . 1 9 3 1 8 7 8 . 3 3 3 2 3 0 2 . 1 6 7 8 9 8 0 . 9 5 7 4 9 7 0 . 3 5 

S e g m e n t R e s u l t 3 4 3 3 . 3 8 2 7 6 9 . 7 2 2 3 5 9 . 9 3 1 1 5 7 . 3 0 5 7 9 3 . 3 1 3 9 2 7 . 0 2 

U n a l l o c a t e d I n c o m e / ( E x p e n s e ) (Net ) ( 1 2 7 5 . 1 4 ) (526 .52) 

F i n a n c e C o s t s ( 1 9 2 8 . 2 7 ) (1594 .82 ) 

E x c e p t i o n a l I t ems 4 6 7 7 . 9 2 -

Tax E x p e n s e (Deb i t ) /C red i t ( 1 1 7 1 . 0 6 ) (363 .86) 

Pro f i t / (Loss ) af ter Taxa t i on 6 0 9 6 . 7 6 1 4 4 1 . 8 2 

Particulars Power Systems Industrial Systems Total Particulars 
As at 

31st March, 
2018 

As at 
31st March, 

2017 

As at 
1st April, 

2016 

As at 
31st March, 

2018 

As at 
31st March, 

2017 

As at 
1st April, 

2016 

As at 
31st March, 

2018 

As at 
31st March, 

2017 

As at 
1st April, 

2016 

Segment Assets 33531.33 28330.98 27151.48 16960.30 15476.19 15037.81 50491.63 43807.17 42189.29 

Unallocated Assets 60871.81 60400.89 52698.02 

Total assets 111363.44 104208.06 94887.31 

Segment Liabilities 11431.48 13383.30 12108.45 8405.03 7054.83 7178.85 19836.51 20438.13 19287.30 

Unallocated Liabilities 22383.88 18639.17 17655.36 

Total liabilities 42220.39 39077.30 36942.66 

Capital Expenditure 

Segment Capital 
Expenditure 

93.25 71.10 27.67 598.74 112.32 95.62 691.99 183.42 123.29 

Unallocated Capital 
Expenditure 

93.64 287.49 262.51 

Total Capital 
Expenditure 

785.63 470.91 385.80 

Depreciation and 
Amortisation 

Segment Depreciation 
and Amortisation 

459.41 528.19 589.87 289.22 280.18 286.51 748.63 808.37 876.38 

Unallocated 
Depreciation and 
Amortisation 

182.81 179.05 151.06 

Total Depreciation and 
Amortisation 

931.44 987.42 1027.44 

Significant Non Cash 
Expenditure 

Segment Significant Non 
Cash Expenditure 

- - -

Unallocated Non Cash 
Expenditure 

- - -

Total Significant Non 
Cash Expenditure 

- - -
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

3 4 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d A S - 1 0 8 : O P E R A T I N G S E G M E N T S ( C o n t d . ) 

G E O G R A P H I C A L I N F O R M A T I O N 

P a r t i c u l a r s R e v e n u e f r o m E x t e r n a l C u s t o m e r s 

F o r t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

For t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

W i t h i n I nd ia 7 8 0 3 3 . 8 0 7 4 2 5 4 . 8 2 

O u t s i d e I nd ia 9 4 7 . 1 5 7 1 5 . 5 3 

7 8 9 8 0 . 9 5 7 4 9 7 0 . 3 5 

Al l N o n - c u r r e n t asse t s a re l o c a t e d in Ind ia . 

N o c u s t o m e r i nd i v i dua l l y c o n t r i b u t e d 1 0 % or m o r e t o t h e C o m p a n y ' s r e v e n u e for t h e y e a r e n d e d 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 a n d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 . 

O T H E R D I S C L O S U R E S : 

i. S e g m e n t s h a v e b e e n iden t i f i ed in l ine w i t h Ind A S 108 o n t h e b a s i s of p r o d u c t i o n a n d d i s t r i b u t i o n p r o c e s s a n d r e g u l a t o r y 
e n v i r o n m e n t . 

i i . T h e Ch ie f O p e r a t i n g D e c i s i o n M a k e r ( " C O D M " ) e v a l u a t e s t h e C o m p a n y ' s p e r f o r m a n c e a n d a l l o c a t e s r e s o u r c e s b a s e d o n a n 
a n a l y s i s of v a r i o u s p e r f o r m a n c e i n d i c a t o r s b y o p e r a t i n g s e g m e n t s . T h e C O D M rev i ews r e v e n u e a n d pro f i t f r o m o p e r a t i o n s as 
t h e p e r f o r m a n c e i nd i ca to r for all o f t h e o p e r a t i n g s e g m e n t s . 

i i i . N o o p e r a t i n g s e g m e n t s h a v e b e e n a g g r e g a t e d t o f o r m t h e a b o v e r e p o r t a b l e o p e r a t i n g s e g m e n t s . 

iv. W h i l e p r e s e n t i n g t h e s e g m e n t resu l t s , c o m m o n e x p e n s e s , c o m m o n a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies t o t h e e x t e n t n o t d i r ec t l y i den t i f i ab le 
w i t h a n y o n e s e g m e n t h a v e b e e n g r o u p e d as u n a l l o c a b l e . 

v. F i n a n c e i n c o m e a n d c o s t s , a n d fair v a l u e g a i n s a n d l o s s e s o n financial asse t s a re n o t a l l o c a t e d t o i nd i v i dua l s e g m e n t s as t h e 
u n d e r l y i n g i n s t r u m e n t s a re m a n a g e d o n a g r o u p bas i s . 

v i . C u r r e n t t a x e s , d e f e r r e d t a x e s a n d c e r t a i n financial a s s e t s a n d l iab i l i t ies a re n o t a l l o c a t e d t o t h o s e s e g m e n t s as t h e y a re a l s o 
m a n a g e d for t h e C o m p a n y as a w h o l e . 

v i i . Cap i t a l e x p e n d i t u r e c o n s i s t s of a d d i t i o n s of p rope r t y , p l an t a n d e q u i p m e n t a n d i n t a n g i b l e a s s e t s . 

S E G M E N T I N F O R M A T I O N : 

(i) C o m p o s i t i o n of B u s i n e s s S e g m e n t s : 

a . P o w e r S y s t e m s 

T h i s s e g m e n t c o m p r i s e s o f t h e d e s i g n , c o m m i s s i o n i n g a n d m a r k e t i n g o f p o w e r t r a n s f o r m e r s ; E P C p r o j e c t s for e lec t r i ca l 
s u b s t a t i o n s i n c l u d i n g de l i ve ry , rec t i f i ca t i on , c o m m i s s i o n i n g a n d s e r v i c i n g of t r a n s f o r m e r s a n d m a r k e t i n g of m a i n t e n a n c e 
p r o d u c t s . 

b. Indus t r ia l S y s t e m s 

T h i s s e g m e n t c o m p r i s e s o f t h e d e v e l o p m e n t , m a r k e t i n g a n d m a n u f a c t u r e of a w i d e r a n g e of s t a n d a r d a n d c u s t o m i z e d 
e lec t r i c m o t o r s ; m a g n e t t e c h n o l o g y m a c h i n e s a n d t h e e n g i n e e r i n g a n d s u p p l y of Dr ives a n d A u t o m a t i o n s y s t e m s . 

(ii) S e g m e n t R e v e n u e , Resul t , A s s e t s & L iab i l i t ies i n c l u d e r e s p e c t i v e a m o u n t s d i r ec t l y a t t r i b u t a b l e t o e a c h s e g m e n t & o t h e r 
r e l evan t a m o u n t s a l l o c a t e d o n r e a s o n a b l e bas i s . 

3 5 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d A S - 2 4 : R E L A T E D P A R T Y D I S C L O S U R E S : 

35 .1 R E L A T E D PARTIES 

A . Key M a n a g e m e n t P e r s o n n e l 

A 1 . Mr. N ikh i l J . D a n a n i , V i c e C h a i r m a n & M a n a g i n g D i rec to r 

A 2 . Mr. N a k u l P. M e h t a , V i c e C h a i r m a n & M a n a g i n g D i rec to r 

A 3 . Mr. S h o m e N. D a n a n i , E x e c u t i v e D i rec to r ( s o n of Mr. N ikh i l J . Danan i ) 

B. E n t e r p r i s e s o v e r w h i c h a n y o f (A) c a n e x e r c i s e c o n t r o l o r s i gn i f i can t i n f l u e n c e 

B 1 . D a n m e t C h e m i c a l s Pvt. L td . 

CM 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

3 5 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d A S - 2 4 : R E L A T E D P A R T Y D I S C L O S U R E S : ( C o n t d . ) 

35 .2 T R A N S A C T I O N S W I T H R E L A T E D PARTIES 

N a t u r e of t r a n s a c t i o n R e l a t e d Par t ies N a t u r e of t r a n s a c t i o n 

Re fe r red in (A) a n d (B) a b o v e 

N a t u r e of t r a n s a c t i o n 

W i t h C l o s i n g B a l a n c e 

N a t u r e of t r a n s a c t i o n 

A s a t 3 1 s t 
M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

A s at 
1st A p r i l , 2 0 1 6 

S h o r t - t e r m E m p l o y e e Bene f i t s P a y a b l e A 1 6 . 6 3 6.69 8 .76 S h o r t - t e r m E m p l o y e e Bene f i t s P a y a b l e 

A 2 7 .32 7.14 8 .15 

S h o r t - t e r m E m p l o y e e Bene f i t s P a y a b l e 

A 3 5 .12 5.54 5 .54 

V e n d o r P a y a b l e B1 2 2 . 9 7 16.56 2 1 . 5 8 

W i t h D u r i n g t h e y e a r e n d e d 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

S h o r t - t e r m E m p l o y e e Bene f i t s Pa id A 1 1 1 9 . 8 8 120 .23 S h o r t - t e r m E m p l o y e e Bene f i t s Pa id 

A 2 1 1 9 . 8 8 120 .23 

S h o r t - t e r m E m p l o y e e Bene f i t s Pa id 

A 3 8 7 . 6 3 8 7 . 7 5 

P u r c h a s e s B1 2 2 4 . 5 7 2 2 8 . 2 3 

Ren t R e c e i v e d B1 5 . 1 0 4 .68 

Notes: 
a) No amount has been written off or written back during the year ended 31st March, 2018. (Previous Year Nil). 

b) Remuneration does not include the provisions made for Gratuity as they are determined on an Actuarial basis for the Company 
as a whole. 

c) The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's 
length transactions. 

3 6 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 17 : L e a s e s 

A s a l essee in a O p e r a t i n g L e a s e : 

N o n - c a n c e l l a b l e : 

T h e C o m p a n y h a s h i r ed asse t s u n d e r n o n - c a n c e l l a b l e o p e r a t i n g l ease a r r a n g e m e n t s at s t i p u l a t e d ren ta l s . T h e s e l ease a r r a n g e m e n t s 
r a n g e for a p e r i o d b e t w e e n 11 m o n t h s a n d 9 y e a r s . M o s t o f t h e leases a re r e n e w a b l e for f u r t he r p e r i o d o n m u t u a l l y a g r e e a b l e t e r m s 
a n d a l s o i n c l u d e e s c a l a t i o n c l a u s e s . 

W i t h r e s p e c t t o all o p e r a t i n g l eases : 

Y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

L e a s e p a y m e n t s r e c o g n i s e d in t h e S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d Loss d u r i n g t h e y e a r 1 6 2 . 5 7 161 .31 

T h e f u t u r e M i n i m u m L e a s e P a y m e n t s (MLP) u n d e r t h e s e l eases a re as u n d e r : 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

A s a t 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

M L P d u e n o t later t h a n o n e y e a r 1 1 . 0 9 2 0 . 1 3 3 6 . 0 0 

M L P d u e later t h a n o n e y e a r b u t n o t later t h a n five y e a r s 6 .51 5 .77 2 4 . 8 2 

M L P later t h a n five y e a r s - - -

A C 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

3 7 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 3 3 : E a r n i n g s P e r S h a r e 

Y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

Year e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

Pro f i t / (Loss ) af ter Tax A 6 0 9 6 . 7 6 1441 .82 

W e i g h t e d A v e r a g e n u m b e r of Equ i t y S h a r e s B 5 6 5 1 5 6 0 5 6 5 1 5 6 0 

N o m i n a l Va lue Per S h a r e (?) C 1 0 . 0 0 10.00 

Bas ic a n d d i l u t e d E a r n i n g / ( l o s s ) p e r s h a r e ( in ?) D = A / B 1 0 7 . 8 8 25 .51 

3 8 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 3 7 : P r o v i s i o n s , C o n t i n g e n t L i a b i l i t i e s a n d C o n t i n g e n t A s s e t s 

3 9 . 

4 0 . 

4 1 . 

4 2 . 

Prov i s i ons C a r r y i n g 
a m o u n t as o n 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 7 

P rov i s i on m a d e 
d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

A m o u n t u s e d 
d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

C a r r y i n g 
a m o u n t as o n 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

O t h e r s # 1 1 4 . 7 0 - - 1 1 4 . 7 0 O t h e r s # 

(114 .70) - - (114 .70) 

W a r r a n t y * 2 8 5 . 7 5 4 7 8 . 3 4 2 5 9 . 3 0 5 0 4 . 7 9 W a r r a n t y * 

(418 .26) (177 .51) (310 .02) (285 .75) 

F igu res in t h e b r a c k e t a re for t h e p r e v i o u s year. 

# O t h e r s r e p r e s e n t l iabi l i ty in r e s p e c t o f s t a t u t o r y d u e s w h i c h is s u b - j u d i c e a n d p a y m e n t t h e r e o n wi l l d e p e n d u p o n t h e o u t c o m e of 
t h e c a s e . 

* P rov i s i on fo r W a r r a n t y C o s t s in c o n n e c t i o n w i t h repa i r s a n d f ree r e p l a c e m e n t of p a r t s d u r i n g w a r r a n t y p e r i o d is d e t e r m i n e d b a s e d 
o n p a s t e x p e r i e n c e a n d e s t i m a t e s a n d a re a c c r u e d in t h e y e a r of sa le . 

E x c e p t i o n a l I t e m 

E x c e p t i o n a l i t em r e p r e s e n t s e x c e s s of t h e c o m p e n s a t i o n r e c e i v e d o v e r t h e u n a m o r t i s e d l ease p r e m i u m o n s u r r e n d e r of a pa r t of t h e 
C o m p a n y ' s f a c t o r y l ease h o l d l a n d at A i ro l i , Nav i M u m b a i t o M I D C , t h e lessor , for p r o p o s e d p u b l i c r o a d p ro j ec t . 

R e v e n u e f r o m o p e r a t i o n s u p t o 3 0 t h J u n e , 2 0 1 7 i n c l u d e s e x c i s e du ty , w h i c h is d i s c o n t i n u e d e f fec t i ve 1st Ju ly , 2 0 1 7 u p o n i m p l e m e n t a t i o n 
of G o o d s a n d S e r v i c e s Tax (GST) in Ind ia . In a c c o r d a n c e w i t h ' I nd A S - 1 8 , R e v e n u e ' , G S T is n o t i n c l u d e d in r e v e n u e f r o m o p e r a t i o n s . 

S u b s e q u e n t E v e n t s 

T h e B o a r d of D i r ec to r s at its m e e t i n g h e l d o n 10 th May, 2 0 1 8 h a s r e c o m m e n d e d a d i v i d e n d of ? 2 .50 pe r e q u i t y s h a r e of ? 10/ - e a c h 
( total d i v i d e n d ? 141 .29 lakhs) for t h e y e a r e n d e d 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 , s u b j e c t t o a p p r o v a l o f s h a r e h o l d e r s at t h e A n n u a l G e n e r a l M e e t i n g 
t o b e h e l d o n 2 8 t h J u n e , 2 0 1 8 . 

D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 12 : I n c o m e T a x e s 

(a) M a j o r c o m p o n e n t o f t a x e x p e n s e / ( i n c o m e ) : 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

C u r r e n t Tax : 

C u r r e n t Tax (MAT) 

Tax R e f u n d / reversa l p e r t a i n i n g t o ear l ier y e a r s 

D e f e r r e d Tax : 

D e f e r r e d Tax 

M A T Cred i t e n t i t l e m e n t 

Tax R e f u n d / r e v e r s a l p e r t a i n i n g t o ear l ier y e a r s 

T o t a l Tax e x p e n s e s 

F o r t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

1 5 0 2 . 7 3 

For t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

2 6 3 . 2 7 

7 .99 

1 5 0 2 . 7 3 

1 1 6 4 . 4 8 

( 1 5 0 2 . 7 3 ) 

6 . 5 8 

( 3 3 1 . 6 7 ) 

1 1 7 1 . 0 6 

2 7 1 . 2 6 

3 1 0 . 4 2 

(217 .82) 

9 2 . 6 0 

3 6 3 . 8 6 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

4 2 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 12 : I n c o m e T a x e s ( C o n t d . ) 

(b ) I n c o m e Tax r e c o g n i s e d i n o t h e r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e 

P a r t i c u l a r s F o r t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

For t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

D e f e r r e d t a x ( c r e d i t ) / c h a r g e o n : 

R e m e a s u r e m e n t o f d e f i n e d bene f i t o b l i g a t i o n 3 6 . 4 2 5 2 . 5 4 

(c ) R e c o n c i l i a t i o n o f t a x e x p e n s e a n d t h e a c c o u n t i n g p r o f i t m u l t i p l i e d b y d o m e s t i c t a x r a t e a p p l i c a b l e i n 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

P r o f i t b e f o r e Tax ( i ) 

C o r p o r a t e t a x rate as pe r I n c o m e Tax Ac t , 1961 (ii) 

Tax o n A c c o u n t i n g p r o f i t ( i i i ) = ( i) * ( i i ) 

Tax d i f f e r e n c e o n a c c o u n t o f : 

(A) I n c o m e n o t c h a r g e a b l e t o tax 

(B) Tax rate d i f fe ren t ia l 

(C) E x p e n s e s n o t a l l o w a b l e u n d e r t h e I n c o m e Tax A c t 

(D) Tax R e f u n d / r e v e r s a l p e r t a i n i n g t o ear l ie r y e a r s 

(E) O the r t i m i n g d i f f e r e n c e s 

T o t a l e f f e c t o f t a x a d j u s t m e n t s 

Tax e x p e n s e r e c o g n i s e d d u r i n g t h e y e a r 

(d ) M o v e m e n t i n D e f e r r e d t a x b a l a n c e s : 

F o r t h e y e a r e n d e d 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

7 2 6 7 . 8 2 
3 4 . 6 1 % 

2 5 1 5 . 2 5 

( 1 3 0 4 . 3 7 ) 

1.38 

0 .27 

6 . 5 8 

( 4 8 . 0 5 ) 

I n d i a : 

For t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

1 8 0 5 . 6 8 

3 4 . 6 1 % 

6 2 4 . 9 5 

(274 .22) 

(2.43) 

7 .57 

7 .99 

( 1 3 4 4 . 1 9 ) 

1 1 7 1 . 0 6 

(261 .09) 

3 6 3 . 8 6 

P a r t i c u l a r s F o r t h e Y e a r e n d e d 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

O p e n i n g B a l a n c e R e c o g n i s e d i n P r o f i t 
a n d L o s s 

R e c o g n i s e d i n O C I C l o s i n g B a l a n c e 

Tax e f fec t of i t e m s c o n s t i t u t i n g 
d e f e r r e d tax asse ts / ( l i ab i l i t i es ) 

Proper ty , P lan t a n d E q u i p m e n t (952 .15) 3 3 . 8 7 - (918 .28) 

E m p l o y e e Bene f i t s - 3 6 . 4 2 (36 .42) -

P rov i s i on for d o u b t f u l d e b t s a n d 
a d v a n c e s 2 7 0 . 2 8 (26.91) - 2 4 3 . 3 7 

Ca r r y f o r w a r d Tax L o s s 1 5 8 0 . 9 3 (1291 .34 ) - 2 8 9 . 5 9 

O t h e r T e m p o r a r y D i f f e rences 2 6 8 . 6 5 (12.61) - 2 5 6 . 0 4 

M A T C r e d i t 4 0 4 . 4 5 1 5 9 2 . 2 4 - 1 9 9 6 . 6 9 

N e t Tax A s s e t ( L i a b i l i t i e s ) 1 5 7 2 . 1 6 3 3 1 . 6 7 ( 3 6 . 4 2 ) 1 8 6 7 . 4 1 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 12 : I n c o m e T a x e s ( C o n t d . ) 4 2 . 

P a r t i c u l a r s F o r t h e Y e a r e n d e d 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

O p e n i n g B a l a n c e R e c o g n i s e d i n p r o f i t 
a n d L o s s 

R e c o g n i s e d i n O C I C l o s i n g B a l a n c e 

Tax e f fec t o f i t e m s c o n s t i t u t i n g d e f e r r e d 
t a x asse ts / ( l i ab i l i t i es ) 

Proper ty , P lan t a n d E q u i p m e n t (1001 .08 ) 4 8 . 9 3 - (952 .15) 

E m p l o y e e Bene f i t s - 5 2 . 5 4 (52 .54) -

P rov i s i on for d o u b t f u l d e b t s a n d 
a d v a n c e s 2 9 2 . 1 4 (21 .86) - 2 7 0 . 2 8 

Ca r r y f o r w a r d Tax L o s s 1 9 7 4 . 3 4 (393 .41) - 1 5 8 0 . 9 3 

O t h e r T e m p o r a r y D i f f e rences 2 6 5 . 2 7 3 .38 - 2 6 8 . 6 5 

M A T C r e d i t 186 .63 2 1 7 . 8 2 - 4 0 4 . 4 5 

N e t Tax A s s e t ( L i a b i l i t i e s ) 1 7 1 7 . 3 0 ( 9 2 . 6 0 ) ( 5 2 . 5 4 ) 1 5 7 2 . 1 6 

4 3 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 1 0 7 : F i n a n c i a l I n s t r u m e n t s : D i s c l o s u r e s 

F i n a n c i a l i n s t r u m e n t s a n d R i s k m a n a g e m e n t 

4 3 . 1 C a p i t a l m a n a g e m e n t 

T h e cap i t a l s t r u c t u r e of t h e C o m p a n y c o n s i s t s o f ne t d e b t ( b o r r o w i n g s o f fse t b y c a s h a n d b a n k b a l a n c e s ) a n d to ta l e q u i t y o f 
t h e C o m p a n y . T h e C o m p a n y m a n a g e s its c a p i t a l t o e n s u r e t h a t t h e C o m p a n y wi l l b e a b l e t o c o n t i n u e as g o i n g c o n c e r n w h i l e 
m a x i m i s i n g t h e re tu rn t o s t a k e h o l d e r s t h r o u g h a n o p t i m u m m i x o f d e b t a n d e q u i t y w i t h i n t h e ove ra l l cap i t a l s t r u c t u r e . T h e 
C o m p a n y ' s m a n a g e m e n t r ev i ews i t 's cap i t a l s t r u c t u r e c o n s i d e r i n g t h e c o s t o f c a p i t a l , t h e r isks a s s o c i a t e d w i t h e a c h c l ass o f 
cap i t a l a n d t h e n e e d t o m a i n t a i n a d e q u a t e l i qu id i t y t o m e e t its financial o b l i g a t i o n s w h e n t h e y b e c o m e d u e . A c c o r d i n g l y t h e 
m a n a g e m e n t a n d t h e B o a r d of D i rec to rs p e r i o d i c a l l y r e v i e w a n d se t p r u d e n t l imi t o n overa l l b o r r o w i n g l imi ts of t h e C o m p a n y . 

4 3 . 2 C a t e g o r i e s o f financial i n s t r u m e n t s 

T h e f o l l o w i n g t a b l e p r o v i d e s c a t e g o r i s a t i o n of al l financial i n s t r u m e n t s at c a r r y i n g v a l u e . 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

F i n a n c i a l a s s e t s 

(a) 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

(b) 

M a n d a t o r i l y m e a s u r e d at fair v a l u e t h r o u g h pro f i t 
or l oss (FVTPL) 

(i) M u t u a l F u n d I n v e s t m e n t s 

(ii) Der iva t i ve A s s e t s 

M e a s u r e d at a m o r t i s e d c o s t 

(i) C a s h a n d c a s h e q u i v a l e n t 

(ii) B a n k b a l a n c e o t h e r t h a n (a) a b o v e 

(iii) T r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s 

(iv) L o a n s 

(v) O the r financial asse t s 

(c) M e a s u r e d at F V T O C I 

(i) I n v e s t m e n t s in e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s 

T o t a l F i n a n c i a l A s s e t s 

1 7 3 7 . 0 2 

0 . 0 9 

4 7 4 . 7 3 

5 1 0 . 8 0 

2 9 5 9 4 . 0 5 

1 7 4 4 1 . 1 6 

4 2 0 3 . 2 8 

3 3 0 0 0 . 5 8 

8 6 9 6 1 . 7 1 

1436 .14 

5 2 6 . 1 1 

2 2 3 5 4 . 9 8 

14731 .65 

5 3 5 3 . 6 7 

3 5 1 5 3 . 8 5 

7 9 5 5 6 . 4 0 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

5 2 2 . 7 8 

2 6 7 . 1 5 

5 3 5 . 6 3 

2 2 3 3 2 . 6 2 

1 3 8 2 9 . 6 4 

4 2 0 9 . 6 2 

2 9 5 0 8 . 8 5 

7 1 2 0 6 . 2 9 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

4 3 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 1 0 7 : F i n a n c i a l I n s t r u m e n t s : D i s c l o s u r e s ( C o n t d . ) 

P a r t i c u l a r s 

F i n a n c i a l l i a b i l i t i e s 

(a) M a n d a t o r i l y m e a s u r e d at fair v a l u e t h r o u g h pro f i t 

or l oss (FVTPL) 

(i) Der iva t i ve L iab i l i t ies 

(b) M e a s u r e d at a m o r t i s e d c o s t 

(i) B o r r o w i n g s 

(ii) T r a d e p a y a b l e s 
(iii) O the r financial l iab i l i t ies ( i n c l u d i n g c u r r e n t 

ma tu r i t i es o f b o r r o w i n g s ) 

T o t a l F i n a n c i a l L i a b i l i t i e s 

A s a t 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

1 5 . 5 6 

2 1 4 6 4 . 5 6 

1 5 3 8 4 . 3 1 

2 8 7 . 8 2 

A s at 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

3 7 1 5 2 . 2 5 

1 7 7 5 7 . 3 9 

15551 .95 

2 5 0 . 9 2 

3 3 5 6 0 . 2 6 

A s at 
1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

1 6 8 7 2 . 3 8 

15082 .26 

2 3 6 . 3 3 

3 2 1 9 0 . 9 7 

4 3 . 3 F i n a n c i a l r i s k m a n a g e m e n t 

T h e financial r i sks e m a n a t i n g f r o m t h e C o m p a n y ' s o p e r a t i n g b u s i n e s s i n c l u d e m a r k e t r isk, c r e d i t r isk a n d l i qu id i t y r isk. T h e s e 
r isks a re m a n a g e d b y t h e C o m p a n y u s i n g a p p r o p r i a t e financial i n s t r u m e n t s . T h e C o m p a n y h a s la id d o w n w r i t t e n po l i c i es t o 
m a n a g e t h e s e r i sks . 

4 3 . 3 . 1 M a r k e t r i s k m a n a g e m e n t 

M a r k e t r isk is t h e r isk t ha t t h e fair v a l u e of f u t u r e c a s h flows of a financial i n s t r u m e n t wi l l fluctuate b e c a u s e of c h a n g e s 
in m a r k e t p r i ces . M a r k e t r isk c o m p r i s e s of C u r r e n c y r isk, In te res t ra te r isk a n d o t h e r p r i c e r isk. 

A . F o r e i g n c u r r e n c y r i s k m a n a g e m e n t 

T h e C o m p a n y is e x p o s e d t o f o r e i g n c u r r e n c y r isk a r i s i n g m a i n l y o n i m p o r t (of r a w ma te r i a l s a n d cap i t a l i t ems) 
a n d e x p o r t (of finished g o o d s ) . F o r e i g n c u r r e n c y e x p o s u r e s a re m a n a g e d w i t h i n a p p r o v e d p o l i c y p a r a m e t e r s 
u t i l i s ing f o r w a r d c o n t r a c t s . 

T h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t s of t h e C o m p a n y ' s f o r e i g n c u r r e n c y d e n o m i n a t e d financial a s s e t s a n d financial l iab i l i t ies at 
t h e e n d o f t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d a re as f o l l o w s : 

Nature of Transaction Currency As at 
31st March, 2018 

As at 
31st March, 2017 

As at 
1st April, 2016 

Hedged Unhedged Hedged Unhedged Hedged Unhedged 

Trade Payable EUR * 10680 121143 16471 1797 3359 1115 

INR (8.68) (98.44) (11.50) (1.25) (2.54) (0.84) 

Trade Payable USD * 59004 44143 25157 17625 110104 31156 

INR (38.44) (28.76) (16.38) (11.47) (73.15) (20.70) 

Trade Payable GBP * 20024 - 8408 - 2598 -

INR (18.57) - (6.86) - (2.48) -

Trade Payable CNY* 432700 83378 388982 2415 - -

INR (46.18) (8.90) (37.74) (0.23) - -

Trade Receivable USD * - 3934 - 570 - 6200 

INR - (2.54) - (0.37) - (4.08) 

Trade Receivable EUR * - 20297 68183 5561 - 61466 

INR - (16.20) (46.75) (3.81) - (45.57) 

FCNR (B) based loan USD* 3853862 - 3748913 - 3637422 -

INR (2500.00) - (2440.54) - (2416.70) -

* - D e n o t e s a m o u n t s in ful l figures. 
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N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

4 3 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 1 0 7 : F i n a n c i a l I n s t r u m e n t s : D i s c l o s u r e s ( C o n t d . ) 

A.1 F o r e i g n c u r r e n c y sens i t i v i t y ana l ys i s 

T h e C o m p a n y ' s e x p o s u r e t o F o r e i g n C u r r e n c y c h a n g e s for all c u r r e n c i e s is n o t ma te r i a l . 

A . 2 Der iva t i ve F inanc ia l I n s t r u m e n t s 

T h e C o m p a n y h a s e n t e r e d in to f o r e i g n c u r r e n c y f o r w a r d c o n t r a c t s t o m a n a g e its e x p o s u r e t o fluctuations 
in f o r e i g n e x c h a n g e ra tes o n f o r e i g n c u r r e n c y r e c e i v a b l e s a n d p a y a b l e s . Fair v a l u e of de r i va t i ve financial 
i n s t r u m e n t s a re d e t e r m i n e d u s i n g v a l u a t i o n t e c h n i q u e s b a s e d o n i n f o r m a t i o n d e r i v e d f r o m o b s e r v a b l e 
m a r k e t d a t a . 

T h e f o l l o w i n g t a b l e de ta i l s t h e s i gn i f i can t de r i va t i ve financial i n s t r u m e n t s o u t s t a n d i n g at t h e e n d of t h e 
r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d : 

F i n a n c i a l a s s e t s / 
( F i n a n c i a l l i a b i l i t i e s ) 

P a r t i c u l a r s 3 1 s t M a r c h , 
2 0 1 8 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 
2 0 1 7 

1st Ap r i l , 
2 0 1 6 

D e r i v a t i v e A s s e t s / ( L i a b i l i t i e s ) m e a s u r e d a t F V T P L : 

(i) F o r w a r d c o n t r a c t s N o t i o n a l v a l u e ( U S D ) * (to b u y ) 3 8 5 3 8 6 2 - -(i) F o r w a r d c o n t r a c t s 

Fair v a l u e (? lakhs) 1 5 . 5 6 - -

* - D e n o t e s a m o u n t s in fu l l figures. 

B. I n t e r e s t r a t e r i s k m a n a g e m e n t 

T h e C o m p a n y d o e s n o t h a v e in te res t ra te r isk e x p o s u r e o n its o u t s t a n d i n g l oans as at t h e y e a r e n d as t h e s e 
l o a n s a re s h o r t - t e r m l o a n s o n fixed in te res t ra te bas i s . 

C . O t h e r p r i c e r i s k s 

T h e C o m p a n y is e x p o s e d t o p r i c e r isks a r i s i ng f r o m its i n v e s t m e n t s in m u t u a l f u n d s a n d equ i t y . 

Equ i t y p r i ce r isk is re la ted t o c h a n g e in m a r k e t r e f e r e n c e p r i c e of i n v e s t m e n t s in e q u i t y s h a r e s h e l d b y t h e 
C o m p a n y . T h e fair v a l u e o f q u o t e d i n v e s t m e n t s h e l d b y t h e C o m p a n y e x p o s e s it t o e q u i t y p r i ce r i sks . In g e n e r a l , 
t h e s e i n v e s t m e n t s a r e n o t h e l d for t r a d i n g p u r p o s e s . 

T h e C o m p a n y m a n a g e s t h e s u r p l u s f u n d s m a j o r l y t h r o u g h i n v e s t m e n t s in d e b t b a s e d m u t u a l f u n d s c h e m e s . T h e 
p r i c e of i n v e s t m e n t in t h e s e m u t u a l f u n d Net A s s e t V a l u e (NAV) d e c l a r e d by t h e A s s e t M a n a g e m e n t C o m p a n y 
o n da i l y b a s i s as re f l ec ted b y t h e m o v e m e n t in t h e N A V of i n v e s t e d s c h e m e s . T h e C o m p a n y is e x p o s e d t o p r i ce 
r isk o n s u c h I n v e s t m e n t s c h e m e s . 

M u t u a l f u n d i n v e s t m e n t s a re s u s c e p t i b l e t o m a r k e t p r i c e r isk, m a i n l y a r i s i ng f r o m c h a n g e s in t h e in te res t ra tes o r 
m a r k e t y i e l d s w h i c h m a y i m p a c t t h e re tu rn a n d v a l u e of s u c h i n v e s t m e n t s . H o w e v e r , d u e t o t h e v e r y s h o r t t e n o r 
of t h e u n d e r l y i n g po r t f o l i o in t h e l i qu id s c h e m e s , t h e s e d o n o t h o l d a n y s i gn i f i can t p r i c e r i sks . 

C.1 Equ i t y p r i ce sens i t i v i t y ana l ys i s 

T h e sens i t i v i t y a n a l y s i s b e l o w h a s b e e n d e t e r m i n e d b a s e d o n t h e e x p o s u r e t o e q u i t y p r i ce r i sks at t h e e n d 
o f t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d . 

If e q u i t y p r i c e s h a d b e e n 5 % h ighe r / l ower , t h e o the r c o m p r e h e n s i v e i n c o m e for t h e y e a r e n d e d 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 w o u l d h a v e i n c r e a s e d / d e c r e a s e d b y ? + / - 1650 .02 L a k h s ( 2 0 1 6 - 2 0 1 7 : i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e 
b y ? + / - 1 7 5 7 . 6 9 Lakhs ) as a resu l t o f t h e c h a n g e s in fair v a l u e of e q u i t y i n v e s t m e n t s m e a s u r e d at F V T O C I . 

C.2 M u t u a l f u n d p r i c e sens i t i v i t y a n a l y s i s 

T h e sens i t i v i t y ana l ys i s b e l o w h a s b e e n d e t e r m i n e d b a s e d o n M u t u a l F u n d I n v e s t m e n t at t h e e n d o f t h e 
r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d . If N A V h a d b e e n 1 % h ighe r / l owe r , t h e pro f i t fo r y e a r e n d e d 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 w o u l d 
h a v e i n c r e a s e d / d e c r e a s e d b y ? + / - 8 6 . 8 5 L a k h s ( 2 0 1 6 - 2 0 1 7 : i n c r e a s e / d e c r e a s e b y ? Nil) as a resu l t o f t h e 
c h a n g e s in fair v a l u e of m u t u a l f u n d s . 

4 3 . 3 . 2 C r e d i t r i s k m a n a g e m e n t 

Cred i t r isk a r i ses f r o m t h e poss ib i l i t y t h a t a c o u n t e r p a r t y ' s inab i l i t y t o se t t le its o b l i g a t i o n s as a g r e e d in ful l a n d in t i m e . 
T h e m a x i m u m e x p o s u r e t o c r e d i t r isk in r e s p e c t o f t h e financial asse t s at t h e r e p o r t i n g d a t e is t h e c a r r y i n g v a l u e of 
s u c h a s s e t s r e c o r d e d in t h e financial s t a t e m e n t s ne t of a n y a l l o w a n c e for l osses . 

A . T r a d e R e c e i v a b l e s 

T h e C o m p a n y ' s t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s c o n s i s t s of a l a r g e a n d d i v e r s e b a s e c u s t o m e r s i n c l u d i n g S ta te o w n e d C o m p a n i e s , 
L a r g e Pr iva te C o r p o r a t e s a n d Pub l i c s e c t o r e n t e r p r i s e s . H e n c e t h e C o m p a n y is n o t e x p o s e d t o c o n c e n t r a t i o n 
a n d c r e d i t r isk. 
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j p Bharat Bijlee 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Annual Report 2017-2018 
(All amounts are ? in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

4 3 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 1 0 7 : F i n a n c i a l I n s t r u m e n t s : D i s c l o s u r e s ( C o n t d . ) 

T h e a g e i n g ana l ys i s o f t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s as of t h e r e p o r t i n g d a t e is a s f o l l o w s : 

A g e i n g o f t r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s ( G r o s s ) 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

0 - 6 m o n t h s p a s t d u e 2 8 3 4 7 . 7 1 2 1 1 4 5 . 3 8 

M o r e t h a n 6 m o n t h s p a s t d u e 1 9 4 2 . 7 9 1 9 9 0 . 5 8 

T o t a l T r a d e r e c e i v a b l e s 3 0 2 9 0 . 5 0 

R e c o n c i l i a t i o n of a l l o w a n c e for d o u b t f u l d e b t s o n T r a d e R e c e i v a b l e s 

P a r t i c u l a r s 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

B a l a n c e a s a t b e g i n n i n g o f t h e y e a r 7 8 0 . 9 8 

A l l o w a n c e for d o u b t f u l d e b t s b a s e d o n ( 8 4 . 5 3 ) 
E x p e c t e d C red i t L o s s (ECL) 

B a l a n c e a t e n d o f t h e y e a r 

2 3 1 3 5 . 9 6 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

8 4 4 . 1 5 

(63.17) 

1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 

2 0 9 4 7 . 5 1 

2 2 2 9 . 2 6 

2 3 1 7 6 . 7 7 

6 9 6 . 4 5 7 8 0 . 9 8 

B. O the r F inanc ia l A s s e t s 

T h e C o m p a n y m a i n t a i n s e x p o s u r e in c a s h a n d c a s h e q u i v a l e n t s , t i m e d e p o s i t s w i t h b a n k s a n d N B F C s , i n v e s t m e n t s 
in d e b t m u t u a l f u n d s . I n v e s t m e n t o f s u r p l u s f u n d s a re m a d e o n l y w i t h a p p r o v e d c o u n t e r pa r t i es . T h e m a x i m u m 
e x p o s u r e t o c r e d i t r isk at t h e r e p o r t i n g d a t e is t h e c a r r y i n g v a l u e of e a c h c l ass o f financial a s s e t s . 

4 3 . 3 . 3 L i q u i d i t y r i s k m a n a g e m e n t 

T h e o b j e c t i v e o f l i qu id i t y r isk m a n a g e m e n t is t o m a i n t a i n su f f i c ien t l i qu id i t y t o m e e t financial o b l i g a t i o n s of t h e C o m p a n y 
as t h e y b e c o m e d u e . T h e T reasu ry Risk M a n a g e m e n t Po l i cy i n c l u d e s a n a p p r o p r i a t e l i qu id i t y r isk m a n a g e m e n t 
f r a m e w o r k fo r t h e m a n a g e m e n t of t h e s h o r t - t e r m , m e d i u m - t e r m a n d l o n g t e r m f u n d i n g a n d c a s h m a n a g e m e n t 
r e q u i r e m e n t s . T h e C o m p a n y m a n a g e s t h e l i qu id i t y r isk b y m a i n t a i n i n g a d e q u a t e c a s h rese rves , b a n k i n g fac i l i t ies a n d 
rese rve b o r r o w i n g fac i l i t ies by c o n t i n u o u s l y m o n i t o r i n g f o r e c a s t a n d a c t u a l c a s h flows a n d b y m a t c h i n g t h e m a t u r i t y 
p ro f i l es of financial asse t s a n d l iab i l i t ies. 

T h e C o m p a n y h a s a c c e s s t o v a r i o u s f u n d / n o n - f u n d b a s e d b a n k financing fac i l i t ies . T h e a m o u n t of u n u s e d b o r r o w i n g 
fac i l i t ies ( f u n d a n d n o n - f u n d b a s e d ) ava i l ab le for f u t u r e o p e r a t i n g ac t i v i t ies a n d t o se t t le c o m m i t m e n t s as at 3 1 s t M a r c h , 
2 0 1 8 ? 1 4 8 5 0 l a k h s , (as at 3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 ? 2 2 3 3 1 l akhs , as at 1st Ap r i l , 2 0 1 6 ? 1 3 4 4 5 l akhs ) . 

43 .3 .3 .1 L iqu id i t y r isk t a b l e 

T h e f o l l o w i n g t a b l e de ta i l s t h e C o m p a n y ' s r e m a i n i n g c o n t r a c t u a l m a t u r i t y fo r its n o n - d e r i v a t i v e financial 
l iab i l i t ies w i t h a g r e e d r e p a y m e n t p e r i o d s . T h e t a b l e h a s b e e n d r a w n u p b a s e d o n t h e u n d i s c o u n t e d c a s h 
flows o f financial l iab i l i t ies b a s e d o n t h e ear l ies t d a t e o n w h i c h t h e C o m p a n y c a n b e r e q u i r e d t o pay . T h e 
t a b l e i n c l u d e s p r i n c i p a l c a s h flows a l o n g w i t h in te res t . 

W e i g h t e d a v e r a g e U p t o 1 y e a r 1-5 y e a r s 
e f f e c t i v e i n t e r e s t r a t e (%) 

5 + y e a r s 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 8 

B o r r o w i n g s 

T r a d e P a y a b l e s 

O the r F inanc ia l L iab i l i t ies 

T o t a l 

3 1 s t M a r c h , 2 0 1 7 

B o r r o w i n g s 

T r a d e P a y a b l e s 

O the r F inanc ia l L iab i l i t ies 

T o t a l 

1 s t A p r i l , 2 0 1 6 

B o r r o w i n g s 

T r a d e P a y a b l e s 

O the r F inanc ia l L iab i l i t ies 

T o t a l 

8 . 3 0 % 

8 . 3 0 % 

1 0 . 0 0 % 

1 8 1 1 2 . 2 4 

15384 .31 

3 0 3 . 3 8 

3 3 7 9 9 . 9 3 

1 5 0 2 7 . 9 6 

1 5 5 5 1 . 9 5 

2 5 0 . 9 2 

3 0 8 3 0 . 8 3 

1 2 6 1 0 . 1 8 

1 5 0 8 2 . 2 6 

2 3 6 . 3 3 

2 7 9 2 8 . 7 7 

T o t a l 

1 8 1 1 2 . 2 4 

15384 .31 

3 0 3 . 3 8 

3 3 7 9 9 . 9 3 

1 5 0 2 7 . 9 6 

1 5 5 5 1 . 9 5 

2 5 0 . 9 2 

3 0 8 3 0 . 8 3 

1 2 6 1 0 . 1 8 

1 5 0 8 2 . 2 6 

2 3 6 . 3 3 

2 7 9 2 8 . 7 7 

T h e de r i va t i ve financial l iabi l i ty o f ? 15 .56 l a k h s wi l l g e t se t t l ed w i t h i n o n e year. 
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(yr) Bharat Bijlee 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Annual Report 2017-2018 
(All amounts are ? in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

N o t e s ( C o n t d . ) 

4 3 . D i s c l o s u r e p u r s u a n t t o I n d i a n A c c o u n t i n g S t a n d a r d ( I n d A S ) - 1 0 7 : F i n a n c i a l I n s t r u m e n t s : D i s c l o s u r e s ( C o n t d . ) 

4 3 . 4 Fa i r v a l u e m e a s u r e m e n t s 

T h e C o m p a n y ' s ce r ta i n financial a s s e t s a n d financial l iab i l i t ies a r e m e a s u r e d at fair v a l u e at t h e e n d of e a c h r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d . 
T h e f o l l o w i n g t a b l e g i v e s i n f o r m a t i o n a b o u t t h e v a l u a t i o n t e c h n i q u e ( s ) , i n p u t s u s e d a n d t h e fair v a l u e h i e r a r c h y u s e d in 
d e t e r m i n i n g s u c h fair v a l u e s . 

F i n a n c i a l a s s e t s / 
( F i n a n c i a l l i a b i l i t i e s ) 

Fa i r v a l u e a s a t Fa i r v a l u e 
h i e r a r c h y 

V a l u a t i o n t e c h n i q u e ( s ) a n d k e y 
i n p u t ( s ) 

F i n a n c i a l a s s e t s / 
( F i n a n c i a l l i a b i l i t i e s ) 3 1 s t M a r c h , 

2 0 1 8 
3 1 s t M a r c h , 

2 0 1 7 
1st Ap r i l , 

2 0 1 6 

Fa i r v a l u e 
h i e r a r c h y 

V a l u a t i o n t e c h n i q u e ( s ) a n d k e y 
i n p u t ( s ) 

1) F o r e i g n c u r r e n c y 
F o r w a r d s : 
Der iva t i ve A s s e t s 

Der i va t i ve L iab i l i ty 

0 . 0 9 

Level 2 

D i s c o u n t e d c a s h flow. 

Fu tu re c a s h flows a re e s t i m a t e d b a s e d 
o n f o r w a r d e x c h a n g e ra tes ( f r om 
o b s e r v a b l e f o r w a r d e x c h a n g e ra tes at 
t h e e n d o f t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d ) a n d 
c o n t r a c t f o r w a r d ra tes , d i s c o u n t e d at 
a ra te t h a t re f lec ts t h e c r e d i t r isk o f 
v a r i o u s c o u n t e r p a r t i e s . 

1) F o r e i g n c u r r e n c y 
F o r w a r d s : 
Der iva t i ve A s s e t s 

Der i va t i ve L iab i l i ty 1 5 . 5 6 Level 2 

D i s c o u n t e d c a s h flow. 

Fu tu re c a s h flows a re e s t i m a t e d b a s e d 
o n f o r w a r d e x c h a n g e ra tes ( f r om 
o b s e r v a b l e f o r w a r d e x c h a n g e ra tes at 
t h e e n d o f t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d ) a n d 
c o n t r a c t f o r w a r d ra tes , d i s c o u n t e d at 
a ra te t h a t re f lec ts t h e c r e d i t r isk o f 
v a r i o u s c o u n t e r p a r t i e s . 

2) I n v e s t m e n t s in M u t u a l 
f u n d s at F V T P L 

1 7 3 7 . 0 2 5 2 2 . 7 8 Level 1 Fair v a l u e of i n v e s t m e n t s in M u t u a l 
F u n d s is b a s e d o n Net a s s e t v a l u e 
(NAV) d e c l a r e d b y m u t u a l f u n d 
h o u s e s at t h e r e p o r t i n g d a t e . 

3) I n v e s t m e n t s in 
e q u i t y i n s t r u m e n t s 
at F V T O C I ( q u o t e d ) 
(refer n o t e b e l o w ) 

3 3 0 0 0 . 5 8 3 5 1 5 3 . 8 5 2 9 5 0 8 . 8 5 Level 1 Q u o t e d b i d p r i c e s in a n ac t i ve m a r k e t 

Note: These investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for long-term strategic purpose. Upon the 
application of Ind AS 109, the Company has chosen to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as the 
management believe that this provides a more meaningful presentation for medium or long-term strategic investments, than reflecting 
changes in fair value immediately in profit or loss. 

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period. 

4 4 . P rev i ous y e a r ' s figures h a v e b e e n r e g r o u p e d / r e c a s t / r e c l a s s i f i e d , w h e r e v e r n e c e s s a r y . 

A s pe r o u r r e p o r t o f e v e n d a t e . 
For De lo i t te H a s k i n s & Se l ls LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Fi rm Reg i s t r a t i on N o . 1 1 7 3 6 6 W / W - 1 0 0 0 1 8 

S u n d e r V. Iyer 
Partner 
M e m b e r s h i p N o . 0 4 8 3 9 3 

Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 

D. N. N a g a r k a r 
C o m p a n y S e c r e t a r y & Sen io r G e n e r a l M a n a g e r : Lega l 

S. M. T i lak 
V i c e P r e s i d e n t : F i n a n c e a n d C o r p o r a t e S t r a t e g y 

N ikh i l J . D a n a n i 

N a k u l P. M e h t a 

S h o m e N. D a n a n i 

P r a k a s h V. M e h t a 

V i c e C h a i r m e n & 
M a n a g i n g D i rec to r s 

E x e c u t i v e D i rec to r 

D i rec to r 

Mumbai , 10th May, 2018 
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Bharat Bijlee Limited 
R e g d . Of f i ce : E lec t r i c M a n s i o n , 6 t h Floor, A p p a s a h e b M a r a t h e M a r g , P r a b h a d e v i , M u m b a i - 4 0 0 0 2 5 . 

C I N : L 3 1 3 0 0 M H 1 9 4 6 P L C 0 0 5 0 1 7 , P h o n e : 0 2 2 - 2 4 3 0 6 2 3 7 , Fax: 0 2 2 - 2 4 3 7 0 6 2 4 
W e b s i t e : w w w . b h a r a t b i j l e e . c o m • E-mai l : b b l c o r p o r a t e @ b h a r a t b i j l e e . c o m 

FORM NO. MGT - 11 
PROXY FORM 

[ P u r s u a n t t o t h e p r o v i s i o n s o f S e c t i o n 105(6) of t h e C o m p a n i e s Ac t , 2 0 1 3 a n d Ru le 19(3) of t h e C o m p a n i e s 
( M a n a g e m e n t a n d A d m i n i s t r a t i o n ) Ru les , 2 0 1 4 ] 

N a m e o f t h e M e m b e r ( s ) : 

R e g i s t e r e d A d d r e s s : 

E-mai l ID 

Fo l io N o . / C l i e n t ID: 

D P ID: 

I/We b e i n g t h e M e m b e r ( s ) of e q u i t y s h a r e s o f ? 10 e a c h o f Bha ra t B i j lee L i m i t e d , h e r e b y a p p o i n t : 

1 . N a m e : E-mai l Id : 

A d d r e s s : 

S i g n a t u r e : 

o r f a i l i ng h i m / her 

2 . N a m e : E-mai l Id : 

A d d r e s s : 

S i g n a t u r e : 

o r f a i l i ng h i m / her 

3. N a m e : E-mai l Id : 

A d d r e s s : 

S i g n a t u r e : 

a s m y / o u r p r o x y t o a t t e n d a n d v o t e ( o n a po l l ) fo r m e / u s a n d o n m y / o u r b e h a l f a t t h e 7 1 s t A n n u a l G e n e r a l M e e t i n g o f t h e C o m p a n y , t o b e 
h e l d o n T h u r s d a y , J u n e 2 8 , 2 0 1 8 at 3 .00 p . m . at ' W a l c h a n d H i r a c h a n d Ha l l ' , I nd i an M e r c h a n t s ' C h a m b e r B u i l d i n g , Veer N a r i m a n R o a d , 
C h u r c h g a t e , M u m b a i - 4 0 0 0 2 0 a n d at a n y a d j o u r n m e n t ( s ) t he reo f , in r e s p e c t o f t h e r e s o l u t i o n s , as i n d i c a t e d b e l o w : 

R e s o l u t i o n 
N o . 

B r i e f d e t a i l s o f t h e R e s o l u t i o n 

O R D I N A R Y B U S I N E S S 

1. A d o p t i o n of A u d i t e d B a l a n c e S h e e t as at M a r c h 3 1 , 2 0 1 8 , t h e A u d i t e d S t a t e m e n t of Prof i t a n d L o s s for t h e financial y e a r 
e n d e d o n t ha t d a t e , C a s h F l o w S t a t e m e n t fo r t h e financial y e a r e n d e d o n t h a t d a t e a n d t h e R e p o r t s of t h e B o a r d o f D i r ec to r s 
a n d A u d i t o r s t h e r e o n . 

2. D e c l a r a t i o n of D i v i d e n d o n Equ i t y S h a r e s of t h e C o m p a n y for t h e F inanc ia l Year 2 0 1 7 - 2 0 1 8 . 

3. R e - a p p o i n t m e n t of Mr. R a v i s h a n k e r P r a s a d (DIN 0 6 6 4 1 8 4 5 ) as a Di rector , w h o is l iab le t o ret i re by ro ta t i on a n d , b e i n g e l i g i b le , 
o f fe rs h imse l f for r e - a p p o i n t m e n t . 

S P E C I A L B U S I N E S S 

4. Rat i f i ca t ion of C o s t A u d i t o r s R e m u n e r a t i o n t o b e p a i d t o M e s s r s . P M N a n a b h o y & C o . , C o s t A c c o u n t a n t s (F i rm Reg i s t r a t i on 
N o . 0 0 0 0 1 2 ) for t h e financial y e a r e n d i n g M a r c h 3 1 , 2 0 1 9 . 

d a y o f 2 0 1 8 Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 
of ? 1 

S i g n e d : th is 

S i g n a t u r e o f M e m b e r ( s ) : 

S i g n a t u r e o f t h e P roxy h o l d e r ( s ) : 

N o t e s : 
1. Th i s f o r m of p r o x y in o rde r t o b e ef fect ive s h o u l d b e d u l y c o m p l e t e d a n d d e p o s i t e d at t he Reg i s te red Of f ice of t he C o m p a n y , no t less t h a n 

4 8 h o u r s be fo re t h e c o m m e n c e m e n t o f t h e M e e t i n g . 
2. For t he Reso lu t i ons , S t a t e m e n t se t t i ng o u t mater ia l f ac ts t h e r e o n a n d no tes , p l e a s e refer t o t he No t i ce of t he 7 1 s t A n n u a l Gene ra l M e e t i n g . 

3. A p e r s o n c a n ac t as p r o x y o n beha l f o f M e m b e r s n o t e x c e e d i n g fifty (50) a n d h o l d i n g in t h e a g g r e g a t e n o t m o r e t h a n 1 0 % of t he to ta l 
s h a r e cap i ta l o f t h e C o m p a n y ca r r y i ng v o t i n g r igh ts . In c a s e a p r o x y is p r o p o s e d t o b e a p p o i n t e d b y a M e m b e r h o l d i n g m o r e t h a n 1 0 % of 
t he to ta l s h a r e cap i ta l o f t he C o m p a n y ca r r y i ng v o t i n g r igh ts , t h e n s u c h p r o x y shal l no t ac t as a p r o x y for a n y o the r p e r s o n or Member . 

http://www.bharatbijlee.com
mailto:bblcorporate@bharatbijlee.com


B)) Bharat Bij lee 
Bharat Bijlee Limited 

R e g d . Of f i ce : E lec t r i c M a n s i o n , 6 t h Floor, A p p a s a h e b M a r a t h e M a r g , P r a b h a d e v i , M u m b a i - 4 0 0 0 2 5 . 
C I N : L 3 1 3 0 0 M H 1 9 4 6 P L C 0 0 5 0 1 7 , P h o n e : 0 2 2 - 2 4 3 0 6 2 3 7 , Fax: 0 2 2 - 2 4 3 7 0 6 2 4 

W e b s i t e : w w w . b h a r a t b i j l e e . c o m • E-mai l : b b l c o r p o r a t e @ b h a r a t b i j l e e . c o m 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
T O B E C O M P L E T E D A N D H A N D E D O V E R A T T H E E N T R A N C E O F T H E A U D I T O R I U M 

I h e r e b y r e c o r d m y p r e s e n c e at t h e 7 1 s t A N N U A L G E N E R A L M E E T I N G of t h e C o m p a n y h e l d a t ' W a l c h a n d H i r a c h a n d Hal l , I nd i an M e r c h a n t s ' 
C h a m b e r B u i l d i n g , Veer N a r i m a n R o a d , C h u r c h g a t e , M u m b a i - 4 0 0 0 2 0 , o n T h u r s d a y , J u n e 2 8 , 2 0 1 8 at 3 :00 P M . 

DP I D * Fo l io N o . 

C l i en t I D * N o . of S h a r e s 

Sr. N o . 

S h a r e h o l d e r ( s ) N a m e 

A d d r e s s o f t h e S h a r e h o l d e r ( s ) 

If Shareholder(s), please sign here If proxy, please mention name and sign here 

Name of Proxy Signature 

* A p p l i c a b l e for s h a r e h o l d e r s h o l d i n g s h a r e s in e l e c t r o n i c f o r m . 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

Electronic Voting Sequence 
Number (EVSN) 

User ID *Default Sequence Number 

180525002 

* M e m b e r s w h o h a v e n o t u p d a t e d the i r PAN w i t h t h e C o m p a n y / D e p o s i t o r y Pa r t i c i pan t sha l l u s e d e f a u l t S e q u e n c e N u m b e r in t h e PAN field. 
O t h e r m e m b e r s s h o u l d u s e the i r PAN. 

http://www.bharatbijlee.com
mailto:bblcorporate@bharatbijlee.com


Bharat Bijlee Limited 
Electr ic M a n s i o n , 6 t h Floor, 
A p p a s a h e b M a r a t h e M a r g , 
P rabhadev i , M u m b a i 4 0 0 025 

T: + 9 1 22 2 4 3 0 6 2 3 7 / 6 0 7 1 
E: b b l c o r p o r a t e @ b h a r a t b i j l e e . c o m 
W : w w w . b h a r a t b i j l e e . c o m 
CIN: L 3 1 3 0 0 M H 1 9 4 6 P L C 0 0 5 0 1 7 

vak i l s 

mailto:bblcorporate@bharatbijlee.com
http://www.bharatbijlee.com

